
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
President Mike McGuinness, District 7 

Pro Tem William A. Carrington, District 6 

Melanie Rutherford, District 1 

Brett Nicholson, District 2 

Mikal Goodman, District 3 

Kathalee James, District 4 

William Parker, Jr., District 5 
 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., MiPMC, City Clerk      Phone: (248) 758-3200  

  

   109th Session of the 11th Council – September 26, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

Meeting Location:  City Council Chambers, Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342         

 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

Call to Order 

 

Invocation 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

 

Moment of Silence 

 

Roll Call of Councilmembers 

 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers from the Meeting 

 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

 

Approval of the Consent Agenda 

A. September 14, 2023, Public Safety, Health & Wellness Subcommittee Meeting Minutes  

B. September 19, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 

C. Resolution Recognizing October as Breast Cancer Awareness Month  

D. Resolution Supporting State House Bills 4274 and 4275  

E. Resolution Scheduling a Public Hearing for the Sale of Vacant City-Owned Parcels in the City of Pontiac, 

Oakland County, State of Michigan for October 10, 2023. 

F. Resolution Scheduling Public Hearing on Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District Establishment for 31 N. 

Astor Street for October 10, 2023 

G. Resolution Scheduling Public Hearing on Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for 48 W. 

Huron for October 10, 2023 

H. Resolution Scheduling Public Hearing on Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for 91 N. 

Saginaw for October 10, 2023 

I. Resolution Modifying October 17, 2023, City Council Meeting Start Time to 12:00 p.m.  

    

Special Presentation 

1. Pontiac Housing Needs Study Status and Next Steps   

Presentation Presenter: Deborah Younger, Economic Development Manager   

 

 Recognition of Elected Officials 

 

 Agenda Address (Two Minutes Time Limit) 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Agenda Items 

 Ordinances 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2406 An Ordinance to Allow Adult-Use Marihuana 

Establishments to Operate in the City of Pontiac Pursuant to the Michigan Regulation And Taxation Of  

Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 Et Seq.; to Provide for Standards and Procedures to 

Permit and Regulate Adult-Use Marihuana Establishments; to Provide for the Imposition of Permit 

Application Fees and Renewal Fees; and to Impose Conditions For The Operation Of Adult-Use Marihuana 

Establishments. (Second Reading Postponed from the September 19, 2023, City Council meeting) 

3. Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of the Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac, Amending 

Article 2, Section 2.103—Zoning Map, to Change the Zoning Classifications for a Specific Parcel on the 

South Side of Auburn Road Between South Sanford Street and South Francis Avenue, Subject to the Agreed 

upon Conditions (Rezoning of the parcel totaling 1.3 acres at 454 Auburn Avenue, with Lighthouse as the 

applicant) (Second Reading) 
 

 Resolutions 

 City Clerk’s Office 
4. Resolution to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement for Election Services between 

Oakland County and the City of Pontiac for Early Voting Sites. 
  

 City Council 
5. Resolution of Solidarity with Shawn Fain and the Striking United Auto Workers. 

 
 Department of Public Works (DPW)   

6. Resolution to authorize the DPW Director to purchase needed Vehicles for DPW from Lindco for 
$243,294.00.    

 
 Economic Development Division 

7. Resolution requesting Oakland County Brownfield Authority Determination for 204 W. New York Avenue. 
(Carlisle Townhomes)  

 
 Mayor’s Office 

8. Resolution to Approve the Mayor’s Appointments to the Local Officer Compensation Commission 
 
 Planning Division 

9. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute a Conditional Rezoning Agreement for 454 Auburn Avenue. 
 
 Purchasing Division 

10. Resolution to approve the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to amend the existing AmeriScan contract fully executed 
on December 12, 2022, to allow for an increase to the not-to-exceed amount by $60,750 and timeframe for 
AmeriScan to complete the City Building Documents Project to December 31, 2023. 
 

 Public Comment (Three Minutes Time Limit) 

 

 Public Communications 

 City Council 

11. The City of Pontiac has recognized September 15, 2023, to October 15, 2023, as Hispanic Heritage Month 

 

12. Residents who are behind in paying their water bills or facing a service shut-off can get help from a 

partnership between the Oakland County Water Resources Commission and OLSHA. Those who qualify could 

get up to $1,500 in payments on their water bills and stop a shut-off plan. This program is temporary and 

expires on September 30, 2023. Schedule an appointment with OLHSA to sign up by calling (248) 209-2600 

or emailing info@olhsa.org. 

 

13. Pontiac Alumni 2023 Homecoming Spirit Week, September 25 through 30 

mailto:info@olhsa.org


3 

 

 

14. Goldner Walsh “Containers & Cocktails” Fall Edition, September 27, 2023, from 6:00 to 9:00 pm, held at 

Goldner Walsh Garden & Home, 559 Orchard Lake Road in Pontiac; tickets are $30 per person. 

15. "Dishes Past" Historic Cuisine Dinner, September 29, 2023, at 7:00 pm, held at the Oakland History Center, 

405 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue in Pontiac. 

16. Pontiac High School Homecoming Game Day, September 30, 2023, with Tailgating at 9:00 am, Parade 

starting at 10:00 am, Gates Open at 12:30 pm, and Varsity Football Game versus Troy Athens at 2:00 pm, held 

at Pontiac High School, 1051 Arlene Avenue, Pontiac 48342. 

 

17. District One Monthly Meeting with City Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford, September 30, 2023, at 3:00 pm, 

held at the Alley Cat, 31 N. Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac Public Library Trunk or Treat, October 5, 

2023, from 5:00 to 7:00 pm, held at Pontiac Public Library, 60 E. Pike Street in Downtown Pontiac. The event 

will take place rain or shine, and Halloween costumes are encouraged. This free event includes crafts, 

pumpkins, cider, donuts, and lots of candy. Presented by the Library and Michigan Department of Health & 

Human Services, Oakland County Division. 

 

18. Global Jam Nights with OU, the First Thursday of Every Month, October 5, 2023, at 7:00 pm, held at Pontiac's 

Little Arts Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

19. CARE House of Oakland County CARE Night Gala, October 6, 2023, at 6:00 pm, held at The Treasury, 30 N. 

Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

20. Hauntiac Car Show and Woodward Scream Cruise, October 7, 2023, held at the Oakland History Center, 405 

Cesar E. Chavez Avenue in Pontiac. 

 

21. Pontiac Creative Arts Center “La Mariposa” Exhibit Opening Reception, October 7, 2023 from 6:00 to 9:00 

pm, held at the Pontiac Creative Arts Center, 47 Williams Street, Pontiac 48341; free admission, refreshments. 

 

22. Downtown Pontiac Walking Ghost Tours, October 15 and 22, 2023, presented by the Oakland History Center, 

tours starting at 5:00, 6:00, 7:00, and 8:00 pm. 

 

23. PLAT Jam Nights, the Third Tuesday of Every Month, October 17, 2023, at Pontiac's Little Arts Theatre, 47 

N. Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

24. Halloween Party at Murphy Park, October 20, 2023, from 5:00 to 7:00 pm, held at Murphy Park on Martin 

Luther King, Jr. Boulevard South and Osmun Street, Free event features candy, kids party, music, costume 

contest, and games. Presented by Yaktown Don’t Back Down and native Kings. Supported by the Pontiac City 

Council as a District Seven Project. 

 

25. Rocky Horror Picture Show" Film Screening, October 20 and 21, 2023 with Doors Open at 7:00 pm and show 

at 8:00 pm, held at Pontiac's Little Arts Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

26. Angel’s Night Lights on Fun Fest and Trunk or Treat, October 25, 2023, from 5:30 to 8:00 pm, held at the 

Pontiac City Hall Complex, 47450 Woodward Avenue in Pontiac with parking at the School District’s 

Administration Building and WHRC School (enter from Auburn Avenue), sponsored by the Sheriff 

Department, Deputies for Kids, the City of Pontiac, Pontiac School District, and Project Excel. 

 

27. Harvest Festival at the History Center, October 29, 2023, from 12:00 to 4:00 pm each day, held at the Oakland 

History Center, 405 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue in Pontiac. 

 

 

 



4 

 

28. "Making a Difference" Scholarship Essay Competition Presented by the Fran Anderson Legacy Fund, 

application period now opens until November 1, 2023, at 12 Noon, write how you have made a difference in 

your community in 500 words or less, and you could win a $5,000 scholarship. High School students who 

reside in Pontiac are eligible to enter. For more information, contact Linda Zabik at (248) 421-7198 or 

he@holidayextravaganza.org. 

 

29. Accent Pontiac Sixth Annual Green Bucket Run, November 4, 2023, from 8:00 to 11:00 am, held at Kirk in 

the Hills Church, 1340 W. Long Lake Road in Bloomfield Hills. 

 

30. The Dirk Kroll Band Live, November 10, 2023, at 7:00 pm, held at Pontiac's Little Arts Theatre, 47 N. 

Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

31. Oakland History Center and Pontiac Creative Arts Center Gala Auction, November 11, 2023, held at the 

Pontiac Creative Arts Center, 47 Williams Street, Pontiac 48341. 

 

32. The Art Experience Glimpse & Glimmer Gala, November 16, 2023, held at the Flagstar Strand Theatre, 12 N. 

Saginaw Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

33. Dixon's Violin Live, November 17, 2023, at 7:00 pm, held at Pontiac's Little Arts Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw 

Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

34. Save the Date: Holiday Extravaganza Parade in Downtown Pontiac, December 2, 2023  

 

35. Historic Christmas Open House December 9 and 10, 2023 from 12:00 to 4:00 pm each day, held at the 

Oakland History Center, 405 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue in Pontiac. 

 

36. Quincy Stewart Live, December 23, 2023, at 8:00 pm, held at Pontiac's Little Arts Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw 

Street in Downtown Pontiac. 

 

Mayor’s Office 
37. Orchard Lake Road between Berwick Boulevard and Sylvan Court is Closed to Traffic from September 15, 

2023, to November 1, 2023. Water and sewer system improvements, as well as replacement of the Clinton 

River Bridge, is being completed. Please follow posted detours. 

 

38. The City of Pontiac and Oakland County Parks are Partnering to Present “Wheels & Squeals” Touch a Truck 

Event on September 29, 2023, from 5 to 7:30 pm at Hawthorne Park, 1400 Telegraph Road, Pontiac 48340. 

This free, family-friendly event is open to all and features fire trucks, construction equipment, police cruisers 

and other municipal equipment that kids enjoy getting to experience up close in a safe setting. 

 

39. City of Pontiac Second Annual Harvest Festival, presented by the City of Pontiac Youth Recreation, October 

7, 2023, from 1:00 to 5:00 pm, held at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue in Pontiac. Featuring 

pumpkin bowling, apple cider, donuts, rock climbing, bounce houses, and music. For more information, or to 

reserve a vendor space, contact Tanesha Taylor at (248) 758-3039. 

 

40. Residents Encouraged to Complete Online Survey for Pontiac Youth Recreation Center Amenities 

 

City Clerk’s Office 

41. The Special Election scheduled for November 7, 2023, on the Adult Use Marihuana Ordinance Proposals has 

been cancelled.  

 
Closing Comments 

 Mayor Greimel (Seven Minutes Time Limit) 
 Clerk and City Council (Three Minutes Time Limit) 
Adjournment 

mailto:he@holidayextravaganza.org


CONSENT 
AGENDA 

A 



Pontiac City Council Public Safety Health & Wellness Subcommittee 
Minutes 

September 14, 2023 
4:30 PM 

Pontiac City Hall 
City Council Conference Room Second Floor 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Committee Members: William Carrington (Chair), Katha lee James, and Councilperson William Parker 
Others Present: Sam Jones, Sennel Threlkeld, H. Weir, Matthew Covey, S. Hawkins, Deputy Mayor 
Khalfani Stephens, and Mayor Greimel. 

The Meeting Convened at 4:33 pm. 

Mayor Greimel provided a Ceasefire Implementation updated, he stated the staff 

recommendations were 2 positions which included a project manager and support outreach 

specialist. The mayor is exploring who should be on the interview process up to 3 council 

members could be on interview panel. Other interview panel members could be the chair of 

the anti-violence commission and a member of the sheriff's office. Grants may also be available 

to fund cease fire. 

Discussed ensued concerning the Sheriff Substation Facility Condition Assessment and Fire 

Stations Facility Condition Assessment. 12 million would be required to bring city hall up to 

standard and 10 million for the Sheriff's Sub Station. 

The Oakland County Sheriff's Department represented the Crime Statistics and provided a 

written report this included response times. The Substation interview room needs updating. An 

agenda item will be coming to city council in 2 weeks. 

The Waterford Regional Fire Department represented a written and oral report which included 

that latest response times. Fire Chief Covey stated he is working on a federal grant for some 

capital improvements. 

Star EMS was absent from this meeting no report was given. 

No individuals participated in public comment. 

Meeting adjourned at 5:25 p.m. Next Meeting: December 14, 2023 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

B 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

108th Session of the Eleventh Council 

A Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, September 19, 2023, at 6:09 p.m. by 
Council President Mike McGuinness. 

Invocation- Bishop Theresa Lee- New Bitth International Church- Pontiac, Michigan 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call 

Members Present - William Carrington, Mikal Goodman, Kathalee James, Mike McGuinness, Brett 
Nicholson, William Parker Jr., and Melanie Rutherford • 

Mayor Tim Greimel was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agen(la 
Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilpers9n Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Carrington. Discussion. • 

Motion to amend agenda and add a discussion regarding Senior Center 
Renovations Process after public comment to the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and 
second by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: .Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, and Carrington 
No:None • • 
Motion Carried 

Motion to add a new item #4 Resolution to support Guaranteed Severance Pay 
Legislation to the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson 
Carrington. • 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 
Motion Carried· 

The vote was taken to approve the agenda as amended. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, and Rutherford 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Consent Agenda 
23-331 Resolution to approve the consent agenda for September 19, 2023. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

1 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the consent agenda for September 19, 2023. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the consent agenda for 
September 19, 2023, including September 11, 2023, Economic Development, Housing and Planning 
Subcommittee Minutes, September 12, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes, September 14, 2023, 
Finance and Personnel Subcommittee Meeting Minutes, Resolution Reclassifying City Council Office 
Assistant to Administrative Assistant, Resolution Authorizing the City Clerk to Post Notice of A Budget 
Amendment for Reclassification of Pontiac City Council Office Assistant to Administrative Assistant, 
Resolution Authorizing the City Clerk to Post Notice of a Budget Amendment Modifying Salary Range 
for City Council Outreach Specialist, Resolution Recognizing September 18-24, 2023, as Rail Safety 
Week, and resolution Celebrating the 100th Anniversary of the Pontiac Lions Club. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-331 (D) Resolution Reclassifying City Council Office Assistant to Administrative Assistant. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman .. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council authorizes the reclassification of the titled position of Office 
Assistant to Administrative Position and; 
WHEREAS, the titled position of Office Assistant has the same dutie,sand responsibilities of, and 
Administrative Position and title change should be reflective of that and; 
WHEREAS, The Pontiac City believes tl;ie position of Office Assistant should be reclassified to the 
Administrative Assistant and; • • 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the appropriate annual compensation for the Administrative 
Assistant shall not exceed the amount of $55,000. and. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT .RE RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council approves the reclassification of 
Office Assistant to Administrative Assistant. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-331 (E) Resolution Authorizing ttie City Clerk to Post Notice of a Budget Amendment for 
Reclassification of Pontiac City Council Office Assistant to Administrative Assistant. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and secohd by Councilperson Goodman. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, Council Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the 
proposed budget amendment to establish budget appropriations in the total amount of $16,895 for GL 
account number 101-101-702.000- Salaries &Wages-shall be increased by $15,000; The appropriation for 
GL Account 101-101-715.000 FICA-City Contribution-shall be increased by $1,150; The appropriation 
for GL 101-101-718-500 MERS Contribution-shall be increased by $600.00; The appropriation for GL 
101-101-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution shall be increased by $145.00 for the purpose of 
reclassification of Office Assistant to Administrative Assistant. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-331 (F) Resolution Authorizing the City Clerk to Post Notice of a Budget Amendment 
Modifying Salary Range for City Council Outreach Specialist. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford 
and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

2 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Pontiac City Council authorizes the City Clerk to publish the 
proposed budget amendment to establish budget appropriations In the amount of $8,450 in the following 
accounts GL account number 101-101-702.000- Salaries &Wages-shall be increased by $7,500; The 
appropriation for GL Account 101-101-715.000 FICA-City Contribution-shall be increased by $575; The 
appropriation for GL 101-101-718-500 MERS Contribution-shall be increased by $300; The 
appropriation for GL 101-101-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution shall be increased by $75 for the 
purpose of salary range modification for the Outreach Specialist. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-331 (G) Resolution Recognizing September 18-24, 2023, as Rail Safety Week. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman. • 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council recognizes September 18th to September 24th, 2023, as Rail 
Safety Week; and 
WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council unequivocally supports highway-rail grade crossing and 
pedestrian safety programs; and 
WHEREAS, it is in the public's interest to raise citizen's awa.reness of the dangers safety warnings at 
level crossings and trespassing on rail property to reduce av9idablf;} deaths, injuries and damage caused by 
incidents involving trains and citizens; and . • 
WHEREAS, on September 18th to September 24th, 2023, and throughout the year, all citizens are 
encouraged to observe added caution as motprists or pedestrians near tracks or trains; and 
WHEREAS, this impmiant observation should lead to greater safety awareness and a reduction in 
highway-rail grade crossing crashes and pedestrian/railroad incidents; and 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City Council hereby attest our 
full support proclaiming September 18th to September 26th, 2023, as Rail Safety Week and we encourage 
all residents to recognize the impmi~nce of rail safety education. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None· 
Resolution Passed 

23-331 (H) ·R~solution Celebr~ting the 100°1 Anniversary of the Pontiac Lions Club. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second. by Councilperson Goodman. 

WHEREAS, it is fitting that the Pontiac City Council recognize those exemplary organizations and their 
remarkable members who, thrqugh their unwavering commitment to excellence, are a credit to this City; 
and 
WHEREAS, one such notable oi'ganization is the Pontiac Lion's Club, which is celebrating their 100th 
anniversary; and 
WHEREAS, The Lions Club International is the world's largest service club organization with more than 
1.4 million members in approximately 46,000 clubs in more than 200 countries and geographically areas 
around the world; and 
WHEREAS, The Pontiac Lion's Club Motto is "We Serve" and they believe everyone deserves a healthy 
life and they epitomizes the spirit of volunteerism; and 
WHEREAS, The Pontiac Lions Club provides health programs that focus on hearing and vision loss, 
suppmi schools, and eyeglasses recycling centers; and 
WHEREAS, The Pontiac Lions Club are volunteers helping, leading, planning and suppotiing and 
serving the unique needs of the community; and 

3 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

WHEREAS, the members of the Pontiac Lion's Club have worked countless hours to make their 
communities a vibrant and compassionate place of which every resident can be proud of; and 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City Council and members of 
this great community pause to specifically honor this fine group and commend the members of the 
Pontiac Lions Club for their service to the community and wish them well in their future endeavors. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Special Presentation 
Announcing Pontiac Community Calendar Feature 
Presenter: Cody MacPhee, IT Manager and Paula Bridges, Communications Director 

Recognition of Elected Officials - Beatrice Wright, Precinct Delegate 

Agenda Address 
1. Dr. Deirdre Waterman addressed items #D, #E, #F, and item #2 
2. Quincy Stewat1 addressed items #28, #31 and #34 
3. Beatrice Wright Addressed items # 11, # 12 and #15 
4. H. Bill Maxey addressed item #6 
5. Carlton Jones addressed item #2 
6. Darlene Clark addressed item #1. 
7. Chuck Johnson addressed item #6 
8. Gloria Miller addressed every item· 

Agenda Items 
Ordinance 
~ Adoption of an Ordina.µce to Amend Ordinance 2406 An Ordinance to Allow Adult-
Use Marihuana Establishments to Operate in the City of Pontiac Pursuant to the Michigan 
Regulation And Taxation Of Marihuana Act, Initiated,Law 1 of 2018, MC 333.27951 Et Seq.; to 
Provide for Standards and Procedures to Permitand Regulate Adult-Use Marihuana 
Establishments; to Provide .for the Imposition of Permit Application Fees and Renewal Fees; and to 
Impose Conditions For The Operation Of Adult-Use Marihuana Establishments. (Second Reading) 
Moved by CoilQcilperson Cahington and second by Councilperson Parker. Discussion. 

• \ 

M6tion to postpone Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2406 An 
Ordinance to Allow Adult-Use Marihuana Establishments to Operate in the City of Pontiac 
Pursuant to the Michigan Regulation And Taxation Of Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2018, 
MC 333.27951 Et Seq.; to Provide for Standards and Procedures to Permit and Regulate Adult-Use 
Marihuana Establishments; to Provide for the Imposition of Permit Application Fees and Renewal 
Fees; and to Impose Conditions For The Operation Of Adult-Use Marihuana Establishments for 
one week. (Second Reading) Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness 
No: None 
Abstain: Rutherford 
Motion Carried 
Councilman Nicholson was absent during the vote. 

23-332 Resolution to Approve First Reading of an Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac, Amending Article 2, Section 2.103-Zoning Map, to Change 

4 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

the Zoning Classifications for a Specific Parcel on the South Side of Auburn Road Between South 
Stanford Street and South Francis Avenue, Subject to the Agreed upon Conditions (Rezoning of the 
parcel totaling 1.3 acres at 454 Auburn Avenue, with Lighthouse as the applicant) Moved by 
Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson Rutherford. 

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend the City 
of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance Map to rezone the parcel (64-14-33-205-034) totaling 1.34 acres at 454 
Auburn; specifically, to amend the Zoning Ordinance Map which list these properties as C-1 Local 
Business, C-3, Corridor Commercial, and R-3, Multiple Family Dwelling to R-4 Multiple Family 
Dwelling Apartment. 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest for the health, safety, and 
welfare, to reject the Planning Commission's Recommendation and approve the amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance Map as presented. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby adopts the first 
reading of the amendments as presented to the City Council on.September 19, 2023, to the City's Zoning 
Ordinance Map. • 

Resolutions 
City Council 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, and Parker 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-333 Resolution to Support Guaranteed Severance Pay Legislation. (Agenda add-on) 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and secon.d by Councilperson Goodman. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac recognizes the µripo11ance of protecting workers' rights and promoting 
fair labor practices within .our community; and • . 
WHEREAS, Legislation set to be re-introduced by House Majority Whip Representative Abraham 
Aiyash aims to establish a comprehensive framework foi: guaranteed severance pay for employees 
affected by closures, relocations, and mass layoffs; and 
WHEREAS, the prospective "relocation, closing, and mass layoff severance pay act" seeks to ensure that 
employees facing job loss due to factors.beyond their control receive appropriate compensation to help 
them navigate such transitions; and • . 
WHEREAS, tlH~ actions of wealthy corporate.executives and private equity firms that lead to job 
destruction in Michigan have a profound impact on working families, our communities, and the local 
economy; and . 
WHEREAS, the Art Van mass layoffat the onset of the pandemic, orchestrated by a Wall Street private 
equity firm, TH Lee, highlighted the disregard for Michiganders and the local workforce, prompting a 
united effo11 by workers to stand ag~inst such actions and demand accountability; and 
WHEREAS, it is imperative to hold corporations accountable for their actions when they destroy jobs in 
our state, and the introduction of guaranteed severance pay legislation aligns with our commitment to the 
well-being of our community members; and 
WHEREAS, the practices of ce11ain Wall Street private equity firms and corporate CEOs have adversely 
affected our communities, including instances like the Art Van closure that left thousands of employees 
without paychecks, health care, and contributed to the burden on local social services; and 
WHEREAS, the economic repercussions of mass layoffs with no notice, severance pay, or safety net for 
workers not only impact the affected employees but also impose a significant financial burden on our 
state; and 
WHEREAS, these challenges compel working families to depend heavily on vital social programs, such 
as Unemployment Insurance and other essential support systems, highlighting the urgent need for 

5 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

measures like Guaranteed Severance Pay legislation that protect our workers and reinforce the strength of 
our social safety net; and 
WHEREAS, the introduction and passage of Guaranteed Severance Pay legislation presents an 
opportunity to strengthen worker rights, enhance economic stability, and discourage actions by corporate 
entities that negatively impact our workforce and community; and 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council expresses its strong suppott for 
the forthcoming House Bill titled the "relocation, closing, and mass layoff severance pay act," to be re
introduced in the Michigan Legislature; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council strongly urges State Representative Brenda Caiter 
and State Senator Jeremy Moss, and members of the Michigan Legislature to carefully consider and 
swiftly pass this legislation to ensure that workers' rights are protected, and that employees facing layoffs, 
relocations, or closures receive fair and just severance pay; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council recognizes that this legislation not only suppotts 
workers but also contributes to the long-term financial solvency of th{) state, pa1ticularly during 
economically challenging times when mass job losses burden the state's. social safety net. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, and Rutherford 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Grants and Philanthropy 
23-334 Resolution to approve the proposed budgefamendment for Fiscal Year 2023-24 to 
increase budgeted revenues in the amount of $1,500,000 to accqunt 101-000-539.000 - MIEGLE, 
and expenditures in the amount of $1,500,000 to account 101-445~936.000 - MIEGLE, $75,000 to 
account 203-463-806.001 - MIEGLE, $200,000 to account 202-463-818.001- MIEGLE, and 
$100,000 to account 101-447-818.001 - MIEGl.,E. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by 
Councilperson Goodman. • 

\, ' 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has been awarded $1,500,000 from Michigan Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, ah4 Energy Water Resources Division State High Water Infrastructure Grant 
Program in the iimount of $1,S00,000; and, \ 
WHEREAS, the grant program requires that the City of Pontiac ce1tify compliance with all Grant 
Program requirements, including commitment to long-term maintenance and all project cost overruns. 
WHER.pAS, the Pontiac City C:ouncHautrorized the execution of the grant agreement. 
WHEREAS,the grant program requires a ininimum of20 percent matching funds. 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the proposed budget 
amendment to incre.ase budgeted rev~nues in the amount of $1,500,000 to account 101-000-539 .000-
MIEGLE, and expenditures in the amount of $1,500,000 to account 101-445-936.000-MIEGLE, 
$75,000 to account 20'.f-463-806.001-MIEGLE, $200,000 to account 202-463-818.001-MIEGLE, and 
$100,000 to account 101-447-818;00f-MIEGLE. 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, and Carrington 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Parks and Recreation 
23-335 Resolution approving Pontiac Oaks Park Action Plan. (First Reading) Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has been given the first draft of the Park Action Plan by Oakland County; 
and, 
WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac is to make suggested changes to the Park Action Plan prior to the second 
reading of the plan; and 

6 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

NOW THEREFORE, Oakland County can include the suggested changes to the Park Action Plan and 
then provide a final copy for the City of Pontiac to approve during the second reading of this document. 
Doing so will then finalize the transition period of the Inter local Agreement and as of October l, 2023, 
Oakland County will begin overseeing operations and maintenance of the City's Pontiac Oaks Park. 

Purchasing 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

2.3 336 Resolution authorizing the Mayor or Mayor's Designee to execute the contract for 
Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to purchase the HVAC and Painting Services for Pontiac 
City Hall. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson James. Discussion. 

Motion to table item #7 Resolution authorizing the Mayor or Mayor's Designee to 
execute the contract for Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to purchase the HV AC and Painting 
Services for Pontiac City Hall to later in the meeting. Moved by Counc~lperson Rutherford and second 
by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness 
No: None • • • • 
Motion Carried 

Public Comment 
1. Dr. Deirdre Waterman 
2. Beatrice Wright 
3. H. Bill Maxey 
4. Robert Bass 
5. Lavonte Travis 
6. Regina Campbell 
7. Quincy Stewmt 
8. Carlton Jones 
9. Bille Swazer 
10. Darlene Clark 
11. ChuckJohnson 
12. Gloria Miller 
13. Bishop Theresa Lee 

Discussion 
Senior Center Renovations Pro.cess (Agenda add-on) 

Motion to amend Resolution authorizing the Mayor or Mayor's Designee to 
execute the contract for Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to purchase the HV AC and 
Painting Services for Pontiac City Hall. Moved by Councilperson Goodman and second by 
Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City's municipal 
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 pertaining to major purchases; and 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval for the Finance Director to sign the Allied 
Building Service quote for HV AC and Painting Services totaling $69,8-'.w,- $30,700.13. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor 
Designee to allow the Finance Director to sign the quotes for Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to 

7 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

purchase the HV AC and Painting Services for City Hall. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness 
No: None 
Motion Carried 
Councilwoman Rutherford and Councilman Nicholson were absent during the vote. 

23-336 Amended Resolution authorizing the Mayor or Mayor's Designee to execute the 
contract for Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to purchase the HV AC and Painting Services 
for Pontiac City Hall. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson James. 

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City's municipal 
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 p~rtaining to major purchases; and 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval for the Finance Director to sign the Allied 
Building Service quotes for HV AC $30,700.13. • 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT Resolved, The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor 
Designee to allow the Finance Director to sign the quotes for Allied Building Service of Detroit, Inc. to 
purchase the HV AC for City Hall. 

Closed Session 

Ayes: McGuinness, Parker, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: Rutherford 
Resolution Passed 
Councilman Nicholson was absent during the vote. 

23-337 Resolution to proceed intocloi;ed session at 9:03 p,m. pursuant to MCL 15.268 (d) 
to consider the purchase or lease.of real propel'ty up to the time an option to purchase or lease 
such real property is obtained and MCL 15.268·(h) to discuss a written legal opinion prepared by 
the City Attorney Clark Hill, LLC regarding adult-use marihuana ordinance. Moved by 
Councilperson Goodman .and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, City·Council seeks to adjourn into Closed Session for the following reasons, this 
Resolution is hereby consi~ered: • 

1. Under MCL 15.268 (d) provid~ that a public body may meet in closed session to consider the 
purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to purchase or lease such real 
property is obtained: and •• 

2. UnderMCL 15.268 (h)tp d{scuss a written legal opinion prepared by the City Attorney Clark 
Hill LLC regarding aduJt.::use,marihuana ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, ~E IT RESOLYED the City Council will proceed in Closed Session pursuant to 
the Open Meetings Act MCL 15 .268 Section 8( d) to consider the purchase or lease of real property up to 
the time an option to purchase or lease such real property is obtained and section 8(h) to discuss a 
written legal opinion prepared by the City Attorney Clark Hill LLC regarding adult-use marihuana 
ordinance. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, and Parker 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 
Councilwoman Rutherford and Councilman Nicholson were absent during the vote. 

Motion to come out of Closed Session at 10:25 p.m. Moved by Councilperson 
Rutherford and second by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Carrington, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, and Rutherford 
No: None 

8 



September 19, 2023, Draft 

Motion Carried 
Councilman Goodman was absent during the vote. 

Communications 
City Council, Mayor's Office and Clerk's Office 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Tim Greimel, Clerk Garland Doyle, Councilman William Parker Jr., Councilwoman Kathalee 
James, Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford and Council President Pro-Tern William Carrington made 
closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Coµncilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson James. 

. . 
Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, and Carrington 
No: None • 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourn the meeting at 10:37 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
City Clerk 

9 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

C 



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING OCTOBER 2023 
AS BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council recognizes the month of October 2023 as Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month and stands in solidarity with all of the brave women and men who have been 
diagnosed with breast cancer and honor those who have lost their battle to this disease; and, 

WHEREAS, as the second most common cancer affecting women, an estimated 1 in 8 women 
will develop breast cancer over the course of their lifetime; and, 

WHEREAS, there are several types of breast cancer-divided into non-invasive and 23 invasive 
types -which can be diagnosed at different stages of development and can grow at 24 different 
rates; and, 

WHEREAS, early detection is one of the most important strategies for treating breast cancer 
successfully, and regular screenings are the most reliable way to detect it; and, 

WHEREAS, if cancer is identified at an early stage, it can be treated before it spreads to 26 other 
parts of the body and, while the exact cause of breast cancer is not fully understood, there are 
many factors that increase the likelihood of developing it, including age, family and medical 
history; and, 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council looks forward to the day when no woman or man will 
suffer from breast cancer or lose their life to this disease. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council honors breast cancer 
patients, survivors, and their families and recognizes October as Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
and to promote research for a cure. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council applauds and commends the 
advocates, medical professionals, researchers and caregivers who dedicate their lives to making 
progress toward cures and encourages citizens, government agencies, private businesses, 
nonprofit organizations and other interested groups to join in increasing awareness and 
prevention and to pay tribute to those who have lost their lives to this disease. 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL • 

Mike McGuinness, Council President 

Mikal Goodman, Councilmember 

Brett Nicholson, Councilmember 

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember 

Pontiac, Michigan • September 26, 2023 

William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem 

Kathalee James, Councilmember 

William Parker, Jr., Councilmember 



CONSENT 

AGENDA 

D 



 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF MICHIGAN HOUSE BILL 4274 and 4275 

 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council strongly supports the following Revenue Sharing 

Trust Fund House Bills 4274 and 4275; and, 

WHEREAS, if passed these bills will create a fund whose purpose will be to ensure that 

municipalities receive more money in state revenue than in the past; and  

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council asserts that revenue sharing allows for equitable 

distribution of funds that will assist local municipalities such things as Infrastructure 

Investment, economic growth, and fiscal stability; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council 

strongly urges the Speaker of the Michigan House of Representatives to promptly 

schedule HB 4274 and 4275 for a vote.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be forwarded by the City 

Clerk to the Speaker of the Michigan State House of Representatives, The Minority 

Leader of the Michigan State House of Representatives, and to our State Representative 

Brenda Carter and State Senator Jeremy Moss.  

 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL ●      Pontiac, Michigan ●        September 26, 2023  

Mike McGuinness, Council President William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem 

Mikal Goodman, Councilmember  Kathalee James, Councilmember 

Brett Nicholson, Councilmember  William Parker, Jr., Councilmember  

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember   

 

 

 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

E 



D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE SALE OF 
VACANT CITY-OWNED PARCELS 

WHEREAS, prior to selling any city-owned properties resident or taxpayer in the City of Pontiac 
may appear and be heatd;an:i 

WHEREAS, City is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Pontiac and 
legally described below; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to sell the following Commercial parcels: 172 S Francis Ave 
Parcel Number 14-34-105-014; 339 Paddock Parcel Number 14-33-179-001; 94 Dwight Parcel 
Number14-30-476-002; in, Pontiac, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to sell the following In-fill Housing parcels for a project to be known as The 
Bridge on Orchard: 447 Orchard Lake Rd. Parcel Number 14-32-152-006; 439 Orchard Lake Rd. Parcel 
Number 14-32-152-031; 429 Orchard Lake Rd. Parcel Number14-32-152-033; 469 Orchard Lake Rd. 
Parcel Number 14-32-152-035; 453 Orchard Lake Rd. Parcel Number 14-32-152-039; Parcel Number 4-
32-152-037; Parcel Number 14-32-152-029; 505 Luther Ave. Parcel Number 19-05-278-003; Parcel 
Number 19-05-278-037; in Pontiac, MI; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to sell the following In-Fill Housing parcel for the project known as Franklin 
School: 494 Bloomfield Ave. Parcel Number 19-04-107-021; Highland Parcel Number 19-04-159-004; 
Parcel Number 19-05-254-019; Parcel Number 19-05-254-020; 548 California Ave., Parcel Number 19-
05-207-026; California Avenue Parcel Number 19-05-252-012; 586 California Ave. Parcel Number 19-
05-207-031; in Pontiac Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to sell the following Side-Lot parcels: 232 E. Wilson Parcel Number 14-33-
334-009; Parkdale Parcel Number 14-20-106-006; 82 Rockwell Parcel Number 14-32-430-027; 32 Bennett Parcel 
Number 14-20-383-026; Parcel Number 14-22-129-021; S. Jessee Parcel Number 14-33-180-006; 113 Strathmore 
Parcel Number 14-17-329-011; Stout St. Parcel Number 14-32-107-040; S. Sanford Parcel Number 14-28-460-012; 
172 S. Francis Parcel Number 14-33-205-026; Arthur St. Parcel Number 19-05-252-032; S. Anderson Parcel Number 
14-33-278-021; in Pontiac, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac should give public notice of the hearing not less than 10 days or 
more than 30 days before the hearing; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE If RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac City 
Council hereby schedules a public hearing to sell vacant, City-owned parcels in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, and State of Michigan, such hearing g to be held on October 10, 2023 at 6:00 PM: 

CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml Lf8342 • Phone: 248.758.3000 • www.pontiac.rni.us 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

F 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

September 19, 2023 

Honorable City Council 

Deborah Younger, Economic Development Manager 

Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing to Approve the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 

Application (OPRA) district Red Chickweed, LLC for Pacel Number 

14-27-306-014 located at 31 N. Astor Street, Pontiac, Ml 

In accordance with Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended, prior to an 
establishing an obsolete property rehabilitation district a public hearing must be held followed by a 
resolution to approve the district. Red Chickweed, LLC is requesting the establishment of a district for 31 
N. Astor Huron Street. 

Constructed in 195s, Longfellow School (31 N. Astor) opened its doors as a 24-classroom school. The 
school closed its doors in 2010. The building is approximately 35,645 square feet with two stories and a 
1,631 detached former boiler house just west of the school building. 

The proposed $31million project will be multi-family, mixed-use, consisting primarily of 180 loft-style 
rental apartments and commercial nonprofit and local business space 

A notice for the public hearing should be posted 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

CITY OF PONTIAC. MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, M! 48342 • Phone: 248.758.3000 • www.pontiac.mi.us 





CONSENT 
AGENDA 

G 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

D 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

September 19, 2023 

Honorable City Council 

Deborah Younger, Economic Development Manager 

Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing to Approve the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 

Application (OPRA) of Exemption Certificate for HASAP, LLC for Pacel Number 

14-29-409-010 Located at 48 W. Huron Street, Pontiac, Ml 

In accordance with Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended, prior to an 
Exemption Certificate a public hearing must be held followed by a resolution to approve the application. 
HASAP, LLC is requesting an exemption for 48 W. Huron Street. 

Constructed in 1956, 48 West Huron Street, is a 3-story office and manufacturing building containing 
approximately 75,000 square feet. The building was historically the headquarters for the Oakland Press 
newspaper organization and has been vacant since the early 2000s. 

The buildings facades, finishes, and mechanical systems are dated and in need of repairs and upgrades. 
The building is currently vacant and requires significant investment to return to productive reuse. 

The proposed $7 million renovation will accommodate a mixture of uses to include office, restaurant and 
flex/creative space. A portion of the building may be demolished to allow greater pedestrian 
connectivity with the downtown core as well as future planned developments in the immediate 
proximity. This building will be the centerpiece of a larger redevelopment piece in the immediate 
neighborhood. 

A notice for the public hearing should be posted 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN L,7450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac. Ml L18342 • Phone: 248.758.3000 • www.pontiac.rni us 



 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY 
COUNCIL 

 

RESOULUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO APPROVE THE OBSOLETE PROIPERTY 
REHABILITATION APPLICATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR HASAP, LLC FOR PARCEL 
NUMBER 14-29-409-010 LOCATED AT 48 W. HURON STREET, PONTIAC MICHIGAN 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Obsolete Property Act (OPRA) P.A. 146 of 2000 as 

amended, the City of Pontiac, by resolution may approve an exemption certificate; and  

WHERAS, HASAP, LLC ("Petitioner) is the owner of that certain real property located in 

the City of Pontiac and legally described below (“Property "); and 

WHEREAS, Petitioner is requesting an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act Exemption 

Certificate (“Property”) for parcel number 14-29-409-010 located at 48 W. Huron St., Pontiac, 

Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac should give public notice of the hearing not less than 10 

days or more than 30 days before the hearing as set forth in the Obsolete Property 

Rehabilitation Act P.A.146 of 2000 as amended; and 

WHEREAS, construction, alternation or installation of the proposed facilities have not 

commenced at the time of the filing the applications for the obsolete property rehabilitation; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of 

Pontiac to schedule a public hearing to approve the application of the Obsolete Property 

Rehabilitation Application Exemption Certificate and to give notice of such a public hearing as 

provided in the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that Pontiac hereby 

schedules a public hearing to approve the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Application Exemption 

Certificate for parcel number 14-29-409-010, located at 48 W. Huron St.in the City of Pontiac, 

Oakland County, State of Michigan, such hearing to be held on October 10, 2023, at 6:00 PM; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac City Council hereby 

instructs the City Clerk to publish such public hearing notice 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

adopted by the City Council of Pontiac, County of Oakland, Michigan. 

 

 



CONSENT 

AGENDA 

H 



 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY 
COUNCIL 

 

RESOULUTION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO APPROVE THE OBSOLETE PROIPERTY 
REHABILITATION APPLICATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR 91 NORTH OZ, LLC FOR PARCEL 
NUJMBER 14-29-429-009 LOCATED AT 91 N. SAGINAW STREE, PONTIAC MICHIGAN 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Obsolete Property Act (OPRA) P.A. 146 of 2000 as 

amended, the City of Pontiac, by resolution may approve an exemption certificate; and  

WHERAS, 91 North OZ, LLC ("Petitioner") is the owner of that certain real property 

located in the City of Pontiac and legally described below ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Petitioner  is requesting an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act Exemption 

Certificate (“Property ”) for parcel number 14-29-429-009, located at 91 N. Saginaw St., Pontiac, 

Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac should give public notice of the hearing not less than 10 

days or more than 30 days before the hearing as set forth in the Obsolete Property 

Rehabilitation Act P.A.146 of 2000 as amended; and 

WHEREAS, construction, alternation or installation of the proposed facilities have not 

commenced at the time of the filing the applications for the obsolete property rehabilitation; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of 

Pontiac to schedule a public hearing to approve the application of the Obsolete Property 

Rehabilitation Application Exemption Certificate and to give notice of such a public hearing as 

provided in the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that Pontiac hereby 

schedules a public hearing to approve the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Application Exemption 

Certificate for parcel number 14-29-429-009 at 91 N. Saginaw St. in the City of Pontiac, Oakland 

County, State of Michigan, such hearing to be held on October 10, 2023, at 6:00 PM; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the Pontiac City Council hereby 

instructs the City Clerk to publish such public hearing notice 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

 

 

 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

I 



City of Pontiac City Council 
A resolution to change the start time of the City Council Meeting on Tuesday, October 17, 2023, 

from 6pm to Noon. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the 
time change of the City Council Meeting on Tuesday, October 17, 2023 from 6pm to 
Noon and instructs the City Clerk to update the city council meeting calendar to reflect 
the time change. 



#2 

ORDINANCE 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO.#_ 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOW ADULT-USE MARIHUANA ESTABLISHMENTS TO OPERATE IN 
THE CITY OF PONTIAC PURSUANT TO THE MICHIGAN REGULATION AND TAXATION OF 
MARIHUANA ACT, INITIATED LAW 1 OF 2018, MCL 333.27951 ET SEQ.; TO PROVIDE FOR 
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES TO PERMIT AND REGULATE ADULT-USE MARIHUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE IMPOSITION OF PERMIT APPLICATION FEES 
AND RENEWAL FEES; AND TO IMPOSE CONDITIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF ADULT· 
USE MAR!HUANA ESTABLISHMENTS. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

ARTICLE __ . ADULT-USE MARIHUANA BUSINESS LICENSING 

Sec. 01. Title. 

The title of this ordinance shall be the "City of Pontiac Adult-Use Marihuana Business 

Ordinance." 

Sec. 02, Purpose and Intent. 

A, Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance Is to establish standards and procedures 

for the Issuance, regulatlon, renewal, suspension, and revocation of business licenses for adult

use marlhuana establishments In accordance with the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marlhuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333,27951 et seq. (''MRTMA") so as lo protect the 

public health, safely, and welfare of residents of the City by seHlng forth the manner In which 

adult-use marlhuana businesses can be operated In the City. Further the purpose of this 

Ordinance Is to: 

(1) Protect Iha heallh, welfare and safely of the publlc through reasonable regulations on 

adult-use marihuana business operations as It relates lo noise, odor, air and water quality, food 

safety, publlc safety, security for lhe establishments and Its personnel, and other health and safely 

concerns: 

(2) Protect residenllal zoned properties and neighborhoods by llmlling the location and the 

concentration of types of Marijuana Businesses to speclnc areas of the City; 

(3) Establish application and license fees to defray and recover the City's costs for 

administering and enforcing this ordinance; 



(4) Reeognlze that the Cily of Pontiac has been identified by the Slate of Michigan's 

Cannabis Regulatof)' Agency as a city that has been dlsproportlonately Impacted by marlhuana 

prohibition and enforcement and that social equity In the marlhuana Industry Is necessary to 

address the historical disproportionate Impact of rnarihuana prohlbltlon and enforcement upon 

Pontiac residents and to posltlvely Impact the Pontiac community; 

(6) Mlnlmlze the adverse effects from growing, processing, dispensing and storage of 

marlhuana; 

(6) Minimize the adverse effects from excessive consumption and use of marihuana; 

(7) Coordinate with state laws and regulations addressing Marlhuana Businesses; and 

(8) To restrict the issuance of Marihuana Business permits only to those Individuals and 

entitles that demonstrate an intent and ability to fully comply with this Ordinance and the laws of 

the City and the State of Michigan. 

B. Legislative Intent This ordinance authorizes the establishment of adult-use 

rnarlhuana businesses within the Clly of Pontiac consistent with the provisions of MRTMA, subject 

to Iha following: 

(1) Use, distribution, culllvalfon, production, possession, and transportation of 

marthuana remains lllegal under federal law, and marlhuana remains classified as a "controlled 

substance" by federal law. Nothing In this ordinance is Intended to promote or condone the 

production, distribution, or possession of marihuana In violation of any applicable law. Nothing in 

this ordinance Is Intended to grant Immunity from any criminal prosecution under slate or federal 

law, This ordinance does not protect the owners of properties on which a marihuana commercial 

operation is occurring from prosecution or from having their property seized by federal law 

enforcement authorities. 

(2) This ordinance is to be construed to protect the public health, safely and welfare 

over commercial adult-use marlhuana business Interests. The operalfon of a permitted adult-use 

marlhuana business in the City Is a revocable privilege and not a right in the City, Nothing In this 

ordinance Is to be construed to grant a property right for an Individual or business entity to engage, 

obtain, or have renewed a City-Issued permit lo engage In the use, distribution, cultlvallon, 

production, possession, transportation or sale of adult-use marihuana as a commercial enterprise 

2 



In the City. The Cily determines that the commerclallzatton of marlhuana Is a "closely regulated 

Industry" as that term ls used In U.S. Supreme Court jurisprudence, 

(3) Any Individual or business enllty which purports to have engaged In the u$e, 

distribution, cultivation, production, possession, transportation or sale of marlhuana as a 

commercial enterprise In the City without obtaining the required authorization required by this 

ordinance Is deemed to be an Illegally established nuisance, and as such Is not entitled to legal 

nonconfonnlng status under this ordinance, the City zoning ordinance, or state statutory or 

common law, 

(4) Nothing In this ordinance Is Intended to grant Immunity from criminal or civil 

prosecution, penalty or sanction for the cultrvatlon, manufacture, possession, use, sale, 

distribution or transport of marlhuana In any fonn that Is not in strict compliance with the MRTMA 

and lhe Marihuana Tracking Act, and all applicable admlnlstralive rules promulgated by the State 

of Michigan regarding the commerclalizatlon of marlhuana, Strict compliance with all applicable 

state laws and regulations ls a requirement for the Issuance or renewal of any permit issued under 

this ordinance, and noncompliance with any applicable state law or regulation Is grounds for the 

revocation or nonrenewal of any pennil Issued under this ordinance, 

C, Indemnification oflhe City. 

(1) By accepting a pennll Issued pursuant to this ordinance, the holder Waives and 

releases the City, Its officers, elected officials, and employees from any llabillty for Injuries, 

damages or llabillties of any kind that result from any arrest or prosecutlon of marihuana business 

owners, operators, employees, clients or customers for a violation of state or federal laws, rules 

or regulations, 

(2) By accepting a permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance, the holder agrees to 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, elected officials, employees, and 

Insurers, against ali llablilly, claims or demands arising on account of any claim of dlminutlon of 

property value by a property owner whose property Is located In proximity to a licensed operal!ng 

marihuana business arising out of, claimed to have arisen out of, or In any manner connected 

with the operation of a marlhuana business or any claim based on an alleged Injury to business 

or property by reason of a claimed violation of the federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt 

Organizations Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c). 

3 



D. Reservation. 

(1) The City of Pontiac shall not waive or constrain, In any manner, the right and 

prerogative of the City of Pontiac to reject any and all appllcallons, to reject an application not 

accompanied wllh the required documentation or data required by the appllcatlon, or lo reject an 

appllcaUon which ls any way Incomplete, Irregular, not responsive or not responsible. 

(2) The City of Pontiac shall not waive or constrain, In any manner, the right and 

prerogative of the City of Pontiac to amend or repeal this ordinance in any manner, lncludlng, but 

not limited to, the complete prohibition of any type of adult-use marlhuana business or llmltlng the 

number and types of adult-use marlhuana businesses authorized to operate In the City. 

(3) Nothing In this ordinance Is lo be construed to grant or grandfather any marlhuana 

business a vested right, license, permit or privilege for continued operatlons within the City. 

Sec. 03. Definitions. 

Unless defined by this ordinance, any term used In this Section that Is defined by the MRTMA, or 

the Administrative Rules promulgated by the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory 

Affairs addressing marlhuana shall have the definition given In MRTMA and In the Rules, 

As used In this Section, the following terms shall have the meanings Indicated; 

"Applicant" means a person who applles for a City-Issued perrntt to operate a Marihuana Business in 

accordance wHh the terms of this Ordinance and the City zoning ordinance. With respect to disclosures 

In ail appllcatton for a permit Issued pureuant to this Ordinance for purposes of Ineligibility for a permit 

and the transfer of an interest In an Issued penntt, the term "appllcant" Includes a managerial employee 

of the applicant, any person who holds AAY.s direct or Indirect ownership interest Me--Mafituiooa 

Buslnesi;;, andof 6% or more In the applicant. Any person or entity who owns less than 6% of direct 

or Indirect ownership In the applicant but who exercises control over or participates In the 

management of the applicant shall be deemed to be an Applicant. Applicant Includes the 

following ~~nterei;t-for each type of applicant: 

~ .(§}__For an Individual or sole proprietorship: the proprietor and spouse. 

4 



5 

{,a} M_For a partnership and llm~ed llablllty partnership: all partners 

holding a direct or Indirect ownership Interest of 6% or more In the partnership and 

their spouses. 

(3) M_For a limited partnership and limited llablllty limited partnership: all 

general and limited partners holding a direct or Indirect ownership Interest of 6% 

or more In the llmiled partnership or limited liability limited partnership, and their 

spouses. 

~ !QL...For a limited liablllly company: all members a!ldholdlng a direct or 

Indirect ownership Interest of 6% or more ln the llmlled llablllty company and their 

spouses, eng all managers, and their spouses. 

~ .{fil__For a privately held corporation: all corporate officers or persons 

with equivalent tltles and their spouses, all directors and their spouses, and all 

stockholders holding a direct or Indirect ownership interest of 6% or more in the 

privately held corporation, and their spouses. 

~ ID,___For a publicly held corporation: all corporate officers or persons with 

equivalent titles and their spouses, all directors and their spouses, and all 

stockholders holding a direct or Indirect ownership interest of 6% or rt]ore In the 

publloly held corporation, and their spouses. 

~ !Jll_For a multllevel ownership enterprise: any entlty or person that 

receives or has the right to receive 6% or more of the gross or net profits from the 

enterprise during any full or partial calendar or fiscal year. 

(8) .{hL_For a nonprofit corporation: all Individuals and entitles with 

membership or shareholder rights in accordance with the articles of Incorporation 

or the bylaws and their spouses. 

~ .(!L_For a trust: all trustees, any Individual or &OOYMl!ti able to control 

and direct affairs of the trust, and any beneficiary who receives or has the right lo 

receive 6% or more of the gross or net profit distributions of the trust during any 

full or partial calendar or fiscal year, and their spouses. 



"Application" means the form(s) provided by the City, accompanied with the nonrefundable 

application fee per each pennlt requested. 

"City" means the City of Pontiac, Michigan. 

"Class A marlhuana grower" means a grower licensed lo grow not more than 100 

marihuana plants. 

"Class A Mlcrobuslness" means a marlhuana establishment authorized lo operate at a single 

location and cultivate not more than 300 mature marlhuana plants; package marlhuana; purchase 

marihuana concentrate and marlhuana-lnfused products from licensed marthuana processors; 

sell or transfer marlhuana and marthuana-lnfused products lo Individuals 21 years of age and 

older; and transfer marihuana lo a safety compliance facility for testing. 

"Class B marlhuana grower" means a grower licensed lo grow not more than 600 

marlhuana plants, 

"Class C marlhuana grower" means a grower licensed lo grow not more lhan 2,000 

marlhuana plants. 

"Co-Locale" or "Co-Location" means any combination of growers, processors, retailers, social 

equity retailers, designated consumption, and Class A microbuslness establishments that are 

authorized by the City to operate as separate marlhuana businesses al a single property but 

with separate business suites, partitions, and separate means of public Ingress/egress from the 

exterior or from a common lobby area. 

"Cultivate" means to propagate, breed, grow, harvest, dry, cure, or separate parts of the 

marlhuana plant by manual or mechanical means. 

"Department" means the State of Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

(LARA), Including without lfmllalion, the Cannabis Regulatory Agency, or Its successor agency. 

"Designated Consumption Establishment " means a marihuana-related business authorized to 

permit Individuals 21 years of age and older lo consume marihuana products on the licensed 

commercial premises located In the C-2 Downtown Overlay District No. 3, 

6 



"Dlsquallfylng conviction" means a conviction that makes an applicant Ineligible to receive a 

license under MRTMA and the Rules. 

"Equivalent License" means any of the following slate operating licenses when held by a single 

l!censee: 

(1) Grower licenses of any class under both the Medical Marlhuana Facilities 

Licensing Act, MCL 333,27101 et. seq. (''MMFLA") and MRTMA. 

(2) Processor licenses under both the MM FLA and MRTMA. 

(3) Secure transporter licenses under both the MM FLA and MRTMA. 

(4) Safety compliance facility licenses under both the MMFLA and MRTMA. 

(5) A provisioning center llcense under the MMFLA and a retailer establ/shmenl 

license under the MRTMA. 

"Grower" means a licensee establishment that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and packages 

marlhuana for sale or transfer lo a processor, relaller, or another grower. 

"Industrial Hemp" means the tenn as defined al MCL 333.27953 (c). 

"License" means a llcanse that ls Issued by the Department under MRTMA that allows the 

licensee lo operate an adult-use marlhuana establishment In the Cily, 

"Marlhuana" means the term as defined at MCL 333.27953, For purposes of this Ordinance 

marihuana does no! Include Industrial hemp, 

"Marihuana accessories" means the term as defined at MCL 333,27953 (g), 

"Marihuana concentrate" means the resin extracted from any part of the plant of the genus 

cannabis. 

"Marlhuana Business" means the following adult-use marlhuana establishments, whether operated 

for profit or not for profit: (a) grower, (b) safety compliance faclllty, (c) processor, (d) retailer, (e) 

social-equity retailer, (f) secure transporter, (g) Class A mlcrobuslness, (h) designated consumption 

establishment, (I) marlhuana event organizer or 0) temporal)' marihuana event. 



''Marlhuana establishment" means a location at which a permittee Is permitted to operate under 

this Ordinance and MRTMA. 

"Marlhuana Event Organizer" means a person licensed to apply for a temporary marlhuana event 

license. 

"Marlhuana.Jnfused Product" means a topical formulation, tincture, beverage, edible substance, 

or similar product containing marlhuana and other Ingredients and that Is Intended for human 

consumption. 

"Marihuana Tracking Act" or "MTA" means Public Act 282 of 2016, MCL 333.27901, et seq., as 

amended and all future amendments. 

"Michigan Regulation and Taxation ofMarihuana Act" or "MRTMA" means, Initiated law 1 of 2018, 

MCL 333.27951, et. seq., as amended and all future amendments, 

"Permit" means the permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance authorizing the operation of a 

Marlhuana Business In the City. 

"Permlttee" means a person who receives and holds a permit to operate a Marihuana Business 

Issued by the City under this ordinance. 

"Person" means an Individual, sole proprietorship, parlnershlp, limited llablllty partnership, limited 

partnership, limited liability limited partnership, corporation, limited liability company, trust, or other 

legal entity, and Includes persons within lhe deflnlllon of "applicant" as Iha! term Is used In this 

Ordinance. 

"Processor" means a person licensed lo purchase or obtain marihuana from a grower 

establishment and who processes the marihuana and sells or transfers it In packaged form to a 

retafler, class A mlcrobuslness, or another processor. A processor Is not prohibited from handling, 

processing, marketing or brokering industrial hemp pursuant lo the Industrial Hemp Research and 

Development Act. 

"Retailer'' means a licensee that obtains rnarihuana from marlhuana establishments and sells or 

otherwise transfers marihuana to marlhuana establishments and to Individuals who are 21 years 

of age or older In accordance with MRTMA. 

8 



"Rules" means the unified administrative rules promulgated and from time to time amended by 

the Department to Implement the MMFLA and MRTMA. 

"Safety Compliance Faclllty" means a person licensed to test marlhuana, including certification 

for potency and the presence of contaminants. 

"Secure Transporter'' means a person licensed to obtain marlhuana from marlhuana 

establishments In order lo transport marlhuana to marlhuana establishments. 

"School" means and Includes buildings and grounds used for school purposes to provide 

Instruction lo children and youth In grades pre-kindergarten through 12 by a public, private, 

denominational, or parochial school. 

"Social Equity-Qualified Business" mean a marihuana establishment operated by an applicant 

that qualifies for the benefits offered under the social equity program administered by either the 

Department or the City. 

"Stakeholder'' means, with respect to a trust, the trustee and beneficiaries; with respect to a limited 

llability company, all members ME!wilh a direct or Indirect ownership Interest greater than 6% and 

ill managers; with respect to a corporation, whether profit or non-profit, all stockholders with @ 

direct or Indirect ownership Interest greater than 6%, directors, corporate officers or persons with 

equivalent titles; and with respect to a partnershlf}-i)f, limited llablllly partnership, llmlted 

partnership and limited llabillty limited partnership all general and limited partners. 

with a direct or Indirect ownership Interest greater than 6%. 

8 



"State" means the Slate of Michigan. 

"State Operattng License" means a Ucense that Is Issued by the Department under MRTMA that 

allows the llcensee to operate an adult-use marlhuana establishment, as specified in the llcense. 

"Temporary Marlhuana Event" means a llcense held by a marihuana event organizer for an event 

where the onslle sale or consumption of marihuana products, or both, are authorized at the 

location Indicated on the state license during the dales indicated on the slate license. 

Sec. 04. Creation of Marlhuana Business Commission; composition; Quorum 

(a) There Is hereby created a Marihuana Business Commission. There shall be four (4) 

members of the Marlhuana Business Commission. The membership shall elect from among Its 

members a chairman, vice-chairman, and secreta,y. 

(b) A quorum of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall consist of three (3) members. 

Sec. 05. Marlhuana Business Commission Membership; Quallflcatlons; Term; Vacancies; 

Compensation. 

(a} Members of the Marihuana Business commission shall be residents of the city, and shall be 

chosen so far as reasonably pracllcable In such a manner as to represent 8 cross-section of the 

community. 

(b) Members of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall be appointed by the mayor fo serve 

at the pleasure of the mayor for a term of three (3) years. Reappointment of a member to serve 

en additional consecutive term is subject to council approval. 

(c) If a vacancy occurs on the Marihuana Business commission, the mayor shall appoint a new 

member to fill the vacancy, 

(d) Members of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall setve without pay. 

Sec. 06. Marihuana Business Commission Powers and Duties, 

The Marihuana Business Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to 

ft by the cler!( under this ordinance. The Marlhuana Business Commission shall review all appeals 

de nova. The Marlhuana Business Commission shall only overturn a decision or finding of the 

clerk if It finds such decision or finding lo be arbitrary or capricious and not supported by material, 

10 



substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the clerk In arriving at such 

decision or finding. 

Sec. 07. Marihuana Business Commission Rules and Regulations; Meetings. 

(a) The Marihuana Business Commission shall adopt such rules and regulations as ii deems 

necessary to govern Us proceedings and dellberal!ons. 

(b) The rules and regulations adopted by the Marlhuana Business Commission shall be subject 

lo approval by the council. 

(c) The Marlhuana Business Commission shall maintain a written record of Its proceedings and 

actions which shall be available for public inspection, showing the action of the commission and 

the vote of each member upon each question considered. All meetings of the commission shall 

be held In conformance with the open meetings act, Act No. 267 of the Publlc Acts of 1976, being 

sections 15.261 lo 15.275 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. 

Sec. 08. Marlhuana Business Rules and Regulations. 

(a) In addition lo the Rules promulgated by the Department and the statutes of the Slate of 

Michigan, the operations of a Marlhuana Business shall be conducted In accordance with the 

provisions of this ordinance and the City Code of Ordinances, Including the zoning ordinance. 

(b) Retailer establishments, Social Equity Retailer establishments, and Class A 

Mlcrobusinesses located outside of the Downtown Overlay District shall be closed for business, 

and no sale or other distribution ofmarihuana In any fonn shall occur upon the premises, between 

the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Retailer establishments, Social Equity Retailer 

establishments and Class A Microbusinesses located in the Downtown Overlay District shall be 

closed for business, and no sale or other distribution of marlhuana in any fonn shall occur upon 

the premises, between the hours of2:00 a.m. and 7;00 a.m. 

(c) Delivery of a marihuana product for sale or transfer lo marihuana customers by Retailer 

Establishments and Social Equity Retailer Establishments ls permitted In strict compliance with 

Department Rules. 

11 



(d) Drive throughs and drive through, walk-up window service, and curbside service shall be a 

prohibited use for all Retailer Establishments, Social Equity Retailer Establishments and Class A 

Mlcrobuslnesses. 

Sec. 09. Licensing of Adult-Use Marihuana Businesses. 

(a) Number of permllled adult-use Marihuana Businesses. 

Type of Establishment 

Grower 

Processor 

Secure transporter 

Retailer 

Social Eqully Retailer 

Class A Mlcrobuslness 

Safely compliance faclllty 

Designated Consumption Establishment-North of Huron Street 

Designated Consumption Establishment-South of Huron Street 

Marihuana event organizer 

Temporary marlhuana event 

Nol[mlt 

Nollmlt 

No limit 

17 

6 

5 

No llmll 

3 

3 

No limit 

No limit 

Sec, 10. City Marlhuana Business Permlt and Annual Fee Required. 

(a) No person shall establish or operate a Marihuana Business located In the City without first 

meeting all of the requirements set forth In this Ordinance, obtaining a permit from the City Clerk, 

and obtaining a Slate Operating License. Permits and State Operating Licenses shall be kept 

current and publicly displayed within the business. Failure to maintain or display current state 

licenses and City permils Is a vlolallon of !his ordinance. A Marihuana Business operating without 

a City permit under this Ordinance or without a Slate license is declared to be a public nuisance. 

(b) There shall be an initial application fee of $5,000.00 and an annual nonrefundable renewal 

of penn11 fee of $5,000.00 lo defray the administrative and enforcement costs associated with 

marlhuana businesses located In the City. 

(c) The City permit fee requirement set forth In this ordinance shall be In addition to, and not In 

lieu of, any other licensing and permitting requirements Imposed by the Department and any other 

12 



state regulatory agency, or by City ordinance, Including, by way of example, and not limited to, 

any appllcable fees for site plan review, zoning review, Inspections, or bulldlng permits, 

(d) A separate pem1lt is required for each Marihuana Business co-localed al a premises from 

which adult-use marihuana commercial businesses are operated. Operation of a grower, 

processor, retailer establishment or social equity retailer estabtrshment, Class A mlcrobuslness, 

and designated consumption establishment at the san\e co•location Is authorized, provided that 

each establishment Is separately licensed and permitted. Co-Location of a retailer establishment 

or social equity retailer establishment, Class A mlcrobuslness and a designated consumption 

establishment at the same location as a grower or processing establishment Is authorized when 

In conformity with the City zoning ordinance. 

(e) Wlthln thirty (30) days of approval of the applicant's application, the applicant will start all 

necessary requirements as required by the City lo obtain their certificate of occupancy, lncludlng, 

without limitation, complying with all applicable building department, fire department, code and 

Inspection requirements, Including the approval of the site plan, 

(f) All Marlhuana Business permits shall be effective for one (1) year of Us original date of 

Issuance by the City and must be renewed annually, 

(g) The conditional permlltee has one (1) year lo complete Its site plan upon the approval of the 

Issuance of the Marlhuana Business conditional permit. The Community Development Director 

may extend the completion of the site plan up to an addfflonal six months, provided the applicant 

demonstrates good cause for the extension, 

Sec. 11, Location Criteria. 

13 

(a) No marihuana business is eligible to receive a permit unless at the time the application 

for the marlhuana business operating permit Is submitted, the location of the proposed 

business operation complies with the requirements set forth in the City zoning ordinances 

as required for the specific type of marihuana commercial business for whtch lhe permit 

Is being sought. 

(b) Mobile marlhuana b4slnesses and limited contact transaction operations are prohibited. 

(c} A permlttee shall not operate a marihuana business al any location In the City other than 

at the address provided In the application on file with the City Clerk. 



Sec, 12. General Pennlt Application Requirements. 

(a) An applicant seeking a pennlt pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance arid licensure by 

the state under MRTMA must submlt an application In writing to the City Clerk on forms provided 

by the City Clerk. At the time of appllcalfon, the application must be accompanied by a 

nonrefundable appllcaUon fee of $5,000.00 to defray the costs incurred by the City for processing 

of the appllcallon. In addition, the applicant shall present copies of government-Issued 

photographic ldentttlcatlon to accompany the application. Applicants are limited to one applfcatlon 

per location. Multlple applications for the same establishment location shall be dlsquallfled. 

(b) An application shall be complete and made under the penally of pe~ury and shall contain 

all of the followlng: 

14 

(1) The appllcants, all of Its stakeholders, and the proposed manager's full name, dale 

of birth, residential and business address, email address, and telephone numbers 

Including emergency contact Information, and a copy of a government-Issued 

photographic Identification card of the applicant and all stakeholders: 

(a) If the applicant Is an Individual or sole proprietorship, the proprietor and their 

spouse, If any, shall provide their name, address, date of birth, business address, 

business telephone number, email address, social security number, and, If applicable, 

federal tax Identification (EIN) number. 

(b) If the applicant Is not an Individual or sole proprietorship, the applicant shall 

provide information regarding the business entity, Including, wllhout limitation, the name 

and address of the entity, website address (lf any), type of business organization, proof 

of registration with, or a cert!flcate of good standing from, the Stale of Michigan, or other 

state or foreign Jurisdiction, as app!lcable, and the names, dates of birth, residential and 

business addresses, email addresses, phone numbers of each applicant, each 

stakeholder and their spouses, and the federal tax ldentiflcallon number of the business 

entity. 

(2)..-+he-lE!efllily-of every pel'Sofl-AAIJlng-a!HlWA8™\l)Hll'-b8fleflslal-lAtefest.lA-lh&-af'lpUsaf\l 

wt~eel to which the license Is soughl;---IAGAAilngRegardless of the definition of 

Applicant. each applicant shall disclose In the application the ownership structure of the 

enlily lhal leelllifiasappllcant entity and the Identity of every person or entity having a 



15 

direct or indirect ownership lnjerest In the applicant by providing the entity or lnd!Vldyal 

name. the ownership percentage-4leld by each elakehGklet=, email address, malling 

address and If applicable, the date of birth: provided, however, a social equity-qualified 

business entity who Is an appllcant must be able toalso demonstrate 51% or more 

ownership by qualifying social-equity appllcantSr-lAGkldlRg ovmarahip slrl-lclure of the 

enlit-y n1at ldamllles-llle 8Wll8f&h~tage !laid by eaoh slak&lwleef:-. Anv person or 

entity who owns less than 6% of a direct or Indirect ownershfp In the applfcant but who 

exercjses control over or participates In the management of the applicant shall be 
deemed lo be an Applicant, If: 

a) the disclosed entity Is a trust. the applicant shall disclose the names 

and addresses of the beneficiaries, 

bl lhe disclosed entity Is a privately held corporation, the names and 

addresses of sll shareholders holding a direct or indirect Interest of 

greater than 6%, officers, and directors. 

cl Iha disclosed entlly Is a publicly held oorporatlon, the names and 

addresses of all shareholders holding a direct or Indirect Interest of 

greater than 5%, offlC§rs, and directors. 

d\ the disclosed enlily ls a paanershlp or Umlled llabllily partnership, the 

names and addresses of all partners. 

e) the disclosed enllly Is a limited partnership or linilted llabilllv limited 

partnership, the names of all partners, both general and limited. 

O the disclosed entity Is a limited liability company. the names and 

iiddresses of all members holding a direct or Indirect Interest of greater 

than 5%, and managers. 

(3) If the applicant is not an Individual, the articles of Incorporation or organization, federal 

tax ldenllfioalion number and confirmation letter, and the llmlled liability company's 



16 

operating agreement, the corporation's shareholder agreement and bylaws, and the 

partnership agreement for a partnership or limited partnership, as applicable. 

(4) A copy of the appl[cant's notice of prequaliflcation status Issued by the Department to 

operate an adult-use marlhuana establishment. If the appltcant does not have adult-use 

prequallficatlon status from the Department, the appUcatlon wlll not be processed by the 

City, 

(5) The name and address of the proposed Marihuana Business and any additional 

contact information deemed necessary by the City Clerk, lncludlng the following: 

(a) A copy of the deed reflecllng the applicant's ownership of the proposed 

permitted premises, or a purchase agreement or optlon to purchase the proposed 

permitted premises as applicable; or 

(b) A copy of the lease reflecting the right of the applicant to possess, or an 

• agreement or option reflecting the applicant's right to lease, the proposed permitted 

premises, and a notarized statement from the owner of such property authorizing the use 

of the property for a marlhuana business as applicable, 

(6) For the applicant and every stakeholder, affirmation from the applicant that each Is at 

least 21 years of age. 

(7) A criminal history background report of the applicant's criminal history from Iha 

Internet Criminal History Access Tool (ICHAT) or a Michigan Slate Police criminal history 

report for applicants residing In Michigan, For applicants who reside In any other stale, 

federal or foreign Jurisdiction, or who have resided In any other state, federal or foreign 

Jurisdiction within 5 years prior to the date of the application provide a certified state, 

federal or foreign jurisdiction sponsored or authorized criminal history report. The 

applicant Is responsible for all charges Incurred In requesting and receiving the criminal 

history report and the report must be dated within thirty {30) days of the date of the 

application. For purposes of this subsection {7) an applicant includes a managerial 

employee of the applicant and any person who exercises control over or participates In 

the management of the applicant. I . _______________ . ___________________ - - ·1 co,nme,n~~ IBIY!S1Ji Inserted Into the dJltloltloo ·• 
.. of1~aQpllcagt11 and "stakeholder'' generally. 



17 

(8) Written consent authorizing the City to obtain a criminal history report from the 

Michigan State Pollce, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, or other appllcable state, 

federal or foreign Jurisdiction law enforcement or police agency, to ascertain whether the 

applicant and stakeholders have any disqualifying convictions or convlcttons involving 

dishonesty, theft, fraud, or controlled substances. 

(9) A current organization chart that Includes position descriptions and the names of each 

person holding such position, which shall Include date of birth, address, copy of photo 

Identification, and email address for any operator, manager, or employee If other than the 

applicant. 

(10) A complete 11st of all marlhuana related business permits and llcenses held by 

applicant. 

(11) An attested disclosure whether the applicant or operator has ever had a business 

license revoked or suspended, and If revoked or suspended, the reason for such 

revocation or suspension and copies of the orders of revocation or suspension. 

(12) An attestation that no applicant or stakeholder Is Ineligible from holding a state 

license to operate a marlhuana commercial business. 

(13) An attestation that the applicant consents to inspecllons, examinations, searches 

and seizures required or undertaken pursuant to enforcement of this ordinance. 

(14) A statement that no appl!cant Is In default to the City for any property tax, special 

assessment, utility charges, fines, fees or other financial obllgatlon owed lo the City. 

(15) For the applicant and for each stakeholder,. a resume that includes a business history 

and any prior experience with a marihuana•related business. 

(16) The proposed business plan of the applicant, which shall include without limitation, 

the following: 

(a) A description of the type of the proposed adult.use marlhuana commercial 

operation and Its physical address; and 
\ 



18 

(b) A staffing plan which describes the anticipated or actual number of 

employees, Including an estimate of the number and type of Jobs that the business ls 

expected to create, a proposed living wage or salary (at least 200 percent of the Federal 

Poverty Level for a family of two, at Its hourly basis) for all employees pursuant to MCL 

125.3501, MCL 125.3602, MCL 125.3504, article Vil, § 34 Construction of constitution 

and law concerning counties, townships, cltles, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, 

resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, and a 

health and welfare benefits package to be paid forsuchjobs, unless otherwise prohibited 

by state law, and the goals and objectives to recruit, hire and promote residents of the 

City; and 

(c) A staff training and education plan that the applicant will provide to 

employees; and 

(d) The financial structure, source of financing, development and build-out 

budget and projected lnlllal operating budget of the proposed Marthuana Business; and 

(e) Short and long-tenn goals and objectives; and 

(f) An explanallon, with supporting factual data, of the economic benefits to the 

City and the Job creation for local residents to be achieved by the establishment , a proposed 

living wage or salary (at least 200 percent of the Federal Poverty Level for a family of two, 

at ~s hourly basis) for all employees pursuant to MCL 126.3501, MCL 125.3502, MCL 

126.3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constttutlon and law concerning counties, 

townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances; 

enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, and a health and welfare benefits 

package to be paid for such Jobs, unless otherwise prohibited by state law, Including plans 

for community outreach and worker training programs; 

(g) If co-location of Marlhuana Businesses is proposed, provide an explanation of 

the Integration of such businesses, including a drawing sh.owing the relationship between the 

businesses being co-located, Including floor area and the separation provided belWeen such 

facilities, including Identification of any points of entry, Ingress or egress, and controls at each 

locatlon; and 

(h) A neighborhood communication/education plan and strategies; and 



19 

(I) Any charitable plans and strategies whether through financial donations or 

volunteer work. 

(17) A lighting plan showing the lighting outside of the marlhuana business for security 

purposes and compliance with applicable City outdoor llghllng requirements; 

(18) A security plan, Including, but not limited to, llghllng, alarms, barriers, 

recording/monitoring dev{ces, safes, and/or security guard arrangements proposed for 

the establishment and premises. The security plan must contain the specification details 

of each Item of security equipment. 

(19) A to-scale diagram of the proposed llcensed premises, no larger than 11 Inches by 

17 Inches, showing, without llmitatlon, bulldlng floor plan and layout, all entryways, 

doorways, or passageways, and means of public entry and exits to the proposed licensed 

premfses, loading zones, available on-site parking spaces, Including handicapped 

accessible spaces, fencing at the premises, and all areas In which marlhuana will be 

stored, grown, manufactured or dispensed; 

(20) Any proposed elevation drawings, and photographs or other depiction of materials 

to be visible on the exterior of the proposed Marihuana Business. 

(21) A proposed marketing, advertising, and business promotion plan for the proposed 

Marihuana Buslness. 

(22) A description of planned tangible capital investment in the Ctty for each proposed 

Marihuana Business. 

(23) A social equity plan that (a) promotes and encourages participation and ownership 

In the marlhuana Industry by local residents that have been disproportionately Impacted 

by marlhuana prohibition and enforcement, and that (b) positively Impacts local residents. 

(24) A depiction of any proposed slgnage, text or graphic materials to be shown on the 

exterior of the proposed Marihuana Business. 

(25) A sanltallon plan designed to protect against any marlhuana being Ingested on 

the premises by any person or animal, describing how the waste and byproduct WIii be 

stored and disposed of, and how any marlhuana will be rendered unusable upon disposal. 



20 

The sanitation plan shall Include a copy of the proposed contract or letter of Intent 

between the Applicant and sanitation waste provider, 

(26) A proposed Inventory and recordkeeping plan that will track payment method, 

amount of payment, time of safe, product quantity, and other product descriptors and 

compliance with the requirements of the Department. 

(27) Proof of financial responslblllty In the form of a commitment or letter of Intent to 

issue an Insurance policy covering the business and naming the City of Pontiac, Its 

elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents, as additional insured parties, 

primary and non-contributory available for the payment of any damages arising out of an 

act or omission of the applicant or Its stakeholders, agents, employees, or subcontractors, 

In the amount of: 

a, at least Two Mllllon Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage; 

b. at least rwo MIiiion Dollars ($2,000,000) for Injury to one (1) person; and 

c. at least Two MIiiion Dollars ($2,000,000) for injury to two (2) or more person 

resulting from the same occurrence. 

The insurance policy underwriter must have a minimum A.M. Best Company 

Insurance ranking of 8+, consistent with state law. Toe policy shall provide that the City 

shall be notified by the insurance carrier thirty (30) days in advance of any cancellation 

or reduction In coverages. 

(28) A signed acknowledgement that the applicant understands that all matters related 

to marlhuana cultivation, possession, dispensing, testing, transporting, distribution and 

use are subject lo federal and state laws and regulations, and that the approval of a 

permit hereunder does not exonerate or excuse the applicant from abiding by the 

provtslons and requirements and penallles associated therewith, Further, the applicant 

completely releases and forever discharges the city and Its respective employees, 

agents, facllilies, Insurers, lndemnors, successors, heirs and/or assigns from any and all 

past, present or future claims, demands, obllgatlons, actions, causes of action, wrongful 

death claims, rights, damages, costs, losses of services, expenses and compensation of 

any nature whatsoever, whether based on a tort, contract or other theory or recovery, 



21 

whtch the applicant or Its stakeholders may now have, or whtch may hereafter accrue or 

olheiwlse be acquired, on account of, or may In any way arise out of the applicant or 

stakeholders' appllcalion for a permit and, tf issued a permit, the applicant or 

stakeholders' operation of a Marlhuana Business. 

(29) A scaled location area map that Identifies the relative locations of, and distances 

from, Schools, childcare center8, public parks, and religious institutions, as measured 

along the centerline of the s1reet or streets of address between two fixed points on the 

centerline determined by projecting straight lines, al right angles to the centerline, from 

the primary point of Ingress to the school, childcare center, religious lnstllullon, or public 

park, nearest to contemplated locatlon, and from the primary point of Ingress to the 

contemplated location, 

(30) If the applicant Is applying for a permit to operate a Retailer, a Social Equity 

Retaller, a Class A Mlcrobuslness, a Designated ConsurnpUon Establlshment, or a 

Temporary Marlhuana Event, a description of drug and alcohol awareness programs to 

be provided by the applicant to customers and the public. 

(31) If the applfcanl fs applying for a permit lo operate a grower, a cultivation plan that 

lnclude8 a description of the cultlvallon methods to be used. Outdoor grows are 

prohibited. 

(32) If the applicant is applying for a permit to operate a grower, a chemical and 

pesticide storage plan that complies with the requirements of the Department. 

(33) An applicant for a Marlhuana Secure Transporter license shall provide copies of 

the vehicle registration for all commercial motor vehicles that will be used to transport 

marthuana or marihuana-lnfused products. A secure transporter must provide proof of 

no-fault i1utomObile Insurance with a. company licensed to do business In Michigan with 

limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for bodily 

Injury and property damage, 

(34) Any other Information requested by the City Clerk considered to be relevant to the 

processing or consideration of the appllcatlon. 



(c) An applicant may apply for multiple Marlhuana Business permits of the same or different 

nature, except that Class A Mlcrobuslness applicants may not hold an ownership Interest In a 

grower, processor, retailer, or social equity retailer, and social equity retailer permits are llmlled 

to social equity qualified appllcants. No person who holds an ownership Interest in a safely 

compliance facility or In a secure transporter may hold an ownership interest In a grower, a 

processor, a retailer, a social equity retailer, or a Class A microbuslness, 

Sec.13. Marlhuana Business Permit Application Process. 

(a) Upon receipt of a completed application meeting the requirements of this ordinance and 

payment of the permit application fee, the Clerk shall refer a copy of the appllcallon to the fire 

department and the Community Development Department, the planning division, and other 

affected departments for review and compliance with the City Code. 

(b) No application for a permit shall be approved unless: 

(1) The fire department and the Community Development Department and other affected 

departments have Inspected !he proposed location for compliance wllh all state and local 

building, electrical, fire, mechanical and plumbing requirements. 

(2) The Community Development Department, the planning division, and other affected 

departments have confirmed that the proposed location comp!!es with the zoning ordinance. 

(3) The proposed Mar/huana Business has been fssued a certmcale of occupancy and, If 

necessary, a building permit. 

(4) The City Treasurer confirms the applicant and each stakeholder and the proposed 

localfon of !he Marihuana Businesses are not Jn default lo the City. 

(c) After sixty (60) days from the effective dale of this ordinance, the Clerk shall begin accepting 

adult-use Marihuana Business appllcallons for a pennlt to operate a grower, processor, secure 

transporter, safely compliance facility, marlhuana event organizer, and temporary marlhuana 

event. 

(d) The Clerk shall award a conditional pennlt to any applicant for a permit to operate a grower, 

processor, secure transporter, safety compllance facility, marlhuana event organizer, and 

temporary marihuana event, upon the delennfnalion by !he Clerk that the appllcalion Is complete, 

22 



the applicant receives the City and State of Michigan approvals required in this ordinance, and 

the applicant meets all of the requirements of this ordinance and the City Code, Including the 

zoning ordinance. If the City Clerk Identifies, or Is Informed of, a deficiency In an application, the 

applicant has two (2) weeks lo correct the deficiency alter notification by the City Clerk. The Clerk 

will grant a final pennll if the applicant obtains final site plan approval and special land use 

approval within 6 months of receiving a conditional pennlt, al¾I-Gbtalfl~~8lfflll-ffem 

!he City and an operallng- lloense fron1 !he Department wllfiln 18 menlhs after lf:le senGl!i&Aal 

pem11t Is granted and enters Into a written agreement with the City confirming that the marlhuana 

establlshment will operate In accordance with the business plans, building plans, design 

standards, social equity plans and all other operational standards described by the applicant in 

the application materials submitted, and obtains n permit from the City and an operating license 

from the Department within 18 months after the conditional permit Is granted. The agreement shall 

further provide that if the establishment breaches the agreement, then the City may revoke 

authorization of the establishment following notice and a public hearing, and that in such event, 

the City shall be entitled lo lnju_nctlve relief barring further operation of the establishment In the 

City. An extension of 6 months to obtain an operating permit from the City and an operating 

license from the Department may be granted in the discretion of the Clerk upon a showing of good 

cause for the delay. 

(e) Retailer, Socia! Equity Retailer, Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 

EstabllshmentApplloatlons. Afler&Wythlrty (M30) days from the effective date of this ordinance, 

a point-based scoring and ranking procedure shall be approved by Clly Council resolution and 

the Clerk shall set a 21-day appllcatlon window period during which applicants may apply for a 

Retailer, Social Equity Retaller (llmlted to Social Equity Qualified applicants), Class A 

Mlcrobuslnesa and Designated Consumption Establishment permits. After the 21-day application 

window closes, the Clerk shall assess, evaluate, score and rank all appllcatlons for permits to 

operate a Retaller, Social Equity Retailer, Class A Mlcrobusiness and Designated Consumption 

Establishment submitted during the twenty-one (21) day application window period. Toe Clerk 

shall review all submitted appllcatlons for completeness. 

(f) In Its application assessment, evaluation, scoring, ranking, and dellberations related to 

pennlts to operate a Retailer, Social Equity Retailer, Class A Mlcrobuslness, and Designated 

Consumption Establishment, the Clerk shall assess, evaluate, score, and rank each application 

based upon a point-based scoring and ranking procedure which shall be approved by City Council 

23 



resotut_lon, consistent with the requirements, conditions, and provisions of this ordinance In each 

of the following categories: 

24 

(1) The content and sufficiency of the lnfonnatlon required to be In the application under 

thfs ord!nance. App1icant must have submitted all required materials for each category In a 

professional, organized manner with clear and accurate labeling of all required Items. 

Failure to clearly and accurately label and organize the application materials wlll result In 

the deduction of points. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be 

five (5) points, 

(2) Whether the proposed Marihuana Business will have a detrimental Impact on the 

surrounding area and neighborhood Including the distance of the establishment lo 

properties zoned or used resldentlally; traffic patterns, traffic mitigation and resident safety; 

plans for litter conlrol, loitering, noise mitigation, odor mitigation, Applicant shall submit a 

traffic Impact study by a professional traffic engineer, Applicant shall submit a sanitation 

plan designed to protect against any marlhuana being Ingested on the premises by any 

person or animal, describing how the waste and byproduct will be stored and disposed of, 

and how any marlhuana will be rendered unusable upon disposal. The sanitation plan shall 

Include a copy of the proposed contract between the Applicant and sanitation waste 

provider. Applicant shall submit an odor control plan satisfying the criteria In Sec, 15 of this 

ordinance. The max/mum number of scoring points in this category shall be twenty (20) 

points. 

(3) Neighborhood Communication/Education Plan on behalf of the proposed Marlhuana 

Business. The plan shall include meetings, at least once per year, with the neighborhood 

organizations, residents and general public, and lo provide a contact for on-going public 

Information, questions and concern~. and written notice to all property owners within 

1500 feet of the marihuana business local!on, neighborhood organizations and City Clerk 

shall be provided a copy of the written notice two (2) weeks before the public meeting. In 

addition, to other methods of notice, the written notice shall be sent by mall at least two (2) 

weeks before the public meeting. The maximum number of scoring points In this category 

shall be ten (10) points. 

(4) Whether the applicant or Its stakeholders have made, or plan to make, significant 

physical Investment and improvements to the building where the proposed Marlhuana 



25 

Business Is lo be located, Including the applicant's financial structure, source of financing, 

development and build-out budget and projected lnltlal operating budget of the proposed 

Marlhuana Business and proposed tangible capital Investment; the current and proposed 

condition of the proposed locallon; and the applicant's ownership stake In the physical 

location of the establishment, The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall 

be ten (1 O) points, 

(5) Whether the applicant and all of Its stakeholders have a record of acts that are not 

detrimental to the public health, security, safety, morals, good order, or general welfare prior 

to the date of the application; applicant shall demonstrate and document a history of 

regulatory compllance with all federal, slate and local laws and regulatlons, and shall 

disclose all complaints, Judgments, convlctlons, administrative and regulatory decisions, 

permit and license suspensions, revocations and fines, rendered by any federal, state and 

local government agencies, Including but not llmlted to wage and hour laws, anti

discrimination and civil rights laws, and occupatlonal, health and safety laws. The maximum 

number of scoring points In this category shall be ten (10) points. 

(6) Whether the appllcant has disclosed and documented sufficient financial resources 

and total amount of capltallzallon to develop, operate and maintain a Retal.ler, Social Equity 

Retailer, Class A Mlcrobusiness or Designated Consumption Establishment, and 

demonstrates the requisite business experience to execute, the submitted business plan 

and other plans required by this ordinance. The applicant should disclose and document 

sources and total amount of capitallzalion lo operate and maintain a Retailer establishment, 

a Social Equity Retailer, Class A Microbuslness and Designated Consumption 

Establishment, and Include a CPA attested flnanclal statement, a valid proforma for three 

years, proof of financial responsibility In the form of a commitment or letter of Intent lo issue 

an insurance policy satisfying the criteria In Sec.12 (b)(27) of this ordinance, attest that the 

applicant and any of Its owners have not filed bankruptcy in the last seven (7) years, have 

not had liens placed upon financial accounts or property by the Internal Revenue Service or 

state Treasuries, and has filed personal and/or corporate Income tax returns for the past 

flve (5) years, The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be twenty {20) 

points. 



28 

(7) Description of staffing plan that Includes the number and type of full-time and part-time 

positions the applicant Intends to create; the proposed living wage or salary (al least 200 

percent of the Federal Poverty Level for a famlly of two, at its hourly basis) for all employees 

pursuant to MCL 125.3501, MCL 125.3602, MCL 126.3604, article VII,§ 34 Construction of 

constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, villages and article VII, § 22 

Charters, resolultons, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, the 

applicant Intends to pay employees, unless otherwise prohibited by state faw; whether the 

applicant has articulated plans and strategies to recruit, hire and mentor for career 

advancement, a percentage of diverse residents from the City of Pontiac, Including those 

residents who are veterans, low Income andfor have a prior controlled substance record 

(excluding distribution of a controlled substance to a minor); a staff training and education 

plan that the appllcanl will provide to employees; an explanation, with supporting factual 

data, of the economic benefits to the City and the Job creation for local residents lo be 

achieved by the establishment; short and long-term goals and objectives; and whether the 

applicant has articulated plans to provide employee health and welfare benefit plans, 

Including, but not limited lo, sick leave, maternity leave, and paternity leave, The applicant 

shall maintain and provide i:lata to the City Clerk supporting Its staffing plan which shall be 

considered at the time of renewal of any permit issued pursuant to this ordinance lo 

determine compliance, The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten 

(10) points. 

(8) Planned phllanthrop!c Initiatives and community Improvement programs aimed at the 

City of Pontiac, which may Include a $1,000 donatlon to a fund administered by the City 

used to promote social equity In the City of Pontiac, a negatively Impacted community, by 

promoting advocacy around criminal Justice Issues related to marlhuana prohibition, 

supporting youth who have been negatively Impacted by the war on drugs as It relates to 

the prohibition of marlhuana, and communlty education and outreach on adult-use 

marlhuana In general. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten 

(10) points. 

(9) Whether the applicant ~has current and final conditlonal approval for a medical 

marlhuana provisioning center permit pursuant to City of Pontiac's Medical Marthuana 

Facilities Ordinance, Article XXX , Section 26.1491 et seq., and ts not currently In default 

of compliance with Article XXX,aAf.l t:ias resewed site p1aA-aWroval--ffGm-fue--Glly.!$ 



27 

GGmmunity OevelepmeAt----Qepaftmef\t---afld has started conslrucUon of lho--m~lGal 

mafil:wana prO'Ji&lon~el'-&UbjMt-kl-re~pt of a 'Ja!ld W~emilt from lhe Glly nol 

le&½-than 30 days prior to tho appllaallon for Marlhwana Retailer er Seclal Equity Retailer 

pefff\l\ .• This subsection /9) does not apply to those applicants for a medical provisioning 

center permit who were Initially one of the five highest scoring appllcants In the zoning 

district where they applied but are no longer one of the five highest scoring applicants In the 

zoning district where they applied. The medical appllcanj entity who has current and final 

conditional approval for a medical marlhyana provisioning center permit shall be awarded 

the thirty (30) points in this category whether they apply for a retailer permit or a social egulh/ 

retailer permit as long as the entity qualifies as a social equity applicant when they apply for 

a social equity retailer permit under this Ordinance. Applicants with current and final 

conditional approval for a medical marlhuana provisioning center permit pursuant to City of 

Pontiac's Medical Marlhuana Facilllles Ordinance, Article XXX, Section 26.1491 et seq may 

apply for recreation al licenses al a different locatlon In any of the four districts allowed under 

Ordinance #2407. not only In the district where they were awarded their conditionally 

approved ooedlcal license. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be 

tw&Rty!hlrty (~M» points, 

(10) Whether the applicant has rehabilitated and/or redeveloped within three (3) years 

before the submittal of the eppllcatlon under this ordinance, or will rehabilitate and/or 

redevelop, an existing building by demolishing and rebuilding or completely renovating a 

bulldlng that has been vacant or had been vacant as registered with the City for one (1) year 

or more. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten (10) points, 

(11) Whether the applicant has rehabilitated and/or redeveloped within three (3) years 

before the submittal of the application under this ordinance, or will rehabilitate and/or 

redevelop, an existing building by demolishing and rebuilding or completely renovating a 

building that has-been Glted asmeets the definition of blighted or dangerous ef-haG-bam 

~ ~$ bll9hlea or aangero@-(as such term is defined In the City's Code of Ordinances)-. 

The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten (10) points, 

(12) Whether an applicant proposes a social equity plan that promotes and encourages 

social equity partlclpallon and ownership In the marlhuana industry by persons who reside 

in disproportionately Impacted communities In those Michigan communities designated by 



the State of Michigan, who have been disproportionately impacted by marijuana prohlbltton 

and enforcement, and to positively Impact those communities, In accordance with MCL 

333.27958(1)0). The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be fifteen 

(15) points. 

(13) Whether an applicant demonstrates social equity participation and greater than 50% 

ownership by persons who reside In disproportionately Impacted communllles in those 

Michigan communities designated by the State of Michigan, who have been 

disproportionately Impacted by marijuana prohibition and enforcement, and to posillvely 

Impact those communltles, In accordance with MCL 333.27958(1)(1). The maximum number 

of sc:-0rlng points In this category shall be fifteen (15) points. 

(14) Whether an applicant applying for a retailer or social equity retailer permit was the 

highest scoring condlllonally approved medical provisioning center applicant In the zoning 

district In which the applicant applied, Including all those applicants tied for the highest score 

In that zoning district. The maximum number of points In this category shall be ten (10) 

points. 

(9) Overall scoring and ranking shall be conducted and applled by the Clerk on the basis of 

assigned points from zero (0) points to one hundred and ~~five (4%.1§.§) points with 

lhe lowest overall total score as zero (0) points and the highest possible total score being one 

hundred and sixty five (165) points. 

(»,' Al !h.!) t:l)J)ChisJIJn of /he twenJy•L\ll.e (2~,\ day spp.lJMIIM petiPD, /!;.£, CJ.e.rk shaJJ b.eg.lr> 

processing applications for permits to operate retailer establishments, awarding lrr..condliional 

permits to ihe ~~highest scoring applicants. as limited by the applicable overlay 

;z:onlnqdlstrlcts. ~n the event of an evaluation scoring_ tia, which_ causes there to be more than_ .. ~, 

sevenleen t~7J appYIoan)s vino ao'n'1eve scores sulf1c'1ent \o quaYify for a pemffi, ~ne scor'mg-"eq 

applicants WIii be entered into a random draw and the tie will be resolved through a blind lottery 

drawing to determine which applicant will receive recommendation for approval. Those 

applications randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive a permit to operate a Retailer. In the 

event that the number of Retailer permits falls below the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance, the clerk shall not be required to score applicants. Instead, lhe clerk shall evaluate 

applications In the order thal they are submitted and shall award permits for Retailers to an 

applicant who submits a complete appllcatton, receives the approvals required in lhls section, and 

28 

Commented LSR2l: Chuck this laomiage would • ' 
giggesUbat Jf10 <if the 17 applicants Were . •• 
woodward appllcaots and tep scored In the top 
,u.,Jbea all 1 Q wmlld get It tin WaodWafd • 



meeh~ the requirements of this ordinance. However, In no event shall the number of Retailer 

permits exceed the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, 

(I) At the concluslon of the twenty-one (21} day application period, lhe Clerk shall begin 

processing applications for permits lo operate Class A Mlcrobusinesses, awarding condltional 

permits to the five (6) highest scoring applicants as limited by the applicable overlay zoning 

districts. In the event of an evaluation scoring lie, which causes there lo be more than five (6) 

applicants Who achieve scores sufficient lo qualify for a permit, the scorlng-lled applicants will be 

entered Into a random draw ,md the tie will be resolved through a blind lottery drawing lo 

determine which applicant will receive recommendation for approval. Those appllcattons 

randomly selected shall be ellglble lo receive a permit lo operate a Class A Mlcrobusiness. In the 

event that lhe number of Class A Microbuslness permits falls below the maximum number 

authorized under this ordinance, the Clerk shall not be required to score appl[canls. Instead, the 

Clerk shall evaluate applications In the order that they are submitted and shall award permits for 

Class A Mlcrobusinesses to an applicant who submits a complete appllcatlon, receives the 

approvals required in this section, and meets the requirements of this ordinance. However, In no 

event shall the number of Class A Mlcrobusiness pennlls exceed the maximum number 

authorized under this ordinance, 

Q) Al the conclusion of the twenty-one (21) day application period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing applications for permits to operate Designated Consumption Establishments, 

awarding conditional permits to the three (3) highest scoring applicants for the North of Huron 

locallons. In the event of an evaluation scoring lie, which causes there to be more than three (3) 

applicants who achieve scores sufficient to qualify for a permfl, the scoring-tied applicants will be 

entered Into a random draw and the Ile will be resolved through a blind lottery drawing lo 

determine which applicant wlll receive recommendallon for approval. Tho$e applications 

randomly selected shall be eligible lo receive a permit to operate a Designated Consumption. 

Establishment. In lhe event that the number of Designated Consumption Establishment permits 

falls below the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the Clerk shall not be required 

to score applicants. Instead, the Clerk shall evaluate appllcatlons In the order that they are 

submitted and shall award permits for Designated Consumplfon Establishment to an applicant 

who submits a complete appllcation, receives the approvals required In this section, and meets 

the requirements of this ordinance. However, In no event shall the number of Designated 

29 



Consumption Establishment permits exceed the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance. 

(I<) At the conclusion of the twenty-one (21) day application period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing applfcatlons for permits to operate Designated Consumption Establishments, 

awarding conditlonal permits to the three (3) highest scoring applicants for the South of Huron 

locations. In the event of an evaluation scoring tie, which causes there to be more than three (3) 

applicants who achieve scores sufficient to qualify for a permit, the scoring-tied applicants will be 

entered Into a random draw and the lie will be resolved through a blind lottery drawing to 

determine which applicant will receive recommendation for approval. Those applications 

randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive a permit to operate a Designated Consumption 

Establishment. In the event that the number of Designated Consumption Establishment permits 

falls below the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the Clerk shall not be required 

to score appllcants, Instead, the Clerk shall evaluate appffcatlons In the order that they are 

submitted and shall award permits for Designated Consumption Establishment lo an applicant 

who submits a complete application, receives the approvals required In this section, and meets 

the requirements of this ordinance. However, in no event shall the number of Designated 

Consumption Establishment permits exceed the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance. 

(I) Al the conclusion of the twenty-one (21) day applicat1on period, the Clerk shall begin 

processlng appllcatlons for permits to operate Social Equity Retailer establishments, awarding 

conditional permits to the six (6) highest scoring applicants as llmited by the applicable overlay 

zoning districts. In the event of an evaluatlon scoring tte, which causes there to be more than six 

(6) applicants who achieve scores sufficient to quallfy for a permit, the scoring-tied applicants wlll 

be entered Into a random draw and the tie will be resolved through a blind lottery drawing lo 

determine which applicant wlll receive recommendation for approval. Those applications 

randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive a permit to operate a Soclal Equity Retailer. In the 

event that the number of Socia! Equity Retailer permits falls below the maximum number 

authorized under this ordinance, the clerk shall not be required to score applicants. Instead, the 

clerk shall evaluate applications In the order that they are submitted and shall award permlls for 

Social Equity Retailers to an appllcant who submits a complete appllcallon, receives the approvals 

required In this section, and meets the requirements of this ordinance. However, In no event shall 

30 



lhe number of Socia! Equity Retailer pem11ts exceed lhe maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance. 

(m) The Clerk will grant a final pem1lt lo a retailer, soclal equity retailer, Class A mlcrobuslness 

and designated consumption establishment if the applicant obtains flnal site plan approval and 

speclal land use approval within 6 months of receiving a condillonal permfl, obtains an operating 

permit from the City and an operating license from the Department within 18 months after the 

conditional permit Is granted, and enters Into a written agreement with the City confirming that the 

marlhuana establishment will operate In accordance with the business plans, buildlng plans, 

design standards, social equity plans and all other operational standards described by the 

appllcant In the appllcatlon materials submitted. The agreement shall further provide lhal If the 

establishment breaches the agreement, then the City may revoke authorization of the 

establishment following notrce and a pubUc hearing, and that In such event, the City shall be 

entitled to Injunctive relief barring further operation of the establishment In the City. An extension 

of 6 months to obtain an operating permit from the City and an operating license from lhe 

Department may be granted In the discretion of the Clerk upon a showing of good cause for Iha 

delay. 

(n) Nothing In this section is Intended to confer a property or other right, duly, prlvllege or Interest 

In a permit of any kind or nature whatsoever, including, bul not limited to, any claim of entitlement. 

(o) The Clerk may engage professional expert consultant assistance in perfom1lng the Clerk's 

duties and responsibilities under this Ordinance. 

Sec. 14. Social Equity Retailers 

(a) Toe City has created a permit process to allow state social equity qualifiers to apply for 

and be awarded social equity retailer permits In zoning districts designated In the City zoning 

ordinance. The City shall permit six (6) social equity retailer licenses for social equity applicants, 

Including franchisees, who demonstrate and document 51% or more ownership by social equity 

qualifying applicants, Including ownership structure of the entity that Identifies the ownership 

percentage held by each stakeholder. 

(b) Social equity applicants for social equity retailer permits may apply for other available 

adult-use pem1lts Including retailer establishment permits, except they may not apply for a Class 

31 



A mlcrobuslness, safety compliance facility or secure transporter permit. Social equity retailer 

applicants are limited to one application per location. Multiple applications for the same soclal 

equity establishment location shall be dlsquallfled, 

Sec. 15. Odor Control. 

(a) No Marlhuana Business, permlttee, person, tenant, occupant, licensee, landlord or 

property owner shall permit the release of marlhuana odors from any origin to cause obvious 

odors emanating from the premises in which they derived and Interfere with the reasonable and 

comfortable use and enjoyment of another's property. Whether or not a marlhuana odor Interferes 

with the reasonable and comfortable use and enjoyment of another's property shall be determined 

by the objective standards of a reasonable person of normal sensltiVlty, 

(b) Marihuana Businesses shall use sufficient procedures lo prevent smoke, odor, debris, 

dust, fluids and other substances from escaping the premises of the Marlhuana Business. lf any 

smoke, odor, debris, dust, flulds or other substances leave the Marlhuana Business In a 

detectable amount sufficient to interfere with the reasonable and comfortable use and 

enjoyment of adjacent property, or that causes damage to property, the permltlee for the 

Marihuana Business and the owner of the premises shall be jointly and severally liable for such 

conditions and shall be responsible for Immediate, full cleanup and correcl!on of such condition. 

The permittee shall properly dispose of all such materials, and other substances In a safe, 

sanitary, and secure manner In compliance wl!h all federal and state laws and regulations, and 

this chapter. 

32 

1. A plan for ventllation of the Marihuana Business that describes the ventllation 

systems that will be used to prevent any odor of marlhuana off the premises or the 

business. Such plan shall also Include all venlilatlon systems used lo control the 

environment for the plants and describe how such systems operate with the systems 

preventing any odor leaving the premises, For marlhuana Infused products, such plan 

shall also Include all ventilation systems used to mlttgate noxious gases or other fumes 

used or created as part of the production process. 

2. Cultivated, produced, or distributed by a Marlhuana Business. A Marihuana 

Business shall be ventilated so that the odor of marihuana cannot be detected by a person 

with a normal sense of smell at the exterior of the Marlhuana Business or at any adjoining 

use or property. 



3. Sufficient measures and means of preventing smoke, odor, debris, dust, fluids and 

other substances from exiting a Marlhuana Business must be provided at all times. In the 

event that any odors, debris, dust, fluids or other substances exit a marlhuana 

establishment, the owner of the subject premises and the permitlee shall be jofnUy and 

severally liable for such conditions and shall be responsible for Immediate, full clean-up 

and correction of such condition. The Marlhuana Business shall properly dispose of all 

such materials, Items and other substances In a safe, sanitary and secure manner and In 

accordance wllh all applicable federal, stale and local laws and regulations. 

Sec.16. Social Equity 

(a) A permltee must use good-faith efforts In hiring employees who have been negatively 

Impacted by marlhuana prohibition. Adult-use recreallonal marlhuana businesses should use 

good-faith efforts to hire and retain 25 percent of Its employees who are )ow Income or live in the 

C!ly of Pontiac. 

Sec. 17. Class A Microbuslnesses 

(a) A Class A mlcrobuslness Is subject to all applicable provisions In this Ordinance related 

to growers, processors, and retailers. 

(b) All Class A Mlcrobuslnesses, shall comply with all applicable requirements of the City of 

Pontiac's zoning ordinance except where olherwise specified In this Ordinance. 

(c) All Class A Microbuslnesses shall be class!Red as Spacial Land Uses In the permitted 

zoning districts. 

(d) A masonry screen wall shall be provided along all property lines abulling property that Is 

zoned for resldenllal use, subject to the requirements of the Pontiac Code of Ordinances. 

(e) Class A Mlcrobuslnesses are prohlblled if the location Is within 1,000 feel from any pre

exlsllng School: (l) the distance separation requirement between the school and the contemplated 

location set forth above shall be measured along the centerline of the street or streets of address 

between two fixed points on the centerline determined by projecting straight lines, at right angles 

to the centerline, from the primary point of Ingress to the School, and from the primary point of 

33 



Ingress to the contemplated location along the centerline to the primary street address bulldlng 

entrance, regardless of the ownership of property or Permlllee, 

(f) Class A Mlcrobusinesses located outside of the Downtown Overlay District shall be closed 

for business, and no sale or other distribution of marlhuana fn any form shall occur upon the 

premises between the hours of 10:00 p,m, and 7:00 a.m. Class A Mlcrobustnesses located In the 

Downtown Overlay District shall be closed for business, and no sale or other distribution of 

marlhuana in any form shall occur upon the premises, between the hours of 2:00 a,m, and 7:00 

a.m. 

(g) Drive throughs and d~ve through, walk-up window service, and curbside service shall be 

a prohibited use for all Class A Mlcrobuslnesses. 

Sec, 18. Designated Consumption Establishments. 

(a) All Designated Consumption Establishments shall comply with all applicable requirements 

of the City of Pontiac's zoning ordinance. 

(b) Designated Consumption Establishments shall be llmlted to Downtown Overlay District as 

Identified In the City zoning ordinance and on the City Zoning Map, with three Designated 

Consumption Establishments permilled north of Huron Street and three Designated Consumption 

Establishments pel'TT1l11ed south of Huron Street. 

(c) Designated Consumption Establishments shall be closed for business, and no 

consumption of marihuana In any form shall occur upon the premises between the hours of 2:00 

a.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

(d) Designated Consumption Establishments shall be classified as Special Land Uses In the 

permilled zoning districts. 

(e) A masonry screen wall shall be provided along all property lines abutting property that is 

zoned for residential use, subject to the requirements of the Pontiac Code of Ordinances. 

(f) Designated Consumption l::stabllshments are prohibited If the location is within 1,000 feel 

from any pre-existing School; (1) the distance separation requirement between the school and the 

34 



contemplated location set forth above shall be measured along the centerline of the street or 

streets of address between two fixed points on the centerline determined by projecting straight 

lines, at right angles to the centerllne, from the primary point of Ingress to the School, and from 

the primary point of Ingress to the contemplated location along the centerline to the primary street 

address building entrance, regardless of the ownership of property or Permlllee. 

(f) A Designated Consumption Establishment shall: 

(1) Install and maintain an operable ventilation and filtration system to remove smoke to 

the outside of the building and ellminate odor at the property line of the premises; 

(2) Prominently display a sign near the entrance of the business which carries the following 
warning: 

WARNING: Marlhuana use by pregnant or breastfeeding women, or by women 
planning to become pregnant, may result In fetal Injury, pretenn birth, low birth weight, 
or developmental problems for the child. 

Sec, 19. Marlhuana Business Co-Location and Stacking. 

(a) Separate Marlhuana Business grower, processor, retailer, social equity retailer, Class A 

mlcrobusiness, and designated consumption establishment uses, shall be permitted to co-locate 

at a single property subject to permit approval for each use from the City. Co-localed 

establishments operating at the same location must have permit approval for each Marlhuana 

Business type and use described above. 

(b) Consistent with the MRTMA and the Rules, appllcanls for Class C grower permits shall be 

allowed lo stack and receive multlpla Class C grower permits, and to operate under each permit 

In a single establishment. 

Sec. 20. Transfer of Location Prohibited; Transfer of Ownership and Assets, 

(a) Transfer of Location Prohibited. Permlltees may not transfer a _permll Issued under this 

ordinance to a different locallon. Condlllonally approved medical marlhuana permit holders may 

apply for adult-use permits at a different locallon than the location applied for under the Medical 

Marlhuana Facilities Ordinance, Article XXX , Section 26.1491 et seq. In any of the four zoning 

districts allowed under Ordinance #2407. not only In the zoning district where the applicant was 

awarded a condlllonally approved medical marlhuana permit. Current and final conditionally 

approved medical marlhuana a1:mllcants for provisioning center permits who choose to apply 

35 



under this ordinance at a different location would receive the 30 scoring points under Section 

13(0(9} of this ordinance for the location that had been conditionally approved under the Medical 

Marihuana Facilities Ordinance Article XXX , Section 26.1491 el seq, 

(b) Transfer of Ownership or Assets. Pennlltees may apply to the Clerk to transfer ownership 

or assets of a permlttee's business and the permit Issued under this ordinance to a different 

individual or entity, subject to receiving In advance written approval from the Clerk and lhe 

Department pursuant to the MRTMA and the Rules. In order to request City approval to transfer 

ownership or assets and a permit to a different Individual or enlily, the permlttee must make a 

written request to the Clerk, Indicating the current permlttee and the proposed permlttee, The 

proposed permlttee shall submit a complete application to the Clerk, and the Clerk shall grant the 

request so long as the proposed perm Klee meets all requirements outlined In this Ordinance and 

the Department authorizes the transfer pursuant lo the MRTMA and the Rules. A sale or transfer 

of an ownership Interest of a social equity applfcant shall be at a price no less than fair market 

value and the buyer or transferee shall be qualified as a social equity applicant. 

(c) With submission of a complete transfer of ownership or assets appllcallon, the proposed 

permlttee for an ownership or asset transfer shall pay a nonrefundable appllcatlon fee of 

$5,000.00, In order to offset costs of the City associated with review of the proposed permlltee's 

qualifications for a permitted marihuana business operation. 

Sec. 21. Permits Generally 

(a) Permittees shall report any material change In the required Information to the Clerk within 

twenty four (24) hour and shall report any non-material change In the required lnformallon to the 

Clerk within ten (1 O) business days of the change. Failure lo do so may result In a fine, suspension 

or revocation of the license. 

(b) Permit approval shall not be effective, and no Marlhuana Business may operate, unless 

the Marihuana Business has obtained a State License, the site of the proposed use and 

proposed structure for the Marlhuana Business has :zoning approval for such use, and the final 

site plan and special exception permit has been approved by the Planning Commission. 

Sec. 22. Term of Marihuana Business Permit. 

(a) Approval of a permit shall be for a period of one calendar year subject lo continued 

compllance with this ordinance, the City Code, MRTMA and the Rules. 

36 



(b) Each permit for that current year shall be displayed In a conspicuous spot in the location. 

(c) A permlltee shall remove any expired permit on display and replace ltwllh the current permit. 

A permlllee shall not attempt nor act In any fraudulent manner In regard lo the display of any 

permit. 

Sec. 23. Closing of Marihuana Business. 

(a) A permlttee that closes a Marlhuana Business must comply with the requirements Issued 

by the Michigan Cannabis Regulatory Agency. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of a permlttee ceasing operations, written notiflcallon must be 

provided to the City Clerk. 

(c) Toe permlltee shall furnish to the City a current forwarding address, phone number and 

email for all permillees. 

(d) The permlttee shall surrender Its Marlhuana Business permit lo the City upon the 

expiration of the thirty (30) days' nollce to the City. 

Sec. 24. Annual Marihuana Business Permit Renewal. 

(a) Application for a permit renewal shall be made In writing to the Clerk at least 30 days prior 

to the expiration of an exlsllng pennlt, Failure lo submit a completed appllcallon for renewal of 

an existing permit along with the required renewal fee to the City Clerk on our before the license 

expiration date shall be grounds for the revocation or suspension of a permit. Any authorized 

establlshment that has not tlmely submitted a renewal application as required herein shall 

suspend all business operations until such lime as a renewal permit has been obtained, 

(b) An application for permit renewal shall be made under oath on forms provided by the Clerk. 

(c) An appllcatlon for permit renewal shall be accompanied by a renewal fee of $6,000.00 for 

each permit to help defray administrative and enforcement costs of the City associated with the 

operalion of the Marlhuana Business. 

(d) Upon receipt of a completed appllcatlon for renewal of a permit meeting the requirements of 

this ordinance and payment of the permit renewal fee, the Clerk shall refer a copy of the renewal 

37 



application to the fire department and the Community Development Department, planning 

division, and other appropriate City departments and officials for review. 

(e) No appllcalion for a permit renewal shall be approved unless: 

38 

(1) The fire department and the Communlly Development Department, planning division, 

and other appropriate departments have, wllhln the past calendar year, Inspected the 

proposed location for compllance With all slate and local building, electrical, fire, mechanical 

and plumbing requirements. 

(2) The Community Development Department, planning division, and other relevant 

departments have confirmed that the location compiles with the zoning ordinance. 

(3) The permiltee possesses the necessary Stale Operating Licenses In good standing 

with the Department. 

(4) The applicant has operated the Marlhuana Business In accordance with the conditions 

and requirements of this ordinance and the Clly Code. 

(5) The permlttee has not been determined to be a public nuisance. 

(6) An explanation, with supporting factual data, that the operations of the business have 

been consistent with all of the plans submitted wllh Its application for a permit, Including but 

not limited to the staffing plan, the neighborhood communication/education plan, and proof 

of an Insurance policy covering the business and naming the City of Pontiac, Its elected and 

appointed officials, employees, and agents, as additional Insured parties, primary and non

contributory available for the payment of any damages arising out of an act or omission of 

the applicant or Its stakeholders, agents, employees, or subcontractors, In the amount of: 

a. at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage; 

b. al least Two MIiiion Dollars ($2,000,000) for Injury to one (1} person; and 

c. at least Two Mil!lon Dollars ($2,000,000) for Injury to two (2) or more person 

resulting from the same occurrence. 



The insurance policy underwriter must have a minimum A.M, Best Company Insurance 

ranking of B+, consistent with slate law. The policy shall provide that the City shall be 

notified by the Insurance carrier thirty (30) days ln advance of any cancellation or 

reduction In coverages. 

(7) An explanation, with supportlng factual data, of the efforts and success achieved by 

the social equity plan of the business to promote and encourage participation In the 

marlhuana Industry by local residents that have been disproportionately Impacted by 

marlhuana prohibition and enforcement, and the positive impact of the social equity plan on 

local residents. 

(9) The City Treasurer has confirmed that the appllcant and each stakeholder Is not In 

default to the City for any property tax, special assessment, utility charges, flnes, fees or 

other financial obligation owed to the City. 

(10) The City has reviewed the application and determined that the applicant has satisfied 

the requirements of this Ordinance with respect to the criminal background check and 

security plan. 

(11) Unless the appllcant shows good cause, the appllcanf shall demonstrate lo lhe City 

Clerk that the applicant was open and conducting business for a minimum of twenty (20) 

hours per week during each and every week of the prior year. The term "good cause" shall 

mean substantial grounds, such as an emergency, fire damage, or other unforeseeable 

circumstances that prevented the applicant from conducting business for a minimum of 

twenty (20) hours per week during each and every week of the prior year, Economic or 

financial decisions, or Inability to secure capital or financial resources that prevented an 

applicant from conducting business for a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week during the 

prior year shall not be good cause. 

(f) If written approval is given by each department or entity Identified In this section, and the 

Clerk determines that the applicant has satisfied subsections (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) of this 

Section, then the Clerk shall renew the permit of the applicant. 

Sec. 25, Denial, Nonrenewal, Suspension, or Revocation of Marihuana Business 
Permit; Basis for Action; Appeal, 

39 



(a) Each Marihuana Business within the City for which a permit ls granted shall be operated 

and maintained In accordance with all applicable City, State and federal laws, rules, and 

regulations. Any pennlt Issued under this Ordinance may be revoked or suspended by the City 

after written notice and an administrative hearing If a City official finds and detennlnes that 

grounds for revocation or suspension exist. Any grounds for revocation or suspension of a permit 

must be provided to the permlttee at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing by first 

class mall to the address given on the application or any address provided to the Clerk In writing 

subsequent to the filing of an application. The Clerk shall notify an applicant of the reasons for 

denial of an appllcatlon for a permit, for permit renewal, or for suspension or revocation of a permit, 

or any adverse decision under this ordinance and provide the applicant or permlttee an 

administrative hearing with the opportunity to be heard. 

(b) In addition to any other reasons set forth In this ordinance, the City may refuse to Issue a 

permit, may refuse to grant renewal of a permit, and may suspend or revoke a permit pursuant to 

Pontiac City Ordinance sections 1-24 or for any of the followfng reasons: 

40 

(1) A violation of any provision of this Ordinance, Including, but not limited to, the failure 

to provide the lnformatlon required by this Ordinance; 

(2) Any dlsquallfylng conviction or pallern of convictions by the permittee or any 

stakeholder of the permlttee Including any conviction of any felony or any misdemeanor 

Involving controlled substances, theft, or dishonesty by the applicant, permltee, stakeholder, 

or any person holding an ownership interest In the licensee; 

(3) Failure of the permlttee to obtain or maintain a State License or approval pursuant to 

MRTMA and MMFLA; 

(4) Commission of fraud or misrepresentation or the making of a false statement by the 

appllcant, permlttee, or any stakeholder of the applicant or permlttee, while engaging In any 

activity for which this Ordinance requires a permit; 

(5) The Marihuana Business Is determined by the City to have become a public nuisance 

or otherwise Is operating In a manner detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare; 

(6) Failure of the permltee to maintain the property causing a blighted or other condition In 

violation of any City ordinance, Including but not limited to, Ord. No. 2355, 8-9-18, or In 

violation of any state law, Including but not limited to, MCL 125.538 to 125.542. 



(7) Any default In the payment of any charges, taxes, or fees, lo the City if not cured upon 

thirty (30) days following notice sent by electronic means or mall to the address of the 

Marlhuana Business. This cure period does not apply to scoring of initial applications for 

Retailer, Social Equity Retailer, Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 

Establishment pennlts; 

(8) Violation of any State law applicable to Marihuana Businesses. 

(9) Failure to obtain or maintain a certificate of occupancy from the Building Department; 

(10) Failure of the permllee lo obtain or maintain a permit or lo renew a permit from the City 

Clerk; or 

(11) The establishment's approved site plan Is determined to be in subs\anllal violation by 

the City. 

(12) Applicants submitted more than one appllcallon for the same location. 

(c) Appeal of denial of an application, denial of renewal, or revocation or suspension of a permit: 

Any appllcant or permlltee aggrieved by the denial, non-renewal, suspension or revocation of a 

permit or adverse decision under this ordinance may appeal to the Clerk, by filing with the Clerk, 

within fourteen (14) days after notice of the action complained of has been malled or e-mailed lo 

the applicant or lo permillee's las\ known address on the records of the Clerk, a wrilten statement , 

setting forth fully the grounds for the appeal. The Clerk shall appoint a hearing officer lo hear and 

evaluate the appeal and make a written recommendation and report to the Clerk. The Clerk shall 

review the report and recommendation of the hearing officer and Issue a written decision. The 

Clerk's decision may be appealed to the Marlhuana Business Commission by f/llng an appeal in 

writing to the Marlhuana Business Commission no later than thirty (30) days after the Clerk's 

decision. The review on appeal of a denial, non-renewal, suspension, or revocation or adverse 

action shall be by the Marlhuana Business Commission pursuant to this ordinance. The 

Marihuana Business Commission shall overturn a decision or finding of the Clerk If It finds such 

decision or finding lo be arbitrary or capricious and/or not supported by material, substantial, and 

competent facts on the whole record considered by the Clerk In arriving al such decision or finding. 

Any decision by the Marlhuana Business Commission on an appeal shall be final for purposes of 

judicial review. The Clerk may engage professional consultants lo assist with the review and 

scoring of applications under this section. 

41 



(d) Following the denial of a permit to an applicant for a retailer permit, social equity retailer 

permit, Class A mlctobuslness permit or designated consumption establishment permit, and any 

subsequent appeal during the recommendation and Issuance process, the Clerk may move to 

recommend the application with fhe next highes1 number of scoring points as determined in the 

application process to be awarded a permit. 

(e) The City Clerk shall notify the Michigan Cannabis Regulatory Agency of all renewal 

applications which are renewed or denied, and all permfls that are suspended or revoked. 

(f) A permlfee whose renewal appllcallon Is denied, must submit a new appllcallon as a new 

applicant. 

Seo. 26. Penaltles; temporary suspension of a permit, 

(a) The City may require an applicant or permlttee of a Marlhuana Business lo produce 

documents, records, or any other material pertinent to the Investigation of an applicant or 

permlttee or to an alleged violation of fhls Ordinance or state law and rules. Failure to provide the 

required material may be grounds for appllcatlon denial, or permit suspension or revocation. 

(b) Any person In violation of any provision of this Ordinance, Including the operation of a 

Marlhuana Business without a permit shall be responsible for a civil infraction and shall be subject 

to a civil fine and costs. Increased civil fines may be Imposed for a repeat violatlon. As used in 

this Ordinance "repeat violation" shall mean a second or any subsequent infraction of the same 

requirement or provision committed by a person or establishment within any twenty-four (24) 

month period. Unless otherwise specifically provided In this Ordinance, the penalty schedule ls 

as follows: 

(1) Five Hundred Dollars ($500), plus costs, for the first violation; 

(2) One Thousand Dollars ($1,000), plus costs, for a repeal vlolatlon; 

(3) Three Thousand Dollars (;3,000), plus costs for any repeat violation that continues 

for more than one day. 

(c) The City may temporarily suspend a Marlhuana Business permit without a prior hearing If the 

City finds that public safety or welfare requires emergency action affecting the publlc health, 

42 



safety, or welfare. The City shall cause the temporal'f suspension by Issuing a suspension notice 

In connecllon with Institution of proceedings for notice and a hearing. 

(d) If the City temporarily suspends a permit without a prior hearing, the pennlllee Is entitled lo a 

hearing within thirty (30) days after the suspension notice has been served on the permlttee or 

posted on the permitted premises. The hearing shall be limited to lhe Issues cited In the 

suspension notice. 

(e) If the City does not hold a hearing within thirty (30) days after the date the suspension was 

served on the penniltee or posted on the permitted premises, !hen the suspended permit shall be 

automatically reinstated and the suspension vacated. 

(f) The penalty provisions herein are not Intended to foreclose any other remedy or sanction that 

might be available lo, or Imposed by the City, Including criminal prosecution. 

Sec. 27. Severablllty Clause. 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or sectlon of this Ordinance be held Invalid or 

unconslltutlonal, lhe remaining provisions of this ordinance shall remain In full force and effect. 

Sec. 28. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective: (a) 30 days following the date of adoption, (b) the effective 

date of the amendment to ordinance #2360 (removing lhe prohibition of marlhuana 

establishments); or (c) the effective date of the zoning code text amendments permttllng Adult

Use Marthuana Business land uses, whichever Is rater. 

Sec. 29. Publication. 

CERTIFICATION 

The foregoing is a true and complete copy of an Ordinance adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council 

held on ____ day of _______ ~ 2023, and public notice of said meeting was 

given pursuant to and In accordance with the requirements of Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 

43 



1976, as amended, being the Open Meetings Act, and the minutes of said meeting have been or 

will be made available as required by said Act, 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

It was moved by Member __________ and supported by Member 

______________ to adopt the Ordinance, 

Members voting Yes: ________________________ _ 

Members voting No: ________________________ _ 

Members Abstaining: ________________________ _ 

The Ordinance was declared adopted by the Mayor and has been recorded with the City of 

Pontiac, 

ADOPTED: 

PUBLISHED: 

EFFECTIVE: 

44 

Garland Doyle, City Clerk 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 



#3 

ORDINANCE 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX B OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF PONTIAC, AMENDING ARTICLE 2, SECTION 2.103-ZONING MAP, TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS FOR A SPECIFIC PARCEL ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF AUBURN ROAD BETWEEN SOUTH STANFORD STREET AND 
SOUTH FRANCIS A VENUE, SUBJECT TO THE AGREED UPON CONDITIONS. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendments. 

That the Zoning Map of the City of Pontiac, said map being incorporated by reference in the 

Zoning Ordinance for the City of Pontiac pursuant to Article 2 therefor, be and the same is hereby 

amended, changed, and altered so that hereafter the zoning classifications for the below legal 

description, commonly referred to as 454 Auburn Road, Parcel ID: 14-33-205-034, from Local 

Business (C-1); Corridor Commercial (C-3); Multiple Family Dwelling (R-3) to Multiple-Family 

Dwelling Elevator Apartment (R-4) with CR Conditional Rezoning, this Amendment is subject to 

the Conditions as described in Section 3. 

Provided Legal Description: 

The land referred to herein below is situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of 
Michigan, and is described as follows: 

Part of Lot 1, also all of Lot 2, also part of Lot 3, of ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 52, according to 
the plat thereof recorded in Liber lB of Plats, page 52 of Oakland County Records, all being 
described as beginning at the Northeast comer of said Lot 3, thence South 02 degrees 00 minutes 
30 seconds East 221.46 feet; thence South 88 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds West 265.12 feet; 
thence North 01 degree 59 minutes 20 seconds West 220 feet; thence North 87 degrees 41 minutes 
50 seconds East 265 feet to the point of beginning. 

Section 2. Conditions. 

Said amendment is conditioned as provided in the voluntarily agreed Conditional Rezoning 

Agreement entered into between the City of Pontiac and ACORP Services, LLC, which include: 



1. The 60 feet of frontage along the Right of Way shall include a 10- to 12-foot-deep 
patio in front of the Community Room/Leasing Office Area. This patio shall include 
six (6) benches along with a paved patio area of approximately 430 square feet. The 
patio area shall include six ( 6) shade trees over the seating area. 

11. A row of Arbor Vitae shrubs shall be planted along the entire length of the east and 
west buffer yards (planted 4 feet on center) to help screen the adjacent commercial
zoned properties. 

111. In order to help buffer the Auburn Road Right of Way and the adjacent multi-family 
properties to the south, an additional 10% over and above the required amount of 
landscaping shall be added to the front and rear yards. 

If the conditions as described above, and any other conditions as provided in the Conditional 

Rezoning Agreement, are not adhered to, the property in this Amendment will revert back to Local 

Business (C-1); Con-idor Commercial (C-3); Multiple Family Dwelling (R-3). 

Section 3. Repealer and Severability. 

All other parts and provisions of the Zoning Ordinance shall remain in effect, amended only as 

provided above. If any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be 

unconstitutional, void, illegal or ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, 

clause or provision declared to be unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part 

of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

The foregoing amendment to the City of Pontiac Zoning Map was approved and adopted by the 

City Council on ________ , 2023, after a public hearing as required pursuant to the 

Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended. The Ordinance shall be effective on 

_________ , 2023, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 

Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Map Amendment in a publication in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the zoning district as required by Section 401 of Act 110 of 2006, as amended. 

However, this effective date shall be extended as necessary to comply with the requirements of 

Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 



ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Tim Greimel, Mayor 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 



CERTIF1CATION 

The foregoing is a true and complete copy of an Ordinance adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Pontiac, County Oakland, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council 

held on ______ day of ________ ~ 2023, and public notice of said meeting 

was given pursuant to and in accordance with the requirements of Act No. 267 of the Public Acts 

of 197 6, as amended, being the Open Meetings Act, and the minutes of said meeting have been or 

will be made available as required by said Act. 

Members Present: ----------------------------

Members Absent: ___________________________ _ 

It was moved by Member ___________ and supported by Member 

___________ to adopt the Ordinance. 

Members voting yes: __________________________ _ 

Members voting no: __________________________ _ 

Members abstaining: __________________________ _ 

The Ordinance was declared adopted by the Mayor and has been recorded with the City of 

Pontiac. 

ADOPTED: 

PUBLISHED: 

EFFECTIVE: 

Garland Doyle, City Clerk 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 



Carlisle I Wortman 
ASSOCIATES, I NC. 

117 NORTH FIRST STREET SUlTE 70 ANN ARBOR, Ml 48104 734.662.2200 734.662.1935 FAX 

TO: 

CC: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Planning Commission 

Mark Yandrick, Planning Manager 

Richard K. Carlisle, FAICP, Planning Consultant to the City of Pontiac 
Anna Wysocki, Community Planner 

August 31, 2023, Updated September 13, 2023 

ZMA23 -012 
454 Auburn Rd. 
Parcel 14-33-205-034 

Executive Summary: 

The applicant is proposing to rezone property (application ZMA23-012) which is currently zoned a 
combination of C-1 Local Business, C-3 Corridor Commercial and R-3 Multiple Family, to R-4 Multiple 
Family Elevator District. The site is located on the south side of Auburn Avenue between S. Francis St. 
and S. Sandford St. Zoning along Auburn is a mixture of commercial, single family and multiple family. 
The Master Plan recognizes the mixed nature of zoning and land use in the Auburn Road corridor and 
designates the area for mixed use. Further, the applicant has volunteered to make improvements to the 
landscaping plan and general site plan as conditions to the proposed map amendment. 

Planning Commission recommended APPROVAL, 6-0 of the proposed zoning change, subject to the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement at the September 5, 2023 public hearing. 

Overview/ Project Description: 

The subject site is 1.4 acres in size located on the south side of Auburn between S. Francis St. and S. 
Sanford St. The site is currently zoned a mix of C-1 Local Business, C-3 Corridor Commercial, and R-3 
Multiple Family Dwelling. Both the C-1 and C-3 zoning categories would permit a variety of commercial 
and service uses. The C-3 district also permits light industrial use. It appears a substantial portion of the 
site is zoned R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling, which is similar to the R-4 zoning category that has been 
requested. The major distinction between the R-3 and R-4 Districts is their allowable height and density. 

The R-4 Multiple Family Elevator District is a special purpose district set forth in Article 5, Chapter 2 in 
the Zoning Ordinance. The R-4 District allows a maximum build height of twelve (12) stories and density 
ranging from approximately forty-two (42) dwelling units per acre for 1-bedroom units, 34 units per acre 
for 2-bedroom units, and twenty-seven (27) units per acre for 3-bedroom units. In this case, the 

Benjamin R. Carlisle, President Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President John L. Enos, Vice President 

David Scurto, Principal Sally M. Elmiger, Principal R. Donald Wortman, Principal 

Paul Montagna, Principal, Megan Masson-Minock, Principal, Laura Kreps, Senior Associate 

Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 



Zoning Map Amendment-454 Auburn Ave. 
August 31, 2023 

applicant is proposing a mix of forty-five (45) 1-bedroom units and nine (9) 2-bedroom units. If the 
applicant proceeds as proposed, the project will meet the density requirements of the R-4 District. 

Figure 1-Aerial View of Site 

Figure 2 - Future Land Use Map, 2018 

2 

Traditional Neighborhood Residentlal 

Urban Multiple Family 

LJ Suburban Residential 

Mixed Use 

- Regional Commercial 

- Neighborhood Commercial 

- Office/Hospital/Health Care 



Zoning Map Amendment-454 Auburn Ave. 
August 31, 2023 

Voluntary Conditions 

Figure 3 - Current Zoning 

C~ 1 Local Business 

C-2 Downtown 

- C-3 Corridor Commercial 

P-1 Parking 

R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

R-4 Multiple Family Dwelling Elevator Apartment 

The applicant has amended their application for zoning map amendment with the following voluntary 
conditions: 

1. The 60 feet of frontage along the Right of Way shall include a 10- to 12-foot-deep patio in front 

of the Community Room/Leasing Office Area. This patio shall include six (6} benches along with 

a paved patio area of approximately 430 square feet. The patio area shall include six (6} shade 

trees over the seating area. 

2. A row of Arbor Vitae shrubs shall be planted along the entire length of the east and west 

bufferyards (planted 4 feet on center} to help screen the adjacent commercial-zoned properties. 

3. In order to help buffer the Auburn Road Right of Way and the adjacent multi-family properties 

to the south, an additional 10% over and above the required amount of landscaping shall be 

added to the front and rear yards. 

The intent of the agreed upon conditions is to create a front yard public space, to increase landscaping 
beyond the requirements set by Section 4.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, and to mitigate any impacts from 
this development to the surroundings properties and neighborhood. 

3 



Zoning Map Amendment-454 Auburn Ave. 
August 31, 2023 

6.804 Criteria for Amendment of the Official Zoning Map 

A. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

Comments: 

The Master Plan designates the subject site and surrounding area for Mixed Use recognizing the 
historical patterns of land use and the inherent conflicts of more intense uses located adjacent to those 
of lesser intensity. The Master Plan recognizes the need to encourage redevelopment. The proposed 
rezoning to R-4 is consistent with the intent of the Master Plan. 

B. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

Comments: 

There is no evidence to suggest that there are any characteristics of the property that would be an 
impediment to development. 

C. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on Investment through developing 
the property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

Comments: 

The mixture of commercial and multiple-family residential zoning on the site is problematic. Under any 
circumstances, the site would require rezoning to a single category to be developed. 

D. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure, and potential influence on property values. 

Comments: 

The site is mostly surrounded to the north by C-3 zoning to the south by R-3 zoning. More specifically, 
the parcels west of the subject site (approaching Sanford St.) are zoned C-3, which allows more intense 
commercial uses. Parcels facing the site from the north side of Auburn Rd. are also zoned C-3. The 
properties south of the subject site are zoned R-3 Multiple Family Residential. A smaller portion of 
properties east of the site are zoned C-1 Local Business and P-1 Parking. 

With regard to current uses, the site is surrounded by single family housing, medium density housing, 
vacant lots, open space, a place of worship, south of Auburn Rd. To the north of Auburn Rd, the site is 
most immediately surrounded by vacant lots, outdoor vehicle storage or vehicle repair, and low 
intensity local businesses. The proposed change to R-5 zoning is compatible with the surrounding 
commercial and residential uses, except for its proximity to parcels zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. As a 
condition to the proposed map amendment, the applicant plans to install a buffer made of arbor vitae 

4 



Zoning Map Amendment-454 Auburn Ave. 
August 31, 2023 

plantings in the site's west side yard (adjacent to C-3) as well as its east side yard (adjacent to C-1 and P
l). 

E. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety, and welfare of the City. 

Comments: 

The City Engineer will need to comment on the adequacy of public utilities, but it does not appear that 
multiple family use would create a burden greater than uses permitted by current zoning. 

F. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Comments: 

Auburn Rd. is a major corridor with existing commercial and multiple family uses. The potential traffic 
generated by the proposed multiple family use is not likely to produce a greater amount of traffic than 
the current commercial designations and, in fact, may be less. 

G. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

Comments: 

As previously indicated, the site would be difficult to develop under the three (3) different zoning 
categories. Consolidating zoning into a single district allows for development of the site in a manner 
which meets the dimensional regulations of the requested zoning district. 

H. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

Comments: 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the City's Master Plan and consolidates the current zoning of 
the property into a single category. 

I. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses In the current zoning district to allow the 
use. 

5 



Zoning Map Amendment-454 Auburn Ave. 
August 31, 2023 

Comments: 

The applicant has requested their application be considered as a conditional re-zoning. The proposed 
conditions are likely to facilitate the development's compatibility with surrounding uses and with the 
Auburn Avenue corridor. 

J. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 

Comments: 

As it stands, the current zoning creates three (3) different pockets of zoning that are isolated from the 
prevailing patterns. The R-4 zoning that has been requested consolidates the zoning into a single 
category and is compatible with adjacent commercial and multiple family zoning. 

Summary of Conclusions: 

The proposed conditional zoning map amendment is found to meet the standards of approval set by 
section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance. The proposed change to R-4 zoning would establish the 
consistent zoning necessary for redeveloping the subject site, which is currently vacant. The proposed 
amendment is compatible with the surrounding uses, with current zoning, and with the Master Plan. 
One exception to this is the presence of C-3 zoning, a more intense commercial use, flanking Auburn 
Avenue. However, the applicant proposes to buffer the site from surrounding uses by installing 
additional landscaping on all sides of the development. According to the Master Plan, the surrounding 
corridor may be converted to mixed zoning over time, further improving the compatibility of the 
proposed amendment. Finally, the amendment to R-4 zoning will have the effect of connecting 
residential uses in the surrounding vicinity, as opposed to isolating single uses or zoning districts. 

Recommendations: 

The current zoning presents serious obstacles to the use and development of the property, a condition 
which is corrected by the proposed rezoning. The applicant has provided a concept plan and a detailed 
narrative regarding the intended use of the property which would suggest that a conditional rezoning 
would be mutually beneficial. To ensure the compatibility of the proposed development and mitigate 
impacts to the surrounding neighborhood, the applicant agrees to increase landscaping and to create a 
front yard public space as conditions, as set forth in the Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

Planning Commission recommended APPROVAL, 6-0 of the proposed zoning change, subject to the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement at the September 5, 2023 public hearing. 

1;~\(k-
CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOC., INC 
Richard K. Carlisle, FAICP 
Past President/Senior Principal 

CARLISLE WORTMAN ASSOC,1 INC. 
Anna Wysocki 

Community Planner 

Edited by Mark Yandrick, City of Pontiac Planning Manager 

6 



Application for Zoning Map 
Amendment 

City of Pontiac 
Office of Land Use c111d Stl'at(1p,lc Pl,mnln~ 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248,758,2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Propel'ty/Project Address: 454 Auburn Rd, Office Use Only 

Sidwell Numbe1·: See list Below PF Number: 

Date: 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Lund Use und Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regtilarly scheduled Planning Conunisslon meeting, Applications must be complete iii 
all respects with supporting documents such us site plan, property survey elc, Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schediile, Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process, 

A1mlicant (glease grlnt or tyge) 

Name James Pappas, President - Fusco,Shaffer & Pappas, Inc, 

Address 550 East Nine Mile Rd. 

City Ferndale 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48220 

Telephone Main: (248)-543-4100 I Cell: I Fax: (248) -543-4141 

E-Mail jpappas@fsparch.com 

Project and Progert¥ Information 

Name of P1·oposed Development: Affordable Housing Aeartments 
I 

The subject property is location at 454 Auburn Rd, on the N / }LI E / W side of Auburn Rd. 
between S,Sanford St, and s, Francis Ave. ' 

The property is z.oned: c-1 Local Business,R-3 Multiple-family Dwelling and 
C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Proposed zoning District: All parcels R-4 Multiple-family Dwelling Elevator Apartment 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: Affordable Housing Apartments 

The subject p1•opel'ty is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

Assessors Plat No, 52 Parcel Number 14-33 205-034- See attached 
Legal description. 



Property owner Information 

Name Lighthouse 

Address 46156 Woodward Ave. 

City Pontiac 
State Michiaan 
ZIP Code 48342 
Telephone Ma.In: (248) 920-6000 j Ce.II: j Fax: 

E~Mall todd@lighthousemi.org 

Are you the _x __ Owner __ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photogrnphs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc,), 

'!'he proposed use will be an Affordable HQusing Development including 

54 units, with a mix of 1 and 2 bedroom units ,Limited amenities & services 
will be provided. 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detl'imental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site, 
Lighthouse hsJ.s owned & operated other housing with services in the region, 

j ncluding the Beacon Townhomes e.stabJ, shed far aver 16 years ,jnst South of 

this location, the proposal i.s meant to expand the amount of affordable housing, 
and services in the community. This proposed project will provide much needed 

hoI1si ng , which will not be detrimental to the public or surrounding neighborhood 
which is predominantly zoned Multi-Family and Commercial Business.See attached 
plan. 

Stale o/Mlc/,lga11 
Co,111/y o/Oaklrmd 

011 /his_ day of_~~-- A.D,. 20 ______, before me per.so11ally appeared /he abOI'~ 11amed person, wlw being <fuly swon,, slated he/sl,e has reµd 
1!,efoi'egoh1g app/fca//0111 Ii)' hl111/horslg11ed, mid ~11ow the co11/e11/s !hereof, mtd Iha/ the same /s t111e of his/her ow11 know/edge, (Weep/ as to the mallers 
there/11 slated lo be 11po11 htformat/011 a11d belief 1111d so a.v lo /hose ma tiers he/site bellc1•es II lo be /n,e. 

Natal')' Pub/le, Oakfa11d Co1111I)•, Micltlga11 
My Co111111/ss/011 Bxp/res: __ 



Overview 

LIGHTHOUSE -AUBURN PLACE 
PROJECT RE-ZONING NARRATIVE 

July 28, 2023 

Lighthouse-Auburn Place is a new multi-family apartment development to be located at 454 Auburn 
Avenue In Pontiac. The site is 1.34 acres and will be developed into a 54-unit apartment building. This will 
include 45 one-bedroom units and 9 two-bedroom units. The project has secured a preliminary award of 
$10.5 million from MSHDA toward the total development cost of $24.1 million. 

As an applicant for HOME ARP, HCDF and CERA funding, Lighthouse: 

• Certifies to MSHDA that it will comply with all requirements of the program and that housing units 
assisted will comply with HOME ARP requirements. 

• Demonstrates that it has the financial capacity to undertake, comply with, and manage the eligible 
activities, including compliance with the federal programmatic requirements, and the financial 
requirements and standards shown in MSHDA's Direct Lending Parameters. 

Patee/ Re-zoning 
The current parcel zoning is a mix of C-1 (Local Business), C-3 (Corridor Commercial), and R-3 (Multi-Family 
Dwelling), Lighthouse is proposing that the parcel be rezoned to R-4 (Multi-Family Elevator Apartment) in 
order to better align with, and consolidate the proposed use and to allow a more appropriate unit density. 
This proposed re-zoning will allow for a more viable sized development for the proposed use. Existing 
adjacent property zoning is predominantly C-3 (Corridor Commercial) to the west, C-1 (Local Business) 
and P-1 (Parking) to the east, and R-3 (Multiple Family Dwelling) to the south. C-3 (Corridor Commercial) 
zoning occurs to the north at the opposite side of Auburn Road, from the proposed project. The proposed 
R-4 (Multi-Family Elevator Apartment) re-zoning would be compatible with the current surrounding zoned 
uses. As a potential public benefit, Lighthouse will provide a public pocket park or plaza at the auburn 
Road Frontage, adjacent the road right-of -way. This would provide a respite area for local residents and 
pedestrians to enjoy the potential bench seating and pavered landscape area. 

The Proposed Apartment development will house a total of 54 affordable housing units. The unit mix will 
include (45) 1 BR/ 1B units (at 677 nsf each) and (9) 2 BR/ 1B units (at 942 nsf each). A minimum of 5% of 
the total units will be fully barrier free accessible, for a total of 3 barrier free units. Each unit will be 
provided a generous balcony immediate to the Living Room of each unit. 

Lighthouse Ml 
Lighthouse was established in 2019 when Lighthouse of Oakland County (LOC} and South Oakland Shelter 
(SOS} combined forces and merged agencies. LOC was founded in 1972 and started with a group of 
volunteers who provided food and clothing from the back door of a local church. SOS was established in 
1985 by seven religious congregations in Oakland County. The new Lighthouse leverages the best of both 
agencies, providing direct services (food, shelter, rental/utility and other financial assistance, crisis 
referrals) and stability and housing programs that develop and support self-sufficiency. 

Serving Oakland County with over 80 years of combined experience, Lighthouse is committed to ensuring 
all people in the community have a safe and secure place to call home, Lighthouse's focus on affordable 
and quality housing as a primary solution to complex needs and has had a strong impact throughout the 

1 I Page 



region. Lighthouse implements housing-first programming, operates a rotating shelter, and provides 
various supportive services that move people experiencing housing crises to long-term stability. 
Lighthouse's housing programs provide long-term housing and short- to medium-term rental assistance 
to displaced households, preventative services for those at-risk of eviction, and most importantly ongoing 
support services. Lighthouse operates ongoing permanent supportive housing for over 100 individuals 
each year. Lighthouse is a strong leader in efforts to bring affordable housing to the surrounding 
community working alongside local Oakland County government, state entities including The Department 
of Health and Human Services, many local private foundations including United Way for Southeastern 
Michigan, and federal departments Including Housing and Urban Development. Lighthouse is an engaged 
partner with many entities who all share the common mission of Increasing the supply of high quality 
affordable housing. 

Community Improvement 

In developing the Lighthouse-Auburn Place Affordable Housing Apartment facility, Lighthouse would 
strive to ensure that the proposed development will be an asset to the community and a model for future 
service facilities. The development team will work to meet the intent of the current City Ordinances and 
Future Land Use Plan with this development. 

This proposal for the Lighthouse-Auburn Place Affordable Housing Apartment development will greatly 
enhance the existing neighboring properties and businesses. The impact on the surrounding 
neighborhood will be positive and will potentially spark further development and Improvement of the 
region. The proposed Lighthouse Affordable Housing Apartment development will further improve the 
ability of lighthouse to offer low-cost housing to those individuals who have limited opportunity for 
Improving their living conditions through quality housing, which will provide the initial steps toward a self
sustaining lifestyle for their residents. 

Project Sponsor 
Ryan Hertz, President & CEO 
Lighthouse 
46156 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Email: rhertz@lighthousemi.org 
Phone: 248-920-6000 

Consultant Contact 
Joe Heaphy, President 
Ethos Development Partners 
882 Oakman Boulevard, Suite G 
Detroit, Ml 48238 
Email: jheaphy@ethosdp.com 
Phone: 313-850-5844 

DEVELOPMENT TEAM 

2 I Page 



Management Contact 
Cheryl Humphrey 
Continental Management 
32500 Telegraph Road, 
Bingham Farms, Ml 48025 
Email: chumphrey@continentalmgt.com 
Phone: 248-731-7810 

Project Attorney 
Rochelle Lento 
Dykema 
400 Renaissance Center 
Detroit, Ml 48243 
Email: rlento@dykema.com 
Phone: 313-568-5322 

Proiect Accountant 
Joanne Candela 
Regency Financial Consulting 
54408 Whitby Way 
Shelby Twp, Ml 48316 
Email: icandela@regencyfin.com 
Phone: 310-523-6817 

General Contractor 
Dave Vivio 
O'Brien Construction Company 
966 Livernois 
Troy, Ml 48083 
Email: dvlvio@obriencc.com 
Phone: 248-334-2470 

Architect 
James Pappas 
Fusco, Shaffer & Pappas Inc. 
550 East Nine Mile Road 
Ferndale, Ml 48220 
Email: jpappas@fsparch.com 
Phone: 248-543-4100 

3 I Page 



~ :tig-hthouse 
~ 

~13~~2: 
~'==:-:__.:======-=-~------

~ CO_N_CEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
NORTH 

_5-STORY 
-APARTMENT BUILDING 
(54 D.U.) 

20' 
1·=20·-o· 

40•---,-o• 

SITE DATA 

SITE AREA ;!;58,300 G5-F. fPSl COUNTY RECORDS) 

OR L34ACRES 

ZONING 
EXISTING C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS 

C-J CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 
R3- MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING 

PROPOSED IREZONIDI R4-MULTI-FAMILY ELEVATOR 
APARTMENT 

MINIMUM LOT SIZE 
REQUIRED I5".250GSFPERUNff1Y?ELOTREQ'MTI 50.000 GSF 
PROVIDED :t.58.300 GSF 

BUILDING HBGHT 
MAXIMUM 
PROPOSED 

LOT WIDTH 
MINIMUM 
PROVIDED 

BUILDING AREA 
APARTMENT BUILDING 

lSTFLOOR 
2NDFLOOR 
3RD FLOOR 
4TH FLOOR 
millQQR 

TOTAL 

UNIT COUNT 
1 BEDROOM f&n SFl 
2 BIDRQOM 1°:4., ~s 

6 UNITS 
12UNITS 
12UNITS 
I2UNITS 
J.2.J.!l:,j[s_ 
54UNITS 

45BR 
!UR 
63 BR 

12STORIES 
5 STORIES -56 FEEi 

150 FEEi 
265 FEEi 

±10.984 SF 
±10.984SF 
:!:10,984SF 
:!:10,984 SF 
+~ 
:!:54.920 SF 

45 UNITS 
9lllifil 

54 UNlfS 

TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA (FRONT& SIDEYARDS) 
MINIMUM I5'.li TOTALSffEARE',) 2915GSF 

±6,604 GSF PROVIDED 

PARKING 
REQUIRED JI.T SF'ACE5PEP.8EORODM) 

PROVIDED 

PARICING LOTTREES 
REQUIRED 171 SJ>ACES/6I 
PROVIDED 

70 SPACES 
71 SPACES 

12TREES 
12 TREES 

J,lillE;. FOR CONCEPTUAL USE ONLY-MUST HAVE CURRENT 
SURVEY TO CONFIRM ALL SlfE DATA AND LOT FIT. 

LIGHTHOUSE 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
454 AUBURN ROAD 
PONTIAC. 

E sco. 
AFFER& 

l>.PPAS,INC 
. -\.E.OIITECTS ~ Ft.A.."OlER:5 
.; -;<1 r 'ii Ir.~ 'I.I" IL~ 1: I' . 
fU:;tl.4LC. l.UCUJ.;AW ~~=~"' 
!'Hl~"F::H.r.t.'-:lt!U t,~"l: ,.,._~lttl 
.......... t,,r.a,,.1,1, .. .,, ......... 

MICHIGAH 

RJNDING PRESENTATION 
06.30.23 

OWNER REVIEW 
07.25.23 

REZONING SUBMISSION 
07..28..23 

SHEET I OF2 



I I I I I I I 
~-----.,.......~---., .Jiii1 1 &,.,,~~-• rna ;::1::-

LIGHTHOUSE 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
454 AUBURN ROAD 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 

~ Lighthouse ~SECOND FLOOR PLAN (THIRDTHRU FIFTH FL_DORSIM.) 
NORTH 

20' 
~ 

◄0' 60' 

~~SCO, RJNOINGPP.ES8'ITATTON 

~~;C. OWNFR~::i::, 
ARO-UTECTS /.z. PLANNERS o7.2S.23 
~.'>a .r. NINI\ i.i1L1t 1(1>; REZONINGSUBMISSION 
frRl'.D.lt.&'.. l.flC:I.IU:.o.)l_.:0~!1~ 07.28.23 

~~!!~';'~'!\, f';;-;!~!: SHEEr 2 OF 2 



't 1 ,- Mt.._,,. 

~ .First American 

EXHIBIT A 

Commitment for Title Insurance 
Michigan - 2021 v. 01.00 (07-01•2021) 

The Land referred to herein below is situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, 
and Is described as follows: 

Part of Lot 1, also all of Lot 2, also part of Lot 3, of ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 52, according to the plat 
thereof recorded In Uber 1B of Plats, page 52 of Oakland County Records, all being described as 
beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 3, thence South 02 degrees 00 minutes 30 seconds East 
221.46 feet; thence South 88 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds West 265.12 feet; thence North 01 degree 
59 minutes 20 seconds West 220 feet; thence North 87 degrees 41 minutes 50 seconds East 265 feet to 
the point of beginning. 

This page Is 011/y a part of a 2021 AL TA commitment for Title Insurance Issued by First Amedcan n1/e Insurance Company. Th/$ 
Commitment Is not valid without the Notlcei the Commitment to Issue Policy,· the Commitment Conditions/ Schedule Ai Schedule 81 

Part I-Requirements/ and Schedule B, Part II-Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or Its Issuing agent that may 
be In electronic form. 

Copyright 2021 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved, 
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) Is restricted to ALTA llcensees and 
ALTA members In good standing as of the date of use, All other uses are prohibited, 
Reprinted under license from the American Land lltle Association, 
Form 50112426 (8-18-22) Page 13 of 13 



#4 
RESOLUTION 



GARLAND s. DOYLE, M.P.A. 
City Clerk 

SHEILA GRANDISON, MiPMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., MiPMC 
City Clerk 

DA: September 19, 2023 

OFFICE 

RE: Early Voting Site Agreement between Oakland County and City of Pontiac 

CITY ~~•~A~~~ 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Office: (248) 758-3200 
Fax: (248) 758-3160 

As you know in November 2022, Michigan voters approved Early Voting for our state. The new state law 
requires municipalities to offer nine days of early voting whenever there is a federal or state election. The 
law also allows municipalities to patiner with their county to offer early voting sites. 

We have decided to partner with Oakland County. The Pontiac Public Library located at 60 E. Pike St. 
will serve as our early voting site. In addition, Pontiac voters will have the option of voting at the 
countywide early voting site located at Waterford Oaks Activity Center 2800 Watkins Lake Rd, 
Waterford, MI 48328. 

The city's legal counsel has reviewed the agreement. Per the agreement, the city is responsible for the 
costs related to staffing the regional early voting site with Election Inspectors, publications and facility 
rental/cleaning charges that are not reimbursed by the State or other entity shall be equally divided 
amongst the paiticipating municipalities. Payment will be remitted to the County within 30 days of 
receipt of the invoice. The agreement is attached. 

We are asking that the City Council approve the following resolution. 

WHEREAS, Michigan voters approved Early Voting for Michigan in November 2022 to take effect in 
2024 and; 

WHEREAS, municipalities are required to offer nine days of early voting prior to Election Day for 
federal and state elections and; 

WHEREAS, the state law allows municipalities to partner with their county to offer early voting. The 
City of Pontiac wishes to pa1tner with Oakland County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement for Election Services between Oakland County and the City of Pontiac. 

CC: Mayor Greimel 
Deputy Mayor Stephens 
C. Trebilcock, Esq., Cla1-k Hill 
A. Martin, Purchasing Division 



AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES 
BETWEEN OAKLAND COUNTY AND CITY OF PONTIAC 

This County Early Voting Site Agreement (the "Agreement"} is made between Oakland County, 1200 N. 
Telegraph Road, Pontiac, Michigan 48341 (the "County"} and the City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward 
Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 ("Municipality"} (the County and each municipality are sometimes 
referred to as the "Parties"}. In this Agreement, the County and each municipality are represented by 
their respective clerks in their official capacities. 

PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT. The County and the municipalities enter into this Agreement pursuant 
to Article II, Section 4(m} of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 and the Michigan Election Law, 1954 
Public Act 116, MCL 168.720a et seq., for the purpose of operating an early voting site. 

I Name of county 
Oakland County 

Name of municipality Number of precincts in Number of registered electors in 
municipality municipality 

City of Pontiac 18 48,288 

1. DEFINITIONS. The following words and expressions used throughout this Agreement, whether 

used in the singular or plural, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows: 

1.1 Agreement means the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any other mutually 

agreed to written and executed modification, amendment, exhibit, and attachment to 

this Agreement. 

1.2 Coordinator means the individual appointed by the County Clerk and identified as the 

individual responsible for providing oversight to ensure sufficient resources are available 

and timely dispatched to each early voting site and monitoring the administrative 

requirements of early voting for the participating municipalities. 

1.3 Early Voting Plan means the document and any addenda to the document outlining the 

manner in which early voting will be provided in a county or municipality, as described 

in MCL 168.720a et seq. The requirements of an Early Voting Plan are described in MCL 

168. 720h(3 }. 

1.4 Election Services encompasses the following individual Election Services provided by the 

County Clerk's Elections Division: Conduct and Administration of Early Voting. 

1.5 Legislative Body of the Municipality means the city or township governing board 

elected or appointed and serving in the municipality. 

1.6 Municipality means any participating municipality, which are entities created by the 

State or local authority or which are primarily funded by or through State or local 

authority, including, but not limited to, their council, Board, departments, divisions, 

elected and appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, 

commissioners, authorities, committees, employees, agents, subcontractors, attorneys, 

volunteers, and/or any such persons' successors. 

1 



1.7 .ill[E_means the Qualified Voter File as described in MCL 168.509m. 

1.8 QVF Controller means the individual appointed by the County Clerk and identified as the 

Qualified Voter File (QVF) administrator of early voting information within the QVF. 

1.9 Site Supervisor means the participating municipal clerk or a member of the County 

Clerk's staff who shall act as supervisor for each day of early voting. The County Clerk 

may appoint a different participating municipal clerk or member of the County Clerk's 

staff to act as a supervisor for different days of early voting. A site supervisor may 

delegate the supervisor's duties to a member of the supervisor's staff. 

2. SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT. 
2.1 The Parties agree that early voting will be provided for all statewide and federal 

elections, and all other non-statewide elections conducted in the county. 

3. COORDINATOR. 
3.1 The Oakland County Director of Elections will serve as the Coordinator of each early 

voting site and will be responsible for organizing and monitoring the administrative 

requirements, including staffing, of early voting for the participating municipalities. 

3.1.1 In the event that the Coordinator is unable to personally supervise and staff 

each early voting site on each day of early voting, the Coordinator may 

designate early voting site supervisors to assist with the staffing and supervision 

of early voting. 

3.2 If the Coordinator becomes unavailable for any reason, the Coordinator role will be 

filled as follows: 

3.2.1 The County Clerk will appoint a new Coordinator. 

3.2.2 The new Coordinator will assume the responsibilities of the Coordinator on 

either a temporary or permanent basis. 

4. QVF CONTROLLER. 
4.1 The Oakland County Director of Elections will serve as the Qualified Voter File (QVF) 

administrator of early voting information within the QVF. The QVF Controller's duties 

will involve setting up the necessary voting regions, user access, and application access 

needed for the site(s) designated in the Agreement. The QVF Controller may designate 

these duties to a member of his/her staff. 

5. APPROVAL OF EARLY VOTING SITES. 
5.1 Pursuant to MCL 168.662, the County Clerk, after consulting the participating municipal 

clerks, will submit each early voting site location to the Board of County Election 

Commissioners for approval. 

5.2 A regional early voting site will serve all electors covered by this Agreement. The 

electors covered by this Agreement will also be served by the County's central early 

voting site. 

2 



6. APPOINTMENT OF ELECTION INSPECTORS. 

6.1 The Board of County Election Commissioners is responsible for the appointment of 

Election Inspectors. 
6.2 At least 21 days before each election, the Board of County Election Commissioners will 

appoint for each early voting site at least 3 Election Inspectors and as many more as, in 

its opinion, are required for the efficient, speedy, and proper conduct of the election. 

6.3 The Board of County Election Commissioners will further designate one appointed 

Election Inspector from each early voting site as chairperson. 

6.4 The selection of Election Inspectors will be governed by MCL 168.674. 

7. APPROVAL OF EARLY VOTING HOURS. 

7 .1 The Parties agree to all of the following: 

7.1.1 Early voting will be conducted for the nine days guaranteed by the Constitution. 

The hours will be from 8:30am-4:30pm each day, except that Thursday the 

hours will be from 12pm-8pm. 

7.1.2 The days and hours specified in this Agreement apply to early voting at all 

elections conducted in the County. 

8. NOTICE OF EARLY VOTING HOURS. 

8.1 Not less than 45 days before Election Day, the County Clerk and the clerk of each 

participating municipality agree to give public notice of the dates and hours for early 

voting at the regional early voting site and central early voting site by posting 

information on the County's and each municipality's website. If the municipality does 

not maintain a website, it shall post the notice in the same manner as it posts other 

notices. 
8.2 After an Early Voting Site is approved by the Board of County Election Commissioners, 

the County Clerk will send a notice to each registered elector entitled to vote at that 

Early Voting Site with the information required under Michigan Election Law. The notice 

will be subject to review and approval by the parties. After that initial notice by the 

County Clerk, the Municipal Clerk will be responsible for sending the appropriate notice 

to each new registrant. The cost of printing and mailing the required notices will be the 

responsibility of each municipality. 

9. BUDGET AND COST SHARING. 

9.1 The Parties agree to the following cost sharing and chargeback procedures as follows: 

9.1.1 The County agrees to request funding and/or reimbursement from the State, 

local school district or other entity responsible for costs related to early voting. 

9.1.2 The County agrees to assume all costs related to the acquisition of equipment, 

software and supplies. 

9.1.3 The costs related to staffing the regional early voting site with Election 

Inspectors, publications and facility rental/cleaning charges that are not 

reimbursed by the State or other entity shall be equally divided amongst the 

participating municipalities. Payment will be remitted to the County within 30 

days of receipt of the invoice. 

3 



10. STAFFING, SUPERVISION AND TRAINING. 
10.1 The Coordinator is responsible for ensuring adequate staffing and supervision at the 

regional early voting site, and centra I early voting site, including selection of the site 

supervisor who oversees the site(s). 

10.2 The site supervisor shall operate in the same manner and have the same authority as a 

municipal clerk operates in an election day polling place. 

10.3 The site supervisors for early voting sites shall be designated for each election on the 

attached Exhibit B. 

10.4 The Coordinator is responsible for providing training to the Site Supervisors and Election 

Inspectors appointed to serve at the Early Voting Site for each election. 

11. TABULATORS AND EARLY VOTING POLL BOOK LAPTOPS AT EARLY VOTING SITE(S). 

12. 

11.1 The Parties agree to all of the following: 

11.1.1 The Coordinator, in consultation with the participating municipal clerks, will 

determine the number of tabulators and early voting poll book laptops or other 

voting equipment that are necessary at the regional early voting site. 

11.1.2 The County will provide the tabulators, early voting poll book laptops, other 

necessary voting equipment and supplies. 

11.2 The Board of County Election Commissioners will be responsible for conducting testing 

of the electronic voting equipment. 

11.3 The Coordinator, or designated site supervisor, will be responsible for taking necessary 

steps to set up the early voting poll book laptops. 

CANVASS OF EARLY VOTING RETURNS AND REPORTING OF EARLY VOTING RESULTS. 
12.1 The Board of County Election Commissioners is responsible for appointing the receiving 

board or group of election inspectors to canvass the early vote returns on Election Day 

and report early voting results to the County Clerk. 

13. EARLY VOTING PLAN. 

14. 

13.1 No later than 120 days before the first statewide or federal election in each even 

numbered year, the Coordinator will be responsible for ensuring an Early Voting Plan, 

attached as Exhibit A, is filed with the County Clerk of the county in which the 

municipalities are located. 

NOTICE TO SOS OF CHANGES TO LOCATIONS, DAYS, AND HOURS OF EARLY VOTING. 
14.1 Not less than 45 days before the first early voting day allowed by statute, the 

Coordinator will be responsible for providing the Secretary of State any changes made 

to a previously submitted Early Voting Plan that affect the locations, days, and hours of 

operation for each early voting site operated by the County. 

4 



15. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 

16. 

15.1 This Agreement and any amendments will be effective when executed by all Parties, as 

evidenced by the signature of the County Clerk and each participating municipal clerk, 

unless the Agreement has an effective date specifically entered on the signature page. 

15.2 This Agreement has no fixed termination date and may be terminated pursuant to its 

terms. 

CANCELLATION, MODIFICATION, AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

16.1 The County Clerk may withdraw from this Agreement for any reason by providing at 
least 30 days written notice to the other parties to the Agreement. The notice shall be 
sent to the municipalities at the address provided in this Agreement to the attention of 
the Municipal Clerk. If the County Clerk withdraws during the statutory timeframe from 
the Agreement for any reason, the Agreement will cease to exist, and the clerk of each 
participating municipality must submit a revised Early Voting Plan to the State Bureau of 
Elections outlining the manner in which early voting will be provided. 

16.2 The municipality may withdraw from this Agreement for any reason by providing at 
least 30 days written notice to the other parties to the Agreement. The notice shall be 

sent to the county at the address provided in this Agreement to the attention of the 
County Clerk. If a municipality withdraws from the Agreement for any reason during the 
statutory timeframe, the clerk of the municipality withdrawing from the Agreement 
must submit a revised Early Voting Plan to the State Bureau of Elections outlining the 

manner in which early voting will be provided. 

17. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

17.1 County shall not be liable for any consequential, incidental, indirect, remote, 

speculative, punitive, exemplary, liquidated, treble, or special damages, including, but 

not limited to, loss of profit, opportunity, use, revenue, data, or goodwill, whether 

based in whole or in part in contract, tort, equity, strict liability, under statute, or any 
other theory of liability, regardless of whether such damages were foreseeable or 

contemplated and even if County was advised or aware of the possibility of such 

damages. 

17.2 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State of 

Michigan, excluding Michigan's conflict of law principles. Except as otherwise required 

by law or court rule, any action brought to enforce, interpret, or decide any claim arising 

under or related to this Agreement shall be brought in the Sixth Judicial Circuit Court of 

the State of Michigan, the 50th District Court of the State of Michigan, or the United 

States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division, as dictated 

by the applicable jurisdiction of the court. Except as otherwise required by law or court 

rule, venue is proper in the courts set forth above. The choice of forum set forth above 

shall not be deemed to preclude the enforcement of any judgment obtained in such 

forum or taking action under this Contract to enforce such judgment in any appropriate 

jurisdiction. 

17.3 This Agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding between the 

Parties. This Agreement supersedes all other prior oral or written understandings, 

communications, agreements, or contracts between the Parties, except the 

5 



accompanying license agreement which is incorporated by reference. The language of 

this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning and not 

construed strictly for or against any Party. 

17.4 "Confidential Information" means all information and data that the County is required 

or permitted by law to keep confidential, which includes computer software, 

cybersecurity assessments and plans and measures to protect the County's copyrighted 
training materials. 

17.5 Municipality shall use appropriate safeguards to protect the confidentiality and integrity 

of Confidential Information. Municipality shall not reproduce, provide, disclose, or give 

access of Confidential Information to any Municipality Employee or third-party not 

having a legitimate need to know. Municipality and Municipality Employees shall only 

use the Confidential Information for performance of this Agreement. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, Municipality may disclose the Confidential Information, if required by 

law, statute, or other legal process; provided that Municipality: (a) gives the County 

prompt written notice of the impending disclosure; (b) provides reasonable assistance 

to the County in opposing or limiting the disclosure; and (c) makes only such disclosure 

as is compelled or required. This Agreement imposes no obligation upon Municipality 

with respect to any Confidential Information which Municipality can establish by legally 

sufficient evidence: (a) was in possession of or was known by Municipality, prior to its 

receipt from the County, without any obligation to maintain its confidentiality; or (b) is 

obtained by Municipality from a third-party having the right to disclose it, without an 

obligation to keep such information confidential. 

6 



Lisa Brown 

Oakland County Clerk 

Garland S. Doyle 

City of Pontiac Clerk 

Tim Greimel 

City of Pontiac Mayor 

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES 

BETWEEN OAKLAND COUNTY AND CITY OF PONTIAC 

Signature of County Clerk 

Signature of Clerk 

Signature of Mayor 

Effective Date: December 1, 2023 

Date 

Date 

Date 

7 



EXHIBIT A: Early Voting Plan 

No later than 120 days before the first statewide or federal election in each even numbered 

year, the Coordinator will file an Early Voting Plan, covering the Parties to the County 
Agreement, with the County Clerk of the County. 

Not less than 45 days before the first early voting day allowed by statute, the Coordinator will 
provide the Secretary of State any changes made to a previously submitted Early Voting Plan 

that affect the locations, dates, and hours of operation for each joint early voting site operated 
by the participating County and municipalities to ensure that the correct information is posted 

on the Michigan Voter Information Center (MVIC) portion of the Department of State's website. 

Plan Coverage: County Agreement 

Coordinator of County Agreement: 

Name of Coordinator Position 
Joseph J. Rozell Director of Elections 

County: 

Name of county 

Oakland County 

Municipality 1: 

Name of municipality Clerk of municipality 

City of Pontiac Garland S. Doyle 

Email Address Phone Number 
rozellj@oakgov.com (248) 858-0564 

Clerk of County 

Lisa Brown 

Number of precincts in Number of registered 
municipality electors in municipality 

18 48,288 

8 



Early Voting Location Information: 

Early voting site #1 Early voting site #2 
Location of site Waterford Oaks 

Pontiac Public Library, Activity Center, 2800 
60 E. Pike St., Pontiac, Watkins Lake Road, 
Michigan 48342 Waterford, Michigan 

48328 
Municipalities served at site 1 45 
Number of Election Workers 

7 7 
at site 
Is this an EV site for all 9 
days of Constitutionally- Yes Yes 
required early voting? (Y /N) 
Hours for 9 days of 

8:30 - 4:30 p.m. 8:30 - 4:30 p.m. 
Constitutionally-required 

Thursday 12 - 8 p.m. Thursday 12 - 8 p.m. 
early voting 
How many (if any) additional 
days of early voting will be None None 
provided at this site? 
Hours for any additional 

N/A N/A 
days of early voting 
Is this site ADA compliant? Yes Yes 
In selecting this site, did you 
take into account expected 
turnout, population density, 
public transportation, 

Yes Yes 
accessibility, travel time, 
travel patterns, and any 
other relevant 
considerations? 

Communication Strategy: 

The parties will use the following communication strategy for informing electors of their opportunity for 

early voting: 

Social media, websites, community newsletters, and other mediums deemed appropriate by clerks. 

9 



EXHIBIT B: SITE SUPERVISORS 

Regional Early Voting Site Number: _______ _ 

Election Date: ---------
Early Voting Site Supervisors: 

Primary Site Supervisor Backup Site Supervisor 
Early Voting Day 1 
Early Voting Day 2 
Early Voting Day 3 

Early Voting Day 4 
Early Voting Day 5 
Early Voting Day 6 
Early Voting Day 7 
Early Voting Day 8 
Early Voting Day 9 

10 



#5 

RESOLUTION 



 
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL  

RESOLUTION OF SOLIDARITY WITH SHAWN 
FAIN AND THE STRIKING UNITED AUTO 

WORKERS 
 

 
WHEREAS, On September 15, 2023, the United Auto Workers (UAW) and UAW 
President Shawn Fain initiated an unprecedented strike against General Motors, Ford 
Motor, and Stellantis after negotiations between the UAW and the Big 3 automakers 
were not resolved prior to the expiration of the union contracts; and  
 
WHEREAS, Currently, UAW workers are striking at 41 facilities across the country 
including 14 facilities here in Michigan, including the members of Local 653 at the 
General Motor Customer Care and Aftersales distribution facility right here in Pontiac; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the UAW is expected to expand the strike if negotiations do not produce 
contracts that are agreeable to their demands; and  
 
WHEREAS, The UAW’s primary demands are for wage increases, cost of living 
increases, shorter work weeks, a restoration of defined benefit pensions, the end of 
separate wage tiers, and stronger job security as automakers increasingly shift 
production to electric vehicles; and  
 
WHEREAS, UAW President Shawn Fain has stated that the union is attempting to 
address the increasingly unequal wage gap between auto workers and executives, as 
executive pay has increased 40% during the life of the previous contract while worker 
pay has only increased by 6%; and  
 
WHEREAS, The UAW is demanding a fairer share of the profits that auto workers 
generate, as the three automakers combined have made over $20 billion in profits in 
the first six months of 2023 and roughly a quarter of a trillion in profits over the last 
decade; and  
 
WHEREAS, The UAW was founded in Detroit, Michigan in 1935, largely in response 
to brutal working conditions in auto factories; and 
 
WHEREAS, General Motors (GM) began building coaches in Pontiac as early as 1928, 
making Pontiac the world's capital of coach manufacturing, and over many years these 
workers built cutting-edge GM coaches that carried passengers in comfort throughout 
America, including Freedom Riders who rode interstate buses to the segregated South 
in the 1960's; and 
 
WHEREAS, Perhaps the most famous and significant event in UAW history was the 
sit-down strike at the GM Fisher Body Plant in Flint, Michigan, which paved the way 
for union recognition at GM and shortly thereafter at Ford and Chrysler; and  



WHEREAS, The rise of the UAW and other unions in the 1930s and 1940s resulted in 
the first great expansion of healthcare for Americans, and throughout the 20th century, 
unions are credited with gaining vast improvements in the lives of working people, 
which include the weekend, the 40 hour work week, the end of child labor, the 8 hour 
work day, unemployment benefits, workers compensation benefits, and the Family 
and Medical Leave Act (FMLA); and  
 
WHEREAS, The UAW is calling its new strategy a “stand-up strike” in recognition 
that striking workers are continuing a long legacy of fighting for improved 
compensation and working conditions for its members and for all workers;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Pontiac City Council supports and 
stands in solidarity with striking UAW members, especially the members of Local 653, 
and UAW President Shawn Fain as they continue to seek a resolution to the strike that 
results in improved compensation, working conditions, as well as overall respect and 
dignity for its members working for GM, Ford, and Stellantis;  
 
NOW BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Pontiac City Clerk’s Office provide a 
copy of this resolution to UAW President Shawn Fain and UAW Local 653 President 
James Gonzales. 
 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL ●      Pontiac, Michigan ●        September 26, 2023
   

Mike McGuinness, Council President  William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem 

Mikal Goodman, Councilmember  Kathalee James, Councilmember 

Brett Nicholson, Councilmember  William Parker, Jr., Councilmember  

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember   



#6 
RESOLUTION 



Department of Public Works OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Pontiac City Council 

FROM: Allen H. Cooley Ill, Director of Public Works 

CC: Mayor Tim Greimel and Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

DATE: September 19, 2023 

RE: Purchase of 2 new trucks for DPW 

The DPW Department is looking to purchase 2 new vehicles for the department. 

The first is a multi-facetted medium duty cab and chassis that will allow the highway maint crew 
to use this truck for several functions. It will be outfitted with a switch and go system which will 
give the ability to switch out the bed of the truck depending on needed work. We are looking to 
purchase 5 beds that include, Chipper body, flat/stake bed, storage body(pod), and dump body. 
This will also come with a 9'westem snowplow. Total for this truck is $165,181. 
This truck will be funded out of GL 202-463-974.002 

The second truck is for the Building Maint. and it also is a cab and chassis with a Stahl 
Challenger high roof body. This will provide the ability to lock tools in the side boxes while 
being able to move equipment in the high roof area. Total for this truck is $78,113. 
This truck will be funded out of GL 445-458-977.002 

These vehicles are being purchased from a co-op program with Sourcewell and using Lindco a 
Viking-Cives company. 

WHERE AS, the City of Pontiac DPW will purchase vehicles needed in the daily operations of 
the department. 

WHERE AS, it is necessary to have these vehicles for the DPW operations. 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED: 

WHERE AS, the Pontiac City Council authorizes the DPW Director to purchase needed 
Vehicles for DPW from Lindco for $243,294. 



~'"L'!-.1~, ;,, ___ '~.ll/61# 
Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Untted States 

CU$tomerl0 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity 

I 
Quote Number: 230589C-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 15, 2023 
Page: 1 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

fTERMS & CONDITtQNS OF.QUOTE: . 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

• Good Thru Payment Ter.ms 
10/15/23 Net 30 Days 

Descriptloo .. 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT: 

CONTRACT HOLDER: Viking-Gives 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 062222-VCM 

CONTRACT MATURITY DATE: 08/15/2026 

CONTRACT NUMBERS: NJ2500, SW-TK0554, SW-TK0556 

SOURCEWELL MEMBER: 

MEMBER NUMBER: 47958 

MEMBER: City of Pontiac 

CONTACT: Vince Jimenez 

TITLE: DPW Superintendent 

PHONE: 248-758-3930 

E-MAIL: vjimenez@pontiac.mi.us 

TERMS OF QUOTE: 

***Due to the supply chain issues the following applies.*** 

* All quotes are only valid for thirty (30) days from date of quote. 

CHASSIS PAYMENT TERMS: 

* Ordered chassis must be paid for within 30 days of delivery to Lindco. 

* In stock chassis must be paid for within 30 days of receiving your purchase order. 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL Continued 



Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer. lD 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity 
.. 

1.00 

350.00 SWF-C 

Item ;; 

I 
Quote Number: 230589C-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 15, 2023 
Page: 2 

Viking-Cives #062222-VCM 

!TERMS & CONJJITlONS OEClUQTE • 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 

I 

> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

GooclThru. Payment .Terms ~ales Rep 
10/15/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

.·· .. , • . Description• ) . 
i . •.· ) .•· .. : 

* All chassis are subject to price increases up until time of delivery to Lind co. 

ESTIMATED DELIVERY TIME FRAME: 

* Allow approximately 180-240 days for chassis to be in stock at Lindco after receiving 

your purchase order. 

***Based on supply chain issues all of the above estimated time frames are subject to 

change.*** 

SUMMARY OF QUOTE: 

********************************* 

SOURCEWELL TOTAL PRICE: 
********************************* 

SOURCEWELL CHASSIS: 

2024 Chevy 3500 HD Double Cab 

* SRW, 4 x 4, 56" CA 

* Gas 

* Pick up box delete 

*Tobe ordered from Graff Chevy Davison 

SWF-C 

Subtotal 48,315.00 

Sales Tax 

TOTAL 48,315,00 



Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

.Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Cu$tome.r 10. 

Pontiac-01 

~uantity 

I 
Quote Number: 230589I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 15, 2023 
Page: 1 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

jTERMS& CONDITIQN§ OF QUOTE 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 

J 

> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Payment Terms 

Net 30 Days 

Description 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT: 

CONTRACT HOLDER: Viking-Gives 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 062222-VCM 

CONTRACT MATURITY DATE: 08/15/2026 

Sales Rep 
10312 

CONTRACT NUMBERS: NJ2400, NJ2500, SW-TK0524, SW-TK0554 

SOURCEWELL MEMBER: 

MEMBER NUMBER: 47958 

MEMBER: City of Pontiac 

CONTACT: Vince Jimenez 

TITLE: DPW Superintendent 

PHONE: 248-758-3930 

E-MAIL: vjimenez@pontiac.mi.us 

TERMS OF QUOTE: 

***Due to the supply chain issues the following applies.*** 

* All quotes are only valid for thirty (30) days from date of quote. 

EQUIPMENT PAYMENTTERMS: 

OPTION 1: 

* Pay for equipment within 30 days of purchase order date. 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax 

TOTAL 
. •. 

Continued 

Continued 

Continued 



✓, r· ~''"L" I ! 

Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA • 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To; 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customerl0 

Quantity. 

1.00 CST98VVS-48.5 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

I 
Quote Number: 230589I-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Sep 15, 2023 
2 

!TERMS & coNornoNS OF .QUQTE. 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

.Gooct Thru PaymenfTenns 
Net 30 Days 

Descriptio11 
* You are guaranteed no price increases on equipment. 

OPTION 2: 

Sales Rep· 
10312 

* Net 30 days payment after completion of chassis with all equipment. 

* Will be subject to all price increases up until time of completion. 

ESTIMATED DELIVERY TIME FRAME: 

* Allow approximately 200 days for all equipment to be in stock at Lindco after 

receiving your purchase order. 

* Allow approximately 90-120 days to complete units, once all equipment and chassis 

are in stock at Lindco. 

***Based on supply chain issues all of the above estimated time frames are subject to 

change.*** 

SUMMARY OF QUOTE: 

********************************* 

SOURCEWELL TOTAL PRICE: 
********************************* 

Equipment per below items mounted and fully operational. 
********************************* 

SERVICE BODY: 

Stahl CST98VVS-48.5 Challenger ST II Body 

* 223865 Highroof - 60" high, with (2) shelves per side, installed 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer ID 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity Item 

2.00 MFW2375-SS 

1.00 322418R 

1.00 510 

2.00 MWL-19 

I 
Quote Number: 230589I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 15, 2023 
Page: 3 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

!TERMS &CONDITIONS QFQU()TE 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 

I 

> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Good Thru P;:tyment.'Tet,ms Sales Rep 

10/15/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

. ·•· .. •.· •• ·•····· Description .. 
* 238303 LED strip lights installed in highroofwith recessed switch inside rear door 

* 224603 Windows installed in Highroof, (4) 8" x 32" non-opening, (2) per side 

* 228020 Grab Handles, (pair) stainless steel, bolt on, for body end panels or inside 

rear doors to ease access, loose 

* 23434 7 LED compartment strip lights with door jamb switches installed in (6) side 

compartments 

* 230165 Recessed circle embossed bumper 79", loose 

* 242519 Stirrup Step, 9" for installation to bumper, loose 

* 230523 LED S/T/T surface mounted bumper/end panel light kit, loose 

* 234924 Adapter plug for 2020-current GM, loose 

* 234921-03 OEM hitch mounting brackets for 2020-current Chevy/GM, loose 

* 234934 CST fender panel installed street side with front fuel fill 

* 200478 Powder Coat Universal White 

MUD FLAPS: 

Lindco Mud Flap Bolting Plate-Stainless Steel (Each) 

DuraGuard 3/8" HD 24" x 18" Poly Guard Mud Flap - Black - with Lindco Equipment 

Sales, Inc. Logo & Merrillville, IN molded blue/white into flap (price per pair) 

LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL: 

BACK UP ALARM: 

Ecco back-up alarm, 97 dB, 12 voe. 
WORK LIGHTS: 

Maxxima LED clear work light 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL Continued 



➔:{;1·~· /1)CO 
Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

'Customer ID 

Pontiac-01 

Quaritity .. Item . . 

14.00 EMPSC07M8-A 

1.00 LUV281443-581444 

1.00 HSL58281 

1.00 SSA13 

660.04 Misc. 

297.99 SWF-E 

1,600.00 FREIGHT 

40.00 INSTALLATION 

I 
Quote Number: 230589I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 15, 2023 
Page: 4 

Viking-Cives #062222-VCM 

jTERfv18& CONCJITIQl'-JS O_F QUOTE 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Good Tliru Payment Te.rms 
10/15/23 Net 30 Days 

·.·[}escription 
* Mounted high on rear of service body 

BODY LIGHTS: 

Sales Rep 
10312 

Sound Off mpower® 7"x3" with screw mount, 12 LED 9-32 volt SAE with 1.5" pigtail, 

clear housing, lens amber 

* (4) installed on front of body 

* (4) installed on rear of body 

* (3) mounted on each side of body 

CHASSIS ITEMS: 

Luverne black stainless steel side entry steps, select Silverado, Sierra, extended cab 

Husky Liner Front Mud Guards for Silverado HD Trucks 

SuperSpring heavy duty spring helper kit for rear P.S. & D.S. with MT-KT mounting Kit 

3400 lb additional load-leveling ability 

MISCELLANEOUS, FREIGHT, INSTALLATION: 

Miscellaneous Material - includes any or all of the following: wiring, electrical 

connectors, fie downs, clamps, nut, bolts, washers, steel, oil, grease, etc. 

SWF-E 

FREIGHT 

Lindco-Cives Installation Labor Hours 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax 

TOTAL 

29,798.00 

29,798.00 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

CustomerlD 
Pontiac-01 

I 
Quote Number: 230657C-SWL 

Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 1 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

!TERMS& CONDll]ONS OF QUOTE . •• 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

• IJescrlptioh 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT: 

CONTRACT HOLDER: Viking-Gives 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 062222-VCM 

CONTRACT MATURITY DATE: 08/15/2026 

CONTRACT NUMBERS: NJ2500, SW-TK0554, SW-TK0556 

SOURCEWELL MEMBER: 

MEMBER NUMBER: 47958 

MEMBER: City of Pontiac 

CONTACT: Vince Jiminez 

TITLE: DPW Superintendent 

PHONE: 248-758-3930 

E-MAIL: vjiminez@pontiac.mi.us 

TERMS OF QUOTE: 

***Due to the supply chain issues the following applies.*** 

* All quotes are only valid for thirty (30) days from date of quote. 

CHASSIS PAYMENT TERMS: 

* Ordered chassis must be paid for within 30 days of delivery to Lindco. 

* In stock chassis must be paid for within 30 days of receiving your purchase order. 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL. Continued· 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Custom.er lo·· 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity 

1.00 

.Item 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

I 
Quote Number: 230657C-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Sep 1, 2023 
2 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Paymenf Terms Sales.Rep 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

* All chassis are subject to price increases up until time of delivery to Lind co. 

ESTIMATED DELIVERY TIME FRAME: 

* Allow approximately 300-400 days for chassis to be in stock at Lindco after receiving 

your purchase order. 

***Based on supply chain issues all of the above estimated time frames are subject to 

change.*** 

SUMMARY OF QUOTE: 

********************************* 

SOURCEWELL TOTAL PRICE: 
********************************* 

SOURCEWELL CHASSIS: 

2024 Ford F550 Regular Cab 

* 4x4, 84" CA, 169" Wheelbase, D RW 

* 6. 7L V8 Diesel 

* 473- Snowplow prep package 

* 528 -Trailer brake controller 

* 531 - Trailer tow package 

* 62R PTO Provision 

* 90L - Power equipment group 

* 43C - 100v/400w outlet 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL Continued 



Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIKING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, IN 46410 
USA 
Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quot~dTo: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customerm 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity 

350.00 SWF-C 

Item 

I 
Quote Number: 230657C-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

Sep 1, 2023 
3 

jTERMS & {:;ONDll]ONS OF OLJOTE •. 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 

I 

> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Good.Thru Payment Te~ms .Sales ~ep 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

. ·•. ·• [)ascription 
. .... : 

. .. ··" 

* Lindco stock truck currently on order 

SWF-C 

Subtotal 68,771.00 

Sales Tax 

TOTAL 68,771.00 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

.Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Cusfoiner ID 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity 
; 

Item ... _:_ 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 1 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

TERMS & CONDITIONS OEQUOTE 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

• Good. Thru . • Payment.Terms .Sales Rep< 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

. Description 
.. ; Unit ~rice • ... • Amount > •. •. . 

.. 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT: 

CONTRACT HOLDER: Viking-Gives 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 062222-VCM 

CONTRACT MATURITY DATE: 08/15/2026 

CONTRACT NUMBERS: NJ2500 

SOURCEWELL MEMBER: 

MEMBER NUMBER: 47958 

MEMBER: City of Pontiac 

CONTACT: Vince Jiminez 

TITLE: DPW Superintendent 

PHONE: 248-758-3930 

E-MAIL: vjiminez@pontiac.mi.us 

TERMS OF QUOTE: 

***Due to the supply chain issues the 

following applies.*** 

* All quotes are only valid for thirty (30) days 

from date of quote. 

EQUIPMENT PAYMENT TERMS: 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 
25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoteijto: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer II) 

Pontiac-01 

Quantity . .. Item. .. 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 2 

Viking-Cives #062222-VCM 

ERMS.& CONDITIONS.OFQUOTE 
> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

·GoodThrti Payment Terms s.ales·Rep 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

Description · ... . · 
. • Unit Price .. • ... Amoun.t 

. 

' .. •· ... . 

OPTION 1: 

* Pay for equipment within 30 days of 

purchase order date. 

* You are guaranteed no price increases on 

equipment. 

OPTION 2: 

* Net 30 days payment after completion of 

chassis with all equipment. 

* Will be subject to all price increases up 

until time of completion. 

ESTIMATED DELIVERY TIME FRAME: 

* Allow approximately 120 days for all 

equipment to be in stock at Lindco after 

receiving your purchase order. 

* Allow approximately 120-180 days to 

complete units, once all equipment and 

chassis are in stock at Lindco. 

***Based on supply chain issues all of the 

above estimated time frames are subject to 

change.*** 

SUMMARY OF QUOTE: 

********************************* 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 
25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL 

.. 
Continued .. 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 
Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer ID 
Pontiac-01 

• Quantity. .. 
·. 

1.00 6670005 

Item 

1.00 4850000-1H 

1.00 4850005 

1.00 1730018 

1.00 2720066 

Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

Sep 1, 2023 
3 

Ti;RMS &. CONDITIONS OF Q:UOTE 

I 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

.GoodThru· Payment Terms Sales Rep 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

•· .. .. ... . Oescriptiqn 
; Unit Price··. Amount .•. •. 

SOURCEWELL TOTAL PRICE: 
********************************* 

Equipment per below items mounted and 

fully operational. 
********************************* 

SWITCH NGO: 

Switch-N-Go 11-4016-15H-10T Gen II, 17,755.00 17,755.00 

Switch-N-Go 11' hydraulic hoist system, 

15,000lbs winch loading capacity, hydraulic 

winch and hoist, unlimited pulls per day 

* Approx dumping capacity 10.3 ton 

* Pre-plumbed hydraulic lines 

* Pre-installed in-line filter housing with 

reusable filter 

* Hydraulic reservoir 15 gallons with filter 

* Standard 18" rear overhang 

* Estimated weight of system 1,238 lbs 

* CA: 84"-96" recommended 

Switch-N-Go install kit for Gen II H-Series 

hoist. 

Switch-N-Go Bracket Kit 

Switch-N-Go 15 gallon side mount steel 

hydraulic reservoir with 10 micron filter 

Switch-N-Go Hydraulic reservoir mounting 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



-

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer ID 
Pontiac-01 

quantity •· .. 

1.00 

Item 

20.00 Hydraulic Oil 

1.00 6110501-KIT 

1.00 3790022 

1.00 4000201 

• Gooct .Th.ru 
10/1/23 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 4 

Viking-Cives #062222-VCM 

TERMS &.CONDIT.IONS OF QUOTE 
> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

PaynieniTerms Sales Rep 
Net 30 Days 10312 

- . Description Unit Price Amount .•· •· •.· .. ·.• .· • .. 

bracket 

Hydraulic hoses and fittings 300.00 300.00 

Hydraulic Oil 13.30 266.00 

Switch-N-Go Versa-Fit Bumper System, 1,280.00 1,280.00 

with light bars 

* Multi-OEM bolt on bumper face plate 

* Lighttubes 

* (2) lights per side, S/Tff Back & S/T/T 

Backup & Strobe 

* Mounting hardware 

* Rated for 20K 

Switch-N-G o wire harness, ford tail light 81.25 81.25 

adapter 

Switch-N-Go Fuel Filler Rod 71.25 71.25 

1.00 3170174 FEN-19.5-PL Switch-N-Go Fender 19.5 Tires w/ Mounting 496.25 496.25 -

Brackets 

1.00 3790034 Switch-N-Go Kit, wireless sng remote 625.00 625.00 

control, gen 11, wireless controller, 

transmitter, and charge wire 

1.00 3790055 Switch-N-Go Kit, wireless charger for 

remote with usb. magnetic 

1.00 6924811 Switch-N-Go 11' Dump Body 7,830.00 7,830.00 

* Floor: 10 gauge 

* 12" side height & 24" tailgate height 

* Sides 12 gauge sheet 

* Tai lg ate 2" x 2" x 3/16" tubing & 10 gauge 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 
25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 

Quote Date: 
Page: 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

Sep 1, 2023 
5 

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF QUOTE 

I 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Cu$tomerl0 Good.Thru Payment Terms Sal.es~~p 
Pontiac-01 

. Quantity ••• ... Item 

1.00 6020211 EB-11-BEAV 

1.00 6081010 STAKES-10 

10/1/23 Net 30 Days 

. .. . .. [)escrlption 
sheet 

* Bulkhead: Inside 39" for 48" high truck 

cabs 

* Crossmembers: 3" structural channel 16" 

on center 

* Top rail: 3" x 3" x 1 /8" tubing 

* Volume: 3.1 cubic yards 

* Powdura OneCure Zinc Epoxy Primer & 

Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Estimated weight 1,956Ibs 

Switch-N-Go EB-11-BEAV-RSP 11' 

Equipment Body/Flat Bed with Beaver Tail 

and Rear Stake Pockets at top of tail 

* Floor: 10' flat deck, 1' beaver tail, 1/8" 

diamond plate 

* Cross Members: 3" structural channel on 

16" centers 

* Bulkhead: Switch-N-Go Logo bulkhead for 

48" cabs 

* Outer rail: 3" x 3" x 1/8" tubing 

* Key holes in the floor at the four corners 

* External Stake Pockets on 24" centers 

* Powdura OneCure Zinc Epoxy Primer & 

Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Estimated weight 1,308Ibs 

Switch-N-Go Stake sides for EB-10, 

25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders 

10312 

Unit Price ... Amount 

6,045.00 6,045.00 

3,697.50 3,697.50 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

•Quote~To: 

Pontiac, City of 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 6 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

TERMS & CONDfflONS Of QI.JOT~·. 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

Customer ID G.9odT.hru • payment Terms Sales Rep 
Pontiac-01 10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

••.• Quantity ... .Item .. ·• . 
Description .. .: Unit Price • Amount . ' \, ' ~' .. ,· . .• ... , . 

EB11-BEAV; 2 piece sides & 1 piece rear 

gate 42" tall 

1.00 6441151 MDRB-1151-SS Switch N Go 11' floor, 51" sides, medium 9,263.50 9,263.50 

duty drop box with bolted on chipper roof 

* Single side swing gate 

* Tailgate: 2" x 2" x 1/8" tubular frame, work 

formed 12 gauge sheet 

* Floor: 10 gauge 

* Side posts: 2-3 per side, 12 gauge sheet 

* Crossmembers: 3" structural channel on 

16" centers 

* Top Rail: 3" x 3" x 1 /8" tubing 

* Sides/Front/Tailgate: 12 gauge sheet 

* Roof 12 gauge sheet 24" high with top 

support, 2" x 2" x 1/8" & 8" angle edge, 

mesh vents on both sides 

* Volume: 19.7 cubic yards 

* Body exterior: Powdura OneCure Zinc 

Epoxy Primer & Super Durable TG IC 

Topcoat 

* Body interior: Super Durable TGIC Topcoat 

* Roof: Powdura OneCure Zinc Epoxy 

Primer & Super Durable TGIC Topcoat 

* Estimated weight 3009Ibs 

1.00 6401151 MDRB-1151-SS Switch N Go 11' floor, 51" sides medium 7,553.75 7,553.75 

duty drop box 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quotei:tTo: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

Sep 1, 2023 
7 

TERMS&CONDITIONS OFQUOTE 

I 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

cus.tomer ID GoodThru Payment Terms SalesRep 
Pontiac-01 10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

Qu~ntity Item . Description 
.. .. Unit Price Arriount • • .. ... .. : : ; ; .. 

* Single side swing gate 

* Tailgate: 2" x 2" x 1/8" tubular frame, work 

formed 12 gauge sheet 

* Floor: 10 gauge 

* Side posts: 3 per side, 12 gauge 

* Crossmembers: 3" structural channel on 

16" centers 

* Top Rail: 3" x 3" x 1 /8" tubing 

* Sides/Front/Tailgate: 12 gauge sheet 

* Volume: 13.4 cubic yards 

* Exterior: Powdura OneCure Zinc Epoxy 

Primer & Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Interior: Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Estimated weight: 2,291 lbs 

1.00 6861172 SB-1172-INT Switch-N-Go 11' Floor 72" sides storage 13,268.75 13,268.75 • 

body internal posts 

* Interior post: 3" structural channel 

* Doors: Lockable Security-Style with 3" x 3" 

supports 

* Floor: 10 gauge sheet 

* Crossmembers: 3" structural channel on 

16" centers 

* Top rail: 3" x 3" x 1 f' square steel tubing 

* Bulkhead: 12 gauge sheet 

* Peak Roof: 6" high 12 gauge sheets 

* Exterior: Powdura OneCure Zinc Epoxy 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer I[) 

Pontiac-01 

Quantity 

2.00 MFW2375-SS 

1.00 322418R 

1.00 1173224 Rev.B 

1.00 510 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 8 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

TERMS& CONQlTlONS .. Of QUQTE .· •• 
> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

GoodThru Payrnent Terms 

10/1/23 Net 30 Days 

. .... • .· be~cription .. 
Primer & Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Interior: Super Durable TGIC topcoat 

* Estimated weight 3,020Ibs 

MUD FLAPS: 

Lindco Mud Flap Bolting Plate-Stainless 

Steel (Each) 

DuraGuard 3/8" HD 24" x 18" Poly Guard 

Mud Flap - Black - with Lindco Equipment 

Sales, Inc. Logo & Merrillville, IN molded 

blue/white into flap (price per pair) 

* Installed on fenders 

PTO: 

Force America PTO & pump Combo, 

AGP25 6.2L-7.3L Gas, upfitter switch 

harness for 2020-Up F350-F600, 12v 

elec/hyd shift pto 4x4 & 4x2 

ELECTRICAL: 

BACK UP ALARM: 

Ecco back-up alarm, 97 dB, 12 voe. 
BODY UP LIGHT & SWITCH: 

.S.ales Rep 

10312 

UnitPrice ••· .· AQ1ount 

23.50 47.00 

18.78 18.78 

3,131.24 3,131.24 

23.14 23.14 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 

25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



Equipment Sales 
DIVISION OF VIl<ING-CIVES GROUP 

2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

0\lotedTo: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
United States 

Customer ID 

Pontiac-01 

Quantity . 
1.00 B95W 

1.00 0800850 

1.00 SSA50 

Item 

1.00 WES 9' PRO-PLUS 

1.00 PAINT-MISCEL 

1.00 PAI NT HOO KU FT 

Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: 
Page: 

Viking-Gives #062222-VCM 

Sep 1, 2023 
9 

ERtv1S.&.CONDIT.lONS QF.QlJQTE 

I 

> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

GoodThru Payment T~rms • S~lesRep 

10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

·.•. 
Despription . Unit Price. < Amount . .. · ..... 

Buyers Dump Body Up Indicator 30.45 30.45 

Imperial LED indicator light - red 4.50 4.50 

SUPER SPRINGS: 

SuperSpring 3000# spring (1500# per side), 629.99 629.99 

HD mounting hardware included 

PLOW: 

Western 9' Pro-Plus Plow. 8,119.13 8,119.13 

* 76901 9' ProPlus Blade 

* 31270 UltraMount Mount (17+) 

* 75700-3 Big Box Pro Plus 75600 

* 85973 2023 Ford Superduty, plug-in 

* 29070-1 Module 3 port, with DRL 

* 72525 NightHawk LED light kit 

* 35500 96500 control, hand held 

* 62220-1 9' rubber snow deflector 8" wide 

PAINT: 

Paint Miscel 192.50 192.50 

Paint hooklift black 812.50 812.50 

MISCELLANEOUS, FREIGHT, 

Subtotal Continued 

Sales Tax Continued 
25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL Continued 



2168 East 88th Drive 
Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Voice: (219)795-1448 

Fax: (219)736-0892 

Quoted To: 

Pontiac, City of 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Untted States 

customer ID . . 
Pontiac-01 

Quantity· ••.• 

942.38 Misc. 

964.14 SWF-E 

3,241.00 FREIGHT 

Item 

72.00 INSTALLATION 

I 
Quote Number: 230657I-SWL 
Quote Date: Sep 1, 2023 
Page: 10 

Viking-Cives #062222-VCM 

TERMS & CONDITIO.NS OF QUOTE 
> Quotes are only valid for 30 days from date of quote. 
> Quotes past 30 days must be requoted. 
> 25% restocking fee on all cancelled and returned orders. 

GoodThru Payment Terms • Sales~ep' 
10/1/23 Net 30 Days 10312 

;. Description > · • .. 
.. 

Unit Price .. Ampunt • .. · .. 

INSTALLATION: 

Miscellaneous Material - includes any or all 1.00 942.38 

of the following: wiring, electrical 

connectors, tie downs, clamps, nut, bolts, 

washers, steel, oil, grease, etc. 

SWF-E 1.00 964.14 

FREIGHT 1.00 3,241.00 

Lindco-Cives Installation Labor Hours 135.00 9,720.00 

Subtotal 96,410.00 

Sales Tax 
25% Restock Fee on All Cancelled and Returned Orders TOTAL 96,410,00 



F-550 Cab and Chassis 

SWl1TiCH1fJtGO' 
~ $/.;;;, #"-S,,, "'="" ==""' 

DROP BOX & 
DUMPSTER BODIES 

PLATFORM & EQUIPMENT 
BODIES 

Bodies 

DUMP BODIES ARBOR BODIES 

ENCLOSED BODIES SUBFRAME BODIES 



2024 Chevy 3500HD Double Cab 

Stahl Challenger ST High Roof Body 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

September 19,2023 

Honorable City Council 

Deborah Younger, Economic Development Manager 

SUBJECT: Resolution Requesting the Oakland County Brownfield Authority to Review the 204 West 
New York Avenue (Carlisle Townhomes), Parcel Number 14-08-353-011, Brownfield Plan 

A Brownfield project known as 204 W. New York Avenue (Carlisle town homes) is being proposed by the 
Community Housing Network. The proposed project will facilitate the redevelopment of a 3.8-acre 
commercially developed piece of land and the adjoining rights-of-way. The new development involves 
the demolition of the former Weaver school building at the site as it is not economically viable to be 
repurposed. The property will then be redeveloped into 19 single-family rental townhomes. The project 
will also create an estimated 500 square-foot community center providing enrichment classes and after
school and summer youth programing and a playground for residents. 

Overall, this $1.8 million project is set to serve a public purpose in Pontiac, expanding the tax base, 
investing significant capital into the community, and creating affordable housing. The Carlisle 
Townhomes will be targeted to individuals and families up to 60% of Area Median Income (AMI). 

The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority will review the Brownfield plan and intends to collect an 
administrative fee of 5% of the local tax increment peer year for the length of the Brownfield Plan. City 
Council will have the opportunity to provide public comment on any Brownfield Plan (including the 
amount of the administrative fee to be collected) before it is finally adopted by the Oakland County 
Board of Commissioners. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml L18342 • Phone: 248.758.3000 • www.pontiac.mi.us 



D 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Resolution Requesting the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to Review the 204 W. 
New York Avenue (Carlisle Townhomes) Brownfield Plan 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Redevelopment Authority was created by Oakland County pursuant to 
MCL 125.2651 et seq. to assist jurisdictions like the City of Pontiac; and 

WHEREAS, A Brownfield project known as 204 W. New York Avenue (Carlisle Town homes) in the City of 
Pontiac is proposed by the Community Housing Network, Inc. for review and approval by the Oakland 
County Brownfield Authority; and 

WHEREAS, City of Pontiac desires to have the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
process the 204 W. New York Avenue (Carlilse Townhomes) Brownfield Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is prepared to assist the City of 
Pontiac by reviewing the proposed 204 W. New York Avenue (Carlisle Townhomes) Brownfield Plan, 
provided that the City of Pontiac acknowledges certain rights that the Oakland County Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority has, to wit: 

• OCBRA intends to collect an administrative fee of 5% of the local tax increment per year for the 
length of the Brownfield Plan; and 

WHEREAS, THE City of Pontiac will have the opportunity to provide public comment on any Brownfield 
Plan (including the amount of the administrative fee to be collected) before it is finally adopted by the 
Oakland Board of Commissioners; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Pontiac requests that the Oakland County Brownfield 
Authority undertake review of the 204 W. New York Avenue (Carlisle Town homes) Redevelopment Plan. 

CITY OF PONl'IAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, Ml 48342 • Phone: 248.758.3000 • www.pontiac.mi.us 



#8
RESOLUTION 



1 

 

   
Executive Branch   

 
 
TO:  Honorable City Council President and City Council  

 

FROM:  Mayor Tim Greimel   

 

DATE:  September 22, 2023 

 

RE: Appointment of Local Officers Compensation Commission   

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Honorable City Council: 

 

In accordance with the Home Rule City Act (act 279 of 1909) the administration is putting forth seven (7) 

names for a local officers compensation commission.    

 

According to the act, the commission meets in odd years only. Additionally, the appointments are to be 

made before October 1 in the year of the appointment. The appointments will be for 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 years. 

The staggered appointments are because the City did not keep up with filling the expired positions in the 

past.  

 

 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your approval. 

 

 

 

  

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 



2 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPOINTMENT MEMBERS OF A LOCAL OFFICERS COMPENSATION 

COMMISSION   

 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with act 279 of 1909 the City should appoint 7 members to a local 

compensation commission; and   

 

WHEREAS, those members should be appointed before October 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the commission can only meet in odd numbered years; and  

 

WHEREAS, the city is undergoing a complete review of compensation; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in accordance with the act 279 of 1909, the following 

individuals are appointed to the local officers compensation commission.  

 

Michael Klockow – 1 Year Term 

Val Gross – 2 Year Term 

Lee Jones – 3 Year Term  

Roger Jackson – 4 Year Term  

Gloria Harsten-Spann – 5 Year Term 

Caroll Turpin – 6 Year Term  

Susan Loveland – 7 Year Term  

 



THE HOME RULE CITY ACT (EXCERPT)
Act 279 of 1909

117.5c Local officers compensation commission; creation; purpose; appointment,
qualifications, and terms of members; vacancies; determination of salaries; expenses;
meetings; quorum; concurrence of majority required; election of chairperson;
compensation of members; conducting business at public meeting; notice of meeting;
availability of certain writings to public; resolution; changing procedure; petition for
referendum.
Sec. 5c. In place of a charter provision existing on December 31, 1972 establishing the salaries or the

procedure for determining salaries of elected officials, the governing body may establish, by ordinance, the
procedure described in this section, in which case the restriction contained in a charter provision with respect
to changing salaries during term shall be inapplicable. The ordinance shall provide the following:

(a) A local officers compensation commission is created which shall determine the salaries of each local
elected official. The commission shall consist of 5 members in a city of 20,000 population or less and 7
members in a city of over 20,000 population. The members shall be registered electors of the city, appointed
by the mayor subject to confirmation by a majority of the members elected and serving in the legislative body.
In the case of a 5-member commission, the terms of office shall be 5 years, except that of the members first
appointed, 1 each shall be appointed for terms of 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 years. In the case of a 7-member
commission, the terms of office shall be 7 years, except that of the members first appointed, 1 each shall be
appointed for terms of 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 years. The first members shall be appointed within 30 days after
the effective date of the ordinance. Members other than the first members shall be appointed before October 1
of the year of appointment. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term. A member or
employee of the legislative, judicial, or executive branch of government or a member of the immediate family
of a member or employee of the legislative, judicial, or executive branch of government shall not be a
member of the commission.

(b) The commission shall determine the salary of each local elected official. The determination shall be the
salary unless the legislative body, by resolution adopted by 2/3 of the members elected to and serving on the
legislative body, rejects it. The determination of the commission shall be effective 30 days following its filing
with the city clerk unless rejected by the legislative body. If the determination is rejected, the existing salary
shall prevail. The expense allowance or reimbursement paid to elected officials in addition to salary shall be
for expenses incurred in the course of city business and accounted for to the city.

(c) The commission shall meet for not more than 15 session days in each odd numbered year and shall
make its determination within 45 calendar days after its first meeting. A majority of the members of the
commission constitutes a quorum for conducting the business of the commission. The commission shall not
take action or make a determination without a concurrence of a majority of the members appointed and
serving on the commission. The commission shall elect a chairperson from among its members. As used in
this section, "session day" means a calendar day on which the commission meets and a quorum is present. The
members of the commission shall not receive compensation, but shall be entitled to actual and necessary
expenses incurred in the performance of official duties.

(d) The business which the commission may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting of the
commission held in compliance with Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976, being sections 15.261 to 15.275
of the Michigan Compiled Laws. Public notice of the time, date, and place of the meeting of the commission
shall be given in the manner required by Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976.

(e) A writing prepared, owned, used, in the possession of, or retained by the commission in the
performance of an official function shall be made available to the public in compliance with Act No. 442 of
the Public Acts of 1976, being sections 15.231 to 15.246 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

(f) The governing body shall implement this section by resolution. After 1 year following the date the
ordinance goes into effect the procedure for establishing the compensation of elected officials may be
changed by charter amendment or revision.

(g) Not more than 60 days after the effective date of the ordinance, a petition for a referendum on the
ordinance may be filed pursuant to the procedure provided in the charter or otherwise by filing a petition with
the city clerk containing the signatures of at least 5% of the registered electors of the city on the effective date
of the ordinance. The election shall be conducted in the same manner as an election on a charter amendment.
If a petition for referendum is filed, a determination of the commission shall not be effective until the
ordinance has been approved by the electors.

History: Add. 1972, Act 8, Imd. Eff. Feb. 17, 1972;Am. 1977, Act 204, Imd. Eff. Nov. 17, 1977;Am. 1978, Act 106, Imd. Eff.

Rendered Thursday, September 21, 2023 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 125 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



Apr. 6, 1978.

Rendered Thursday, September 21, 2023 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 125 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



#9 
RESOLUTION 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 
To Authorize Mayor to Execute Conditional Rezoning Agreement regarding 454 

Auburn Avenue 

Resolution to Authorize Mayor to Execute Conc,titional Rezoning Agreement regarding 454 Auburn Avenue. 

At a meeting of the City Council ("Board") of the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan 
(the "City") at a meeting held on _______ , at 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, MI 48342 at 6:00 
p.m., there were: 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following preambles and resolution were offered by ______ and seconded by ______ _ 

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend the City of Pontiac Zoning 

Ordinance Map to conditionally rezone 454 Auburn Avenue; specifically to amend the Zoning Ordinance Map which list 

454 Auburn Avenue from the classification(s) Local Business (C-1), Corridor Commercial (C-3), and Multiple-Family Dwelling 

(R-3) to Multiple-Family Dwelling Elevator Apartment (R-4) with the Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest for the health, safety, and welfare, to reject the 

Planning Commission's Recommendation and approve the amendments to the Zoning Ordinance Map as presented. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby authorizes the Mayor to Execute the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement regarding 454 Auburn Avenue. 

A roll call vote on the foregoing resolution was taken, the result of which is as follows: 

YES: 

NO: 

ABSTAIN: 

THE RESOLUTION WAS THEREUPON DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342 I 248-758-2800 I planning@pontiac.mi.us 

Mayor Tim Greimel 



CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Pontiac, Michigan, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council at a regular meeting 
held on ____ , the original of which is on file in my office, and that such meeting was conducted and public 
notice thereof was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Michigan Public Acts of 1976, as 
amended, and that minutes of such meeting were kept and are available as required by such Act. 

By: _____________ _ 
Dated: September, __ , 2023 Its: City Clerk 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342 I 248-758-2800 I planning@pontiac.mi.us 

Mayor Tim Greimel 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT 

This Conditional Rezoning Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this __ day of 
_______ , 2023, by and between THE CITY OF PONTIAC, with its offices located at 
4 7 450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, MI 48342 (the "City"), and Lighthouse MI ("Lighthouse") with 
its principal office located at 46156 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, MI 48342. 

THE PARTIES RECITE THAT: 

WHEREAS, Lighthouse owns a certain parcel of real property located within the City of 
Pontiac, which is commonly described as follows: 

454 Auburn Rd., Pontiac, MI 48342 

WHEREAS, Lighthouse seeks re-zoning of the referenced parcel, as shown on Exhibit A. 
The parcels where rezoning is sought shall be referred to herein as the "Property." The Property is 
currently zoned as follows and the legal descriptions for the Property are on Exhibit A attached 
hereto: 

Parcel Number(s) Previous Zoning Rezoned to the following 
District Zoning District: 

14-33-205-034 Local Business Multiple-Family 
(C-1 ); Corridor Dwelling Elevator 
Commercial (C- Apartment (R-4) 
3); Multiple 
Family Dwelling 
(R-3) 

WHEREAS, under and pursuant to Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 
2008 PA 110, as amended (codified at MCL § 125.3405 et seq), certain conditions voluntarily 



offered by the owner of land, including an agreement between the City and the Lighthouse, may 
become a condition of rezoning of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Lighthouse submitted the Application for Zoning Map Amendment, 
which was supplemented by the Offer of Conditions on August 29, 2023, attached as Exhibit B 
( collectively "Application"), voluntarily offering, in writing, certain conditions to rezone the 
Property as set forth in the table above, subject to the conditions of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission on _________ , held a Public 
Hearing on the request for Conditional Rezoning and proposed amendment to the City's Zoning 
Map Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council on _____ , voted to approve the request for 
Conditional Rezoning and adopted Ordinance No. [add Ordinance number] to amend the City's 
Zoning Map Ordinance based upon the conditions set forth in this Agreement and the attached 
Exhibits; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises 
hereinafter set forth, the City and the Lighthouse agree as follows: 

1. CONDITIONAL REZONING, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT, AND 
CONDITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS TO USE OF PROPERTY 

A. Conditional Rezoning. Consistent with MCL §125.3405, the Property has 
been conditionally rezoned from the classification(s) Local Business (C-1), Corridor 
Commercial (C-3), and Multiple-Family Dwelling (R-3) to Multiple-Family Dwelling 
Elevator Apartment (R-4) as set forth above, with conditions as approved by the City 
Council based upon the Lighthouse's Offer of Conditions, subject to and in accordance 
with this Agreement, unless this Agreement is amended by mutual agreement of the City 
and Lighthouse, following public hearing, or unless the Lighthouse determines to use the 
Property in accordance with the zoning applicable to the Property under and in accordance 
with the termination provisions set forth herein. Lighthouse and future owners of the 
Property shall not develop and use the Property in a manner inconsistent with this 
Agreement. 

B. Project Definition. The Project shall be based on the Lighthouse's Site 
Plan Approval Application Submittal Package that is to be submitted subsequent to the 
approval and execution of this Agreement and is a condition of this Agreement as more 
fully set forth below. Except as modified herein or pursuant to any variances or deviations 
approved by the City, the Property shall remain subject to all other zoning and use district 
regulations of the City Zoning Ordinance, for property zoned Multiple-Family Dwelling 
Elevator Apartment (R-4), as applicable in accordance with the zoning of each respective 

2 



parcel as set forth above, and as limited by Lighthouse's Offer of Conditions, and shall 
remain subject to all other requirements of the City's building, zoning, and other land use 
regulations. 

C. Offered Conditions. The Lighthouse has voluntarily offered the following 
condition in consideration for the City's granting of the rezoning: 

1. The 60 feet of frontage along the Right of Way shall include a 10- to 12-foot-deep 
patio in front of the Community Room/Leasing Office Area. This patio shall 
include six (6) benches along with a paved patio area of approximately 430 square 
feet. The patio area shall include six ( 6) shade trees over the seating area. 

11. A row of Arbor Vitae shrubs shall be planted along the entire length of the east and 
west bufferyards (planted 4 feet on center) to help screen the adjacent commercial
zoned properties. 

iii. In order to help buffer the Auburn Road Right of Way and the adjacent multi-family 
properties to the south, an additional 10% over and above the required amount of 
landscaping shall be added to the front and rear yards. 

D. Acknowledgement. Lighthouse Michigan hereby acknowledges that the 
rezoning with conditions was proposed by the Lighthouse to induce the City to grant the 
rezoning, and that the City relied upon such proposal and would not have granted the 
rezoning but for the terms spelled out in the conditional rezoning agreement; and, 
Lighthouse further agrees and acknowledges that the conditions and conditional rezoning 
agreement are authorized by all applicable state and federal law and constitution, and that 
the Agreement is valid and was entered into on a voluntary basis, and represents a 
permissible exercise of authority by the City. Lighthouse further represents and warrants 
that it agrees to all of the following: 

1. That the property in question shall not be developed or used m a manner 
inconsistent with this conditional rezoning agreement. 

ii. That each of the requirements and conditions set forth in this Agreement represents 
a necessary and reasonable measure which, when considered with all other 
conditions and requirements, is roughly proportional to the increased impact 
created by the use represented in the approved rezoning with conditions, taking into 
consideration the changed zoning district classification and the specific use 
authorization granted. 

iii. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as replacing the requirement for 
Lighthouse to obtain preliminary and final Site Plan, subdivision, condominium, or 

3 



special land use review and approval, as applicable. 

2. PERIOD OF APPROVAL. Unless extended by the City Council for good cause, 
the rezoning with conditions shall expire following a period of two (2) years from the effective 
date of the rezoning unless bona fide development of the property pursuant to approved 
building and other permits required by the City commences within the two (2) year period and 
proceeds diligently and in good faith as required by ordinance to completion. 

A. Expiration. In the event bona fide development has not commenced within 
two (2) years from the effective date of the rezoning, the rezoning with conditions and the 
conditional rezoning agreement shall be void and of no effect. Lighthouse may apply for a 
one (1) year extension one (1) time. The request must be submitted to the City Clerk before 
the two (2) year time limit expires. Lighthouse must show good cause as to why the 
extension should be granted. 

B. Effect of Expiration. If the rezoning with conditions becomes void in the 
manner provided in this section, no development shall be undertaken or permits for 
development issued until a new zoning district classification of the property has been 
established. Either or both of the following actions may be taken: 

i. Lighthouse may seek a new rezoning of the property and the City may approve 
same; and/or 

ii. Pursuant to MCL 125.3405, the land shall revert to its former zoning classification 
following the process for approval of a rezoning with conditions. 

C. Extension. If an extension of approval is granted by the City Council, a new 
conditional rezoning agreement with the new expiration date shall be recorded. 

3. RECORDATION. This Rezoning shall become effective following publication in 
the manner provided by law and recording of the conditional rezoning agreement with the 
County Register of Deeds. 

4. DEFAULT. If development and/or actions are undertaken on or with respect to 
the property in violation of the conditional rezoning agreement, such development and/or 
actions shall constitute a nuisance per se. In such case, the City may issue a stop work order 
relative to the property and seek any other lawful remedies. Until curative action is taken to 
bring the property into compliance with the conditional rezoning agreement, the City may 
withhold, or, following notice and an opportunity to be heard, revoke permits and certificates 
in addition to or in lieu of such other lawful action to achieve compliance. In the event that the 
Lighthouse defaults on the condition(s) of this Agreement, then, the City may, at its option and 
within its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement. In the event that this Agreement is 

4 



terminated by then, by written notice given by the City to the Lighthouse within three (3) 
months following such failure by the Lighthouse, the City may, at its option and within its sole 
discretion, declare the Property to revert back to its previous Zoning District(s) and terminate 
the approval of any Site Plan for the Project. 

5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, if any, 
and the instruments which are to be executed in accordance with the requirements hereof set 
forth all the covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions, and understandings 
between the City and the Lighthouse concerning the Project as of the date hereof, and there are 
no covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions or understandings, either oral or 
written, between them other than as set forth herein. 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the City and the 
Lighthouse shall be defined solely by the expressed terms of this Agreement, including the 
implementing documents described or contemplated herein, and neither the cooperation of the 
parties hereunder nor anything expressly or implicitly contained herein shall be deemed or 
construed to create a partnership, limited or general, or joint venture between the City and the 
Lighthouse, nor shall any party or their agent be deemed to be the agent or employee of any 
other party to this Agreement. 

7. MODIFICATION. This Agreement can be modified or amended only by a written 
instrument expressly referring hereto and executed by the City and the Lighthouse. 

8. MICHIGAN LAW TO CONTROL. This Agreement and the rights and 
obligations of the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with Michigan law. 

9. DUE AUTHORIZATION. The City and the Lighthouse each warrant and 
represent to the other that this Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof have been duly 
authorized and approved by, in the case of the City, its City Board and all other governmental 
agencies whose approval may be required as a precondition to the effectiveness hereof, and as 
to the Lighthouse, by the members thereof, and that the persons who have executed this 
Agreement below have been duly authorized to do so. The parties hereto agree to provide such 
opinions of counsel as to the due authorization and binding effect of this Agreement and the 
collateral documents contemplated hereby as the other party shall reasonably request. 

10. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The approval of the terms, provisions, and 
conditions of this Agreement are for the benefit of the Property and shall run with the Property 
and shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties to this Agreement and their respective 
successors, assigns, and transferees. 

11. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. The obligations hereunder of the City and the 
Lighthouse shall constitute solely the obligations of the respective entities to be satisfied solely 

5 



from their respective assets, and no officer, Board member, agent, employee or partner of any 
of said entities shall have any personal obligation, responsibility or liability for the 
performance of the terms of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
first set forth above. 

[SIGNATURES COMMENCE ON NEXT PAGE] 

6 



WITNESSED: SIGNED: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: 
Its: 

By: 
Its: 

WITNESSED: SIGNED: 

LIGHTHOUSE MI 

By: 
Its: 

Approved as to Form: 

By: _________ _ 
Its: -----------

7 



EXIDBIT A 

(Legal Description) 

The land referred to herein below is situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of 
Michigan, and is described as follows: 

Part of Lot 1, also all of Lot 2, also part of Lot 3, of ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 52, according to 
the plat thereof recorded in Lib er 1 B of Plats, page 52 of Oakland County Records, all being 
described as beginning at the Northeast comer of said Lot 3, thence South 02 degrees 00 minutes 
30 seconds East 221.46 feet; thence South 88 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds West 265.12 feet; 
thence North 01 degree 59 minutes 20 seconds West 220 feet; thence North 87 degrees 41 
minutes 50 seconds East 265 feet to the point of beginning. 

8 



#10 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council Members 

Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 
Mark Yandrick, Planning Manager 

September 20, 2023, for September 26, 2023, Session 

The Purchasing Manager and Planning Manager requests that the Pontiac City 
Council approves for the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to Amend the existing AmeriScan 
contract fully executed on December 12, 2022, to allow for an increase to the not
to-exceed amount, and to increase the time allowed for AmeriScan to complete the 
City Building Documents Project. 

The initial estimates, in terms of document volume indicated by the City of Pontiac and included 
in AmeriScan's proposal (dated September 28, 2022, p. 12 of 30) to complete the City Building 
Documents Project will change as follows: 

• Large Format Scanning: documents increasing from 110,000 to 135,000 
• 25,000 documents* $0.75 cost per document= $18,750 
• Increasing total price from $82,500 to $101,250 

• Mixed Size Scanning: documents increasing from 2 million to 3 million 
• 1 million documents* $0.042 cost per document= $42,000 
• Increasing total price from $84,000 to $126,000 

AmeriScan is requesting that the City increases its not-to-exceed amount by $60,750 ($18,750 
+ $42,000). AmeriScan anticipates completing the project no later than December 31, 2023. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

AM 

The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following 
the City's municipal code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-
518, and 2-519 pertaining to major purchases; and 

the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval for the Mayor or 
Deputy Mayor to Amend the AmeriScan Agreement to include an 
increase in spend not-to-exceed $60,750 and for the project 
completion date to extend to December 31, 2023; 

The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor Designee 
to amend the AmeriScan contract to allow for successful completion 
of the City's Building Documents Scanning Project. 



. I 

I I 

I I 

l 

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

47450Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342 • P: (248) 758~3120 • E: purchasing@pontlac.mi.us 

CORRECTION 

December 12, 2022 

Kevin Serbenski 
AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. 
50690 Rizzo Drive 
Shelby Twp., Ml 48315 

Dear Kevin Serbenski: . 

Re: Bid Award for City Building Documents Scanning Project 

The City of Pontiac has considered American Imaging Services, lnc.'s proposal submitted on October 3, 2022, 
in response to the City Building Documents Scanning Project Request for Proposal. 

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the City of Pontiac has accepted your firm's proposal in the amount of One 
hundred eighty thousand three hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($180,300). 

YOU ARE REQUIRED, by the Instructions to Bidders, to execute a contract and furnish surety for the faithful 
performance of such contract, for the payment of all materials used therein, and for all labor expended thereon. 
I request that you provide a Performance Bond and insurance within ten (10) calendar days of receiving this 

r notice. Please include the City of Pontiac as additional insured in accordance with section 2.10 of the 
; I Instructions to Bidders. 

IF YOU FAIL to execute said agreement and to furnish said bond and insurance within ten (10) calendar days 
from the date of his notice, the City of Pontiac will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the City's 
acceptance of your bid as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Performance Bond. The City will be entitled 
to other rig'hts granted by law. 

YOU ARE REQUIRED to attend the contract signing meeting that I will schedule via email. The signing will 
occur in the Lions Den located at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

C)J)~ OF PONTIAC 

l~W~ 
Alicia Martin 
Purchasing Manager 
Finance Department 
Purchasing Division 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

~w/4, 0/Ub'-JU,t,,' By ___________ _ 

Title President 

Date 12-12-2022 



Corrected Award Notice 12.12.22 
Final Audit Report 

Created: 

By: 

Status: 

2022-12-12 

Alicia Martin (atnartin@ponUac.mi.us) 

Signed 

2022-12-13 

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAJKTx8M3oHGRfSwpYGgG8ayeo1 XCu7 JAe 

"Corrected Award Notice 12.12.22" History 
Document created by Alicia Martin (amartin@pontiac.mi.us) 

2022-12-12-11:01:28 PM GMT 

Document emailed to Kevin Serbenski (kserbenski@ameriscanimaging.com) for signature 

2022-12-12-11:02:32 PM GMT 

Email viewed by Kevin Serbenski (l<serbenski@ameriscanimaging.com) 

2022-12-13-1:10:03 AM GMT 

0'0 Document e-signed by Kevin Serbensl<i (kserbenski@ameriscanimaging.com) 

Signature Dale: 2022-12-13 - 1 :10:51 AM GMT - Time Source: server 

Agreement completed. 

2022-12-13-1:10:51 AM GMT 

Adobe Acrobat Sign 



11 

I 
The HEART of Oakland County 

CONTRACT DOCUMENT 
FOR 

. CITY OF PONTIAC 
CITY BUILDING DOCUMENTS SCANNING 

Page 1 of 19 



CITY OF PONTIAC - DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

PURCHASING DIVISION 

Contract Expiration Date: June 30, 2023 

Contract" NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT $180,300.00 

This Contract effective as of ________ , 2022 ("Contract"), between the CITY 
OF PONTIAC, a Municipal corporation, whose address is 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, 
Michigan ("City"), and AMERISCAN IMAGING SERVICES, INC a Michigan Corporation, whose 
address is 50690 Rizzo Drive, Shelby Township, Ml 48315 ("Contractor"). In this Contract, either 
the City or Contractor may also be referred to individually as a "Party" or jointly as the "Parties". 

This Contract is organized and divided into the following "Section" or "Sections" for the 
convenience of the Parties. 

SECTION 1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 2. CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION 

SECTION 3. SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES 

SECTION 4. CITY PAYMENT OBLIGATION FOR CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES 

SECTION 5. CONTRACTOR ASSURANCES AND WARRANTIES 

SECTION 6:· CONTRACTOR PROVIDED INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

SECTION 7. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in 
this Contract, the Parties agree to the following: 

§1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND DEFINITIONS 
The following words and expressions when printed with the first letter capitalized as shown 
herein, whether used in the singular or plural, possessive or non-possessive, and/or either 
within or without quotation marks, shall be defined and interpreted as follows: 

1.1. "City" means the City of Pontiac, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, its council, elected 
officials and officers, departments and "City Agent" as defined below. 

1.2. 11City Agent" means all elected and appointed officials, directors, council members, 
employees working on behalf of the City, volunteers, representatives, and/or any such 
persons' successors (whether such person act or acted in their personal 
representative or official capacities), and/or any persons acting by, through, under, or 
in concert with any of them. "City agent" shall also include any person who was a "City 

Page 2 of 19 



• l 

agent" anytime during the term of this Contract but, for any reason, is no longer 
employed, appointed, or elected and serving as an Agent. 

1.3. "Contract Administrator" or "City Representative" means the individual by the City to 
act as a liaison between the City and the Contractor. Any questions or problems the 
Contractor may have concerning the work under this Contract should be directed to 
this individual. 

1.4. "Contract Documents" means the following documents which are included and fully 
incorporated into this Contract: 
1.4.1 Exhibit A: Request for Proposal 
1.4.2 Exhibit B: AmeriScan Service Specifications 
1.4.3 Exhibit C: Addendums 3 a.nd 5 

1.5. "Contractor Employee" means without limitation, any employees, officers, directors, 
members, managers, trustees, volunteers, attorneys, and representatives of 
Contractor, and also includes any Contractor licensees, concessionaires, contractors, 
subcontractors, independent contractors, contractor's suppliers, subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or partners, and/or any such persons, successors or predecessors, 
employees, (whether such persons act or acted in their personal, representative or 
official capacities), and/or any and all persons acting by, through, under, or in concert 
with any of the above. "Contractor Employee" shall also include any person who was 
a Contractor Employee at anytime during the term of this contract but, for any reason, 
is no longer employed, appointed, or elected in that capacity. 

1.6. "Subcontractor" includes only those having a direct contact with the Contractor in the 
way of labor. One who merely furnishes material to the Contractor is not included in 
this definition. 

1.7. "Claims" means any alleged losses, claims, complaints, demands for relief or 
damages, suits, causes of action, proceedings, judgments, deficiencies, liability, 
penalties, litigation, costs, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reimbursement 
for reasonable attorney fees, witness fees, court costs, investigation expenses, 
litigation expenses, amounts paid in settlement, and/or other amounts or liabilities of 
any kind which are imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the City, or for which 
the City may become legally and/or contractually obligated to pay or defend against, 
whether direct, indirect or consequential, whether based upon any alleged violation of 
the federal or the state constitution, any federal or state statute, rule, regulation, or any 
alleged violation of federal or state common law, whether any such claims are brought 
in law or equity, tort, contract, or otherwise, and/or whether commenced or threatened. 

1.8. "Day" means any calendar day, which shall begin at 12:00:00 a.m. and end at 11 :59:59 
p.m. 

1.9. "Working Day" means any calendar day except Saturday, Sunday, and legal holidays 
as determined by the City. 

1.1 O. ""Written Notice" shall be considered properly served if delivered in person to the 
Contractor, or to a member or office of his/her company; also if delivered at, or sent 
by registered mail to, the last known business address of the Contractor. 

1.11. "Intellectual Property" means any developments, improvements, designs, innovation, 
and materials that may be the subject of a trademark/servicemark, copyright or patent, 
trade secrets or Proprietary Information. 

1.12. "Proprietary Information" means ideas, concepts, inventions and processes related to 
the development and operation of computer software and systems such as source 
code, object code, security procedures and passwords. 

Page 3 of 19 



§2. CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION 

2.1. The effective date of this Contract shall be as stated on the first page of this Contract, 
and unless otheiwise terminated or canceled as provided below, it shall end at 
11:59:59 p.m. on the "Contract Expiration Date" shown on the first page of this 
Contract, at which time this Contract expires without any further act or notice of either 
Party being required. The Parties are under no obligation to renew or extend this 
Contract after Contract Expiration Date. Notwithstanding the above, under no 
circumstances shall this Contract be effective and binding and no payments to the 
Contractor shall be due or owing for any Contractor services until and unless: 

2.1.1. This Contract is signed by a Contractor Employee, legally authorized to bind 
the Contractor. 

2.1.2. Any and all Contractor Certificates of Insurance and any other conditions 
precedent to the Contract have been submitted and accepted by the City. 

2.1.3. This Contract is signed by the City of Pontiac Mayor or his designee, as 
provided for on the signature page of this Contract, who shall be the final 
signatory to this Contract. 

2.2. The City may terminate and/or cancel this Contract (or any part thereof) at any time 
during the term, any renewal, or any extension of this Contract, upon Thirty (30) days 
written notice to the Contractor, for any reason, including convenience without 
incurring obligation or penalty of any kind. Notwithstanding the above, if the City is 
being reimbursed for any cost or expenses incurred under this Contract by any third 
party, including any Federal, State or local governmental agency, and any such third 
party funding is terminated, the City may terminate, end or cancel this Contract 
immediately upon written notice to the Contractor. The effective date for termination 
or cancellation shall be clearly stated in the written notice. 

2.3. The City's sole obligation in the event of termination is for payment for actual services 
rendered by the Contractor before the effective date of termination. Under no 
circumstances shall the City be liable for any future loss of income, profits, any 
consequential damages or any loss of business opportunities, revenues, or any other 
economic benefit Contractor may have realized but for the termination and/or 
cancellation of this Contract. The City shall not be obligated to pay Contractor any 
cancellation or termination fee if this Contract is cancelled or terminated as provided 
herein. 

2.5. Under no circumstances shall the City be obligated to pay the contractor for any 
Services rendered or Goods delivered which have not been invoiced, as required 
herein, within sixty (60) days of the date such Goods were actually delivered to the 
City or Services were actually rendered pursuant to this Contract. 

3. SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES 

3.1 The Contractor shall provide CITY BUILDING DOCUMENTS SCANNING Services to 
the City of Pontiac. The Contractor shall perform all work identified in Exhibits A and 
B. 

• Except as otheiwise provided herein, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, 
supervision, and services necessary to execute and complete the work 
correctly. 

Page 4 of 19 



3.2 

3.3 

• The City's Information Technology Senior Services Technician shall provide 
the Contractor with a CVS formatted file of the City's parcel ID information that 
does not include 99. The naming convention for the TIFF and PDF files shall 
be the parcel and address. 

• The Contractor will forward all questions, as they arise, to the City's Building 
Official, Michael Wilson, and the Manager of Planning and Zoning, Mark 
Yandrick, via email to: MYandrick@pontiac.mi.us. 

• The Contractor will return all City documents to the Historical Society located 
at 7435 Westshire Dr., Lansing, Michigan 48917. The City will identify the exact 
location of the Society before the Contractor picks up the documents. The 
Contractor will return the boxes of documents on pallets. 

• There will be approximately 700-800 boxes and 20 pallets. The Contractor will 
place all drawings on gaylords. There will be approximately 10-12 gaylords, 
shrink-wrapped and delivered to the location specified herein. 

Quality Control. The Contractor shall institute and maintain throughout the contract 
period a properly documented quality control program designed to ensure that the 
services are provided at all times and in all respects in accordance with the contract. 
The program shall include providing daily supervision and conducting frequent 
inspections ofthe Contractor's staff and ensuring that accurate records are maintained 
describing the disposition of all complaints. The records so created shall be open to 
inspection by the City. 

City property. The Contractor will be responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
City-owned property furnished for the Contractor's use in connection with the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor will reimburse, replace or restore the City 
for any loss or damage, normal wear and tear excepted. 

4. CITY PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES 

4.1. Except as otherwise expressly provided for in this Contract, the City's sole financial 
• obligation to the Contractor for any services under this Contract shall be: 

4.1.1. In no event, shall the City's amount due and owing the Contractor for any and 
all services rendered exceed the amount identified as the "NOT TO EXCEED 
AMOUNT" on the first page of this Contract. In the event the Contractor can 
reasonably foresee the total billings for its services will exceed this "NOT TO 
EXCEED AMOUNT", the Contractor shall provide the City with notice of this 
contingency at least fifteen (15) Days before this event. 

4.1.2 The Contractor shall submit an invoice to the City which shall itemize all 
amounts due and/or owing by the City under this Contract, as the date of the 
invoice. The City shall have no obligation to make payment until a proper 
invoice of service is submitted. The City reserves the right to make partial 
payments on account of the amount due the Contractor as the work 
progresses. 

Page 5 of 19 



4.1. Method of Payment. Method of Payment as specified in Exhibit A. Contractor shall 
invoice on a monthly basis, in accordance with section 2.6 of the RFP, for services 
completed, no later than the 5th of each month, until the Scope of Services are 
complete. Contractor must email all invoices to accountspayable@pontiac.mi.us for 
processing. Final payment for the work performed under this Contract shall not be 
made until all work is satisfactorily performed and final clean-up has been performed. 
Contractor will be paid 30 days after completion of work as outlined in the Scope of 
Services after submission of a valid invoice. 

4.2. Under no circumstances shall the City be responsible for any cost, fee, fine, penalty, 
or direct, indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages incurred or suffered 
by Contractor in connection with or resulting from the Contractor's providing any 
services under this Contract. 

4.3. The City has the right to offset any amounts due and owing to the Contractor should 
the City incur any cost associated with this Contract that is the obligations of Contractor 
under this Contract. This includes withholding payment in the amount of any City 
provided equipment, or supplies (if applicable) that are not returned by Contractor 
upon completion of the services provided under this Contract. 

4.4. This Contract does not authorize any in-kind services by either Party, unless expressly 
provided herein. 

4.5. Change Order Process. Changes in the Contract, Contract price or Scope of Work 
shall only occur in writing via a "Contract Change Order". Contract Change Orders 
shall be used to reflect additions to, reductions in, or changes to the Scope of Work 
(Exhibit A). 

4.6. Ownership of documents and work papers. The City shall own all documents, files, 
reports, work papers and working documentation, electronic or otherwise, created in 
connection with the project which is the subject of this contract, except for the 
Contractor's internal administrative and quality assurance files and internal project 
correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the 
City upon termination or completion of the contract. 

5. CONTRACTOR'S ASSURANCES, WARRANTIES AND DEFAULT 

5.1. The Contractor certifies that all statements, assurances, records, and materials 
submitted to City in connection with securing this Contract have been truthful, 
complete and accurate in all respects. The Contractor agrees and understands that 
any material false statement, representation or omission made in connection with its 
seeking or obtaining this Contract may be grounds for canceling or terminating this 
Contract and/or debarring the Contractor from future City contracts. The City's right 
to cancel this Contract as provided herein shall be in addition to any other rights the 
City has to terminate or cancel this Contract. 

Page 6 of 19 



5.2. Service Warranty. Contractor warrants that all services performed hereunder will be 
performed in a manner that complies with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, 
ordinances, and professional standards. 

5.3. Business and Professional Licenses. The Contractor will obtain and maintain at all 
times during the term of this Contract all applicable business and professional licenses 
necessary to provide the contracted services. 

5.4. Equipment and Supplies. The Contractor is responsible for providing equipment and 
supplies required to complete the specified services under the Contract unless 
otherwise expressly set forth in the Contract. 

5.5. Taxes. The Contractor shall pay, its own local, state and federal taxes, including 
without limitation, social security taxes, and unemployment compensation taxes. The 
City shall not be liable to or be required to reimburse the Contractor for any federal, 
state and local taxes or fees of any kind. 

5.6. Contractor's Incidental Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Contract, the Contractor shall be solely responsible and liable for all costs and 
expenses incident to the performance of all services for the City including, but not 
limited to, any professional dues, association fees, license fees, fines, taxes, and 
penalties. 

5.7. Taxes. Contractor agrees to contact the City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit 
and Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, to establish 
reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax Ordinance. 
Contractors will require the same of all subcontractors employed to perform any work 
in the City of Pontiac. 

Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

Tax forms URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax forms.php 

• All contributions, taxes or premiums (including interest and penalties thereon) 
which may be payable under the Unemployment Insurance Law of any State, 
the Federal Social Security Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax 
Withholding Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding 
Laws, or any other law, measured upon the payroll of or required to be withheld 
from employees by whomsoever employed or engaged in the work to be 
performed and furnished under this contract. 

5.8. Contractor Employees. 

5.9.1 The Contractor shall employ and assign qualified Contractor Employees as 
necessary and appropriate to provide the services under this Contract. 
Contractor shall ensure all Contractor Employees have all the necessary 
knowledge, skill, and qualifications necessary to perform the required services 

Page 7 of 19 



and possess any necessary licenses, permits, certificates, and governmental 
authorizations as may be required by law. 

5.9.2 The Contractor shall solely control, direct, and supervise all Contractor 
Employees with respect to all Contractor obligations under this Contract. The 
Contractor will be solely responsible for and fully liable for the conduct and 
supervision of any Contractor Employee. 

5.9.3 (If Applicable) All Contractor Employees shall wear and display appropriate 
City provided identification at all times while working on City premises. The 
Contractor shall return all City provided identification when any of the following 
situations occur: (1) Upon completion of the last day of work provided under 
this Contract; (2) when a Contractor Employee has completed the work under 
this Contract; or (3) when a Contractor Employee no longer works for 
Contractor. 

5.9.4 All Contractor Employees assigned to work under this Contract may, at the 
City's discretion, be subject to a security check and clearance by the City. 

5.9. Contractor Employee-Related Expenses. All Contractor Employees shall be 
employed at the Contractor's sole expense (including employment-related taxes and 
insurance) and the Contractor warrants that all Contractor Employees shall fully 
comply with and adheres to all of the terms of this Contract. The Contractor shall be 
solely and completely liable for any and all applicable Contractor Employee's federal, 
state, or local payment withholdings or contributions and/or any and all Contractor 
Employee related pension or welfare benefits plan contribution under federal or state 
law. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless for all Claims against 
the City by any Contractor Employee, arising out of any contract for hire or employer
employee relationship between the Contractor and any Contractor Employee, 
including, but not limited to, Worker's Compensation, disability pay or other insurance 
of any kind. 

5.10. Full Knowledge of Service Expectations and Attendant Circumstances. The 
Contractor warrants that before submitting its bid and entering into this Contract, it had 
a full opportunity to review the proposed services, examine all measurements, 
dimensions, and existing conditions of the work area for this Contract and to review all 
City requirements and expectations under this Contract. The Contractor is responsible 
for being adequately and properly prepared to execute and perform this Contract. The 
Contractor has satisfied itself in all material respects that it will be able to perform all 
obligations under the Contract as specified herein. 

5.11. Independent Contractor. The Contractor's Relationship to the City Is that of an 
Independent Contractor. Nothing in this Contract is intended to establish an employer
employee relationship between the City and either the Contractor or any Contractor 
Employee. All Contractor Employees assigned to provide services under this Contract 
by the Contractor shall, in all cases, be deemed employees of the Contractor and not 
employees, agents or sub-contractors of the City. 

5.12. Default. In addition, to a breach of the terms of any condition or warranty set forth in 
this Contract, the following events shall constitute a default of Contractor: 

Page 8 of 19 



• Fails to supply complete labor and supervision in sufficient time and quantity 
-to meet the City's progress schedule, as it may be modified. 

• Causes stoppage or delay of, or interference with, the project. 

• Fails to promptly pay its employees for work on the project. 

• Fails to pay worker's compensation or other employee benefits, withholding or 
any other taxes. 

• Fails to comply with the safety provisions of the Contract or with any safety order, 
regulation or requirement of any governing authority having jurisdiction over this 
project. 

• Makes unauthorized changes in supervisory personnel without Notice to 
Contract Administrator. 

• Fails in performance or observance of any of the provisions of the contract. 

• Files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated insolvent; obtains an 
order for relief under Section 301 of the Bankruptcy Code; files any petition or 
fails to contest any petition filed seeking any reorganization or similar relief under 
any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or other relief of debtors; seeks or 
consents to or is acquiescent in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any of its assets or property; makes an assignment for the benefit 
of creditors; or Makes an admission, in writing, of its inability to pay its debts as 
they became due. 

5.13. Then City, after giving Contractor written or oral (subsequently confirmed in writing) 
Notice of such default and forty-eight (48) hours within which to cure such default, 
shall have the right to exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 

• Require that Contractor utilize, at its own expense, additional labor, overtime 
labor (including Saturday and Sunday work) and additional shifts as necessary 
to overcome the consequences of any delay attributable to Contractor's 
default. 

• Remedy the default by whatever means City may deem necessary or appropriate, 
including, but not limited to, correcting, furnishing, performing or otherwise 
completing the work, or any part thereof, by itself or through others (utilizing where 
appropriate any materials and equipment previously purchased for that purpose 
by Contractor) and deducting the cost thereof from any monies due or to become 
due to Contractor hereunder; 

► After giving Contractor an additional forty-eight (48) hours written (or oral, 
subsequently confirmed in writing) notice, terminate this Contract, without 

Page 9 of 19 



thereby waiving or releasing any rights or remedies against Contractor or 
its sureties, and, by itself or through others, take possession of the work, 
and all materials, equipment facilities, tools, scaffolds and appliances of 
Contractor relating to the work, for the purposes of costs and other 
damages under the contract and for the breach thereof; and 

► Recover all reasonable attorneys' fees suffered or incurred by City by 
reason of, or as a result of, Contractor's default. 

6. CONTRACTOR PROVIDED INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

6.1. Indemnification. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from any 
and all Claims which are incurred by or asserted against the City by any person or 
entity, alleged to have been caused or found to arise, from the acts, performances, 
errors, or omissions of the Contractor or Contractor's Employees, including, without 
limitation, all Claims relating to injury or death of any person or damage to any property. 

6.1.1 The indemnification rights contained in this Contract are in excess and over 
and above any valid and collectible insurance rights/policies, During the term 
of this Contract, if the validity or collectability of the Contractor's insurance is 
disputed by the insurance company, the Contractor shall indemnify the City 
for all claims asserted against the City and if the insurance company prevails, 
the Contractor shall indemnify the City for uncollectible accounts. 

6.1.2 The Contractor shall have no rights against the City for any indemnification 
(e.g., contractual, equitable, or by implication), contribution, subrogation, 
and/or any other right to be reimbursed by the City except as expressly 
provided herein. 

G.1.3 The Contractor waives and releases all actions, liabilities, loss and damage 
including any subrogated rights it may have against the City based upon any 
Claim brought against the City suffered by a Contractor Employee. 

6.1. Contractor Provided Insurance. 

6.2.1 At all times during this Contract, including renewals or extensions, Contractor 
shall obtain and maintain insurance according to the specifications and 
requirements set forth in Exhibit A, Section 2.10 Bonds and Insurance. 

7. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

7.1. Cumulative Remedies. A Party's exercise of any remedy shall not preclude the 
exercise of any other remedies, all of which shall be cumulative. A Party shall have 
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine which remedies are to be exercised 
and in which order. 

7.2. Survival of Terms and Conditions. The following terms and conditions shall survive 
and continue in full force beyond the termination 'and/or cancellation of this 

Page 10 of19 



i 

,· ,. 
' ! 

i 
l 

. r 
• I 

7.3. 

7.4. 

7.5. 

7.6. 

Contract (or any part thereof) until the terms and conditions are fully satisfied or 
expire by their very nature: 

• "CONTRACTOR1S ASSURANCES AND WARRANTIES"; 
• "CONTRACTOR PROVIDED INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION"; 

• "Audit"; 

• "Severability"; 

• "Governing Law/Consent To Jurisdiction And Venue"; and 

• "Survival of Terms And Conditions". 

City Right to Suspend Services. Upon written notice, the City may suspend 
performance of this Contract if Contractor has failed to comply with federal, state, 
or local laws, or any requirements contained in this Contract. The right to suspend 
services is in addition to the City's right to terminate and/or cancel this Contract. 
The City shall incur no penalty, expense, or liability to Contractor if the City 
suspends services under this Section. 

No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties or 
except as specifically set forth in the Contract, this Contract does not and is not 
intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or benefit, right 
to be indemnified, right to be subrogated to the Parties' rights in this Contract, 
and/or any other right, in favor of any other person or entity. 

Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, insurance policy requirements, and 
requirements applicable to its activities under this Contract, including zoning and 
building codes and MIOSHA guidelines. 

Permits and Licenses. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and 
maintaining throughout the term of this Contract all licenses, permits, certificates, 
and governmental authorizations necessary to perform all of its obligations under 
this Contract and to conduct business under this Contract. Upon request by the 
City, Contractor shall furnish copies of any permit, license, certificate or 
governmental authorizations necessary to provide services under this Contract. 
The Contractor shall deliver all certificates of inspection to the City, if applicable. 

• The Contract Administrator or designee shall act as inspector for this project. 

• The inspector shall have access to the Work under this Contract. 

7.7. Discrimination. Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of sex, race, religion, color, national origin, or 
handicap in violation of State and Federal law. 

• Contractor shall promptly notify the City of any complaint or charge filed and/or 
determination by any Court or administrative agency of illegal discrimination 
by Contractor. 

Page 11 of 19 



• The City, in its discretion, may consider any illegal discrimination described 
above as a breach of this Contract and may terminate or cancel this Contract 
immediately with notice. 

7.8. Reservation of Rights. This Contract does not, and is not intended to impair, 
divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal 
right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the City. 

7.9. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Contract, 
neither Party shall be liable to the other for any failure of performance hereunder 
if such failure is due to any cause beyond the reasonable control of that Party and 
that Party cannot reasonably accommodate or mitigate the effects of any such 
cause. Such cause shall include, without limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion, 
vandalism, any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United 
States government or of any other government, national emergencies, 
insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor 
difficulties. Reasonable notice shall be given to the affected Party of any such 
event. The Contractor is expected, through insurance or alternative temporary or 
emergency service arrangements, to continue its obligations under this contract in 
the event of a reasonably anticipated, insurable business risk such as business 
interruption and/or any insurable casualty or loss. 

7.10. Conflict of Interest. Pursuant to Public Act 317 and 318 of 1968, as amended 
(MCL 15.321, et seq.), no contracts shall be entered into between the City, 
including all agencies and departments thereof, and any City Agent. To avoid any 
real or perceived conflict of interest, Contractor shall identify any Contractor 
Employee or relative of Contractor's Employees who are presently employed by 
the City. Contractor shall give the City notice if there are any City Agents or 
relatives of City Agents who are presently employed by Contractor. 

7.11. Grant Compliance. If any part of this Contract is supported or paid for with any 
state or federal funds granted to the City, the Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable grant requirements. 

7.12. Contract Administrator. Each Party may designate an employee or agent to act as 
Contract Administrator. The City's Contract Administrator shall be responsible for 
such activities as monitoring deliverables and funding, addressing the quality of 
services provided by the Contractor, reviewing invoices and submitting requests 
to the City's procurement authority for any contract modification in accordance with 
terms of this Contract. 

7.13. Access and Records. Contractor will maintain accurate books and records in 
connection with the services provided under this Contract for thirty-six (36) months 
after end of this Contract, and provide the City with reasonable access to such 
book and records. 

7.14. Audit. Contractor shall allow the City's Finance Director Division, or an 
independent auditor hired by the City, to perform finance compliance audits with 

Page 12 of19 



i 
I 

I 

the authority to access all pertinent records and interview any Contractor 
Employee throughout the term of this Contract, and for a period of three years after 
final payment. 

• Contractor shall explain any audit finding, questionable costs, or other 
Contract compliance deficiencies to the City within thirty (30) business days 
of receiving the draft audit report. Contractor's written response shall include 
all necessary documents and information that refute the draft audit report, and 
an action plan to resolve the audit findings. A copy of the Contractor's 
response will be included in the final report. Failure by the Contractor to 
respond in writing within thirty (30) business days shall be deemed 
acceptance of the draft audit report, and will be noted in the final report. 

7.15. Delegation /Subcontract/Assignment. 

7.16. 

7.17. 

7.18. 

• The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, or subcontract any part of this 
Contract without the prior written consent of the City. 

• The rights and obligations under this Contract shall not be diminished in any 
manner by assignment, delegation or subcontract. 

• Any assignment, delegation, or subcontract by Contractor must include a 
requirement that the assignee, delegee, or subcontractor will comply with the 

• rights and obligations contained in this Contract. 

• The Contractor shall remain primarily liable for all work performed by any 
subcontractors. The Contractor shall remain liable to the City for any 
obligations under the Contract not completely performed or incorrectly 
performed by any Contractor delegee or subcontractor. 

• The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for the acts and omissions 
of its subcontractors. 

• Should a subcontractor fail to provide the work as required by the Contract, the 
Contractor shall contract with another entity to perform the work in a timely 
manner. Any additional costs associated with securing a competent 
subcontractor and performing the required work shall be the sole responsibility 
of the Contractor. 

• If any part of the Contractor's services depends upon the work of any other 
contractor or subcontractor, the Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to 
the City any defects in such work that shall render it unsuitable. The failure to 
inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other contractor's or 
subcontractor's services. 

This Contract cannot be sold. The City reserves the right to let other contracts in 
connection with this Work even if of like character to the Work under this Contract. 
The Contractor shall coordinate his work with theirs. 

Contractor Bankruptcy. In the event that a Petition in Bankruptcy is filed and there 
is an· assignment of this Contract by a Court, the City may declare this Contract 
null and void. 

Non Exclusive Contract. No provision in this Contract limits, or is intended to limit, 
in any way the Contractor's right to offer and provide its services to the general 
public, other business entities, municipalities, or governmental agencies during or 

Page 13 of19 

.l 



7.19. 

7.20. 

after the term of this Contract. Similarly, this Contract is a non-exclusive 
agreement and the City may freely engage other persons to perform the same 
work that the Contractor performs. Except as provided in this Contract, this 
Contract shall not be construed to guarantee the Contractor or any Contractor 
Employee any number of fixed or certain number or quantity of hours or services 
to be rendered to the City. 

No Implied Waiver. Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to 
pursue or enforce any right or remedy under this Contract shall constitute a waiver 
of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this Contract. 
No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Contract, whether by conduct 
or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be deemed or construed as a 
continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Contract. No waiver 
by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of 
this Contract. 

Severabillty. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, condition, or provision 
of this Contract to be illegal or invalid, then the term, condition, or provision shall 
be deemed severed from this Contract. All other terms, conditions, and provisions 
of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the above, if 
Contractor's promise to indemnify or hold the City harmless is found illegal or 
invalid, Contractor shall contribute the maximum it is permitted to pay by law 
toward the payment and satisfaction of any Claims against the City. 

7 .21. Captions. The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such 
sections and subsections contained in this Contract are intended for the 
convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive meaning 
and shall not be interpreted to limit or modify any substantive provisions of this 
contract. Any use of the singular or plural number, any reference to the male, 
female, or neuter genders, and any possessive or nonpossessive use in this 
contract shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the 
context requires. 

7 .22. • Notices. Notices given under this Contract shall be in writing and shall either be 
personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class 
U.S. mail postage prepaid, and addressed to the person listed below. Notice will 
be deemed given when one of the following occur: (1) the date of actual receipt; 
(2) the next business day when notice is sent express delivery service or personal 
delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified U.S. mail 

For the Contractor: Kevin Serbenski 
50690 Rizzo Drive 
Shelby Township, Ml 48315 
Office - (586) 532-0022 
Cell - (586) 556-0099 
Email: KSerbenski@ameriscanimaging.com 

For the City: Mark Yandrick 
City of Pontiac 

Page 14 of 19 



47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 mrt'I , 
Office - (248) 758-28Jb\':::,1/ 

Email - MYandrick@ponHac.mi.us 

7.23. Contract Modifications or Amendments. Any modifications, amendments, 
waivers, or releases to this Contract must be in writing and agreed to by both 
Parties. Unless otherwise agreed, the modification, amendment, waiver, or 
release shall be signed by an expressly authorized Contractor Employee and by 
the same person who signed the Contract for the City or other City Agent as 
authorized by the City. 

7.24. Precedence of Documents. In the event of a conflict between the terms and 
conditions in any of the documents comprising this Contract, the conflict shall be 
resolved as follows: 

• The terms and conditions contained in this main Contract document shall 
prevail and take precedence over any allegedly conflicting provisions in all 
other Exhibits and documents. • 

7.25. Governing Laws/Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue. This Contract shall be 
governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State of Michigan. Except 
as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action brought to enforce, interpret, 
or decide any Claim arising under or related to this Contract shall be brought in the 
Sixth Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Michigan, the 50th District Court of the 
State of Michigan, or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan, Southern Division, as dictated by the applicable jurisdiction of the court. 
Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, venue is proper in the courts set 
forth above. The choice of forum set forth above shall not be deemed to preclude 
the enforcement of any judgment obtained in such forum or taking action under 
this Contract to enforce such judgment in any appropriate jurisdiction. 

7.26. Contractor Use of Confidential Information. The Contractor and/or Contractor 
Employees shall not reproduce, provide, disclose, or give access to Confidential 
Information to any third party, or to any Contractor Employee not having a 
legitimate need to know any such information and data, and shall not use the 
Confidential Information for any purpose other than performing its services under 
tbis Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing,· Contractor may disclose the 
Confidential Information if required by law, statute or other legal process; provided 
that Contractor (i) gives City prompt written notice of an impending disclosure, (ii) 
provides reasonable assistance to City in opposing or limiting the disclosure, and 
(iii) makes only such disclosure as is compelled or required. 

Page 15 of 19 



• This Contract imposes no obligation upon Contractor with respect to any 
Confidential Information which Contractor can establish by legally sufficient 

, evidence: (i) was in the possession of, or was known by Contractor, prior to its 
receipt from the City, without an obligation to maintain its confidentiality; or (ii) 
is obtained by Contractor from a third party having the right to disclose it, 
without an obligation to keep such information confidential. 

• As used in this Contract, Confidential Information means all informatton that 
the City is required or permitted by law to keep confidential. 

7.35. Contractor Use of City Licensed Software. Except as otherwise set forth in the 
Exhibits A and C. i order for the Contractor to perform its services under this 
Contract, the City may permit Contractor or Contractor Employees to access 
certain copyrighted Software licensed to the City. Contractor or Contractor 
Employees shall not: transfer, remove, use, copy, or otherwise provide or make 
available any such copyrighted Software or Documentation to any other person or 
entity, for any purpose, without the prior written consent of the City and/or the 
licensor. Furthermore, neither the Contractor nor Contractor Employee shall 
produce a source listing, decompile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer 
any copyrighted Software. Neither the Contractor nor Contractor Employee shall 
use any copyrighted software contrary to the provisions of any applicable Software 
license agreement or state or federal law. 

7.38. Entire Contract. This Contract represents the entire Contract and understanding 
between the Parties. This Contract supersedes all other prior oral or written 
understandings, communications, agreements or Contracts between the Parties. 
The language of this Contract shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 
meaning, and not construed strictly for or against any Party. 

The undersigned executes this Contract on behalf of Contractor and the City, and by doing 
so legally obligates and binds Contractor and the City to the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

//'2~ 

BY: _,II<--...._ _______ _ 

F R THE CITY OFPONTIAC: 

BY: 
Tim Greimel, Mayor. 

APPROVED AS TO SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR SERVICES: 

BY: DATE: \ ?...~ \Y - 2.021.. 

Page 16 of 19 



Exhibit A 

Request for Proposal 

Page 17 of19 



Exhibit C 

Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE 

Thank you for your inquiry regarding the City of Pontiac project listed below: 

City Building Documents Scanning Project 

If your firm plans to bid on this project, please send an e-mail 
response to purchasing@pontiac.mi.us with the following 
information: 

Firm Name: AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. 
Project Name: City Building Documents Scanning Project 
Firm's Contact Person: Kevin Serbenski 
Telephone Number: 586-532-0022 
Fax Number: ------------
E -Mai I Address: kserbenski@ameriscanimaging.com 
Postal Address: 50690 Rizzo Drive, Shelby Twp., Ml 48315 

The City of Pontiac Purchasing Division will use this information 
to communicate with you in the event an addendum or change 
to this project is issued. If you do not send this information to 
the City of Pontiac, you will not receive any follow-up notification 
of any changes to the project. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



-&~ 
i - ~ 

, 
/•,{,~~ 

11 . 

- ·\<! 

I H Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

The City of Pontiac will open sealed bids on Monday, October 3, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. prevailing local 

time in the City Hall Lion's Den conference room at 47450 Woodward Ave for: 

City Building Documents Scanning Project 
You are invited to submit a bid for this project. Sealed bids may be malled or delivered to the 
CITY OF PONTIAC, CITY CLERK. The address Is 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342. All 
sealed bids must be received in the City Clerk's office by 2:00 p.m., Monday, October 3, 2022. 
Envelopes should include the name and mailing address of the vendor on the outside and be 
plainly marked: 

City Building Documents Scanning Project 

No proposal submitted may be withdrawn for at least ninety (90) days after the actual opening 
of the proposal. 

General specifications, description and conditions upon which the bid proposal Is to be based 
are available at the City of Pontiac website: 

Purchasing: http://www.pontiac. mi. us/ depa rtments/fina nce/p u rchasing.php 

Please refer to the website for any addenda that may be Issued. Bidders who submit bids before 
the deadline are advised to continue to monitor the website for any addenda that may be Issued. 
Bid packages will also be mailed upon request. 

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any lrregularlties, and further reserves 
the right to accept any bid or parts of bids that It deems to best serve the interest of the City, 

If you have any questions regarding this RFP, please contact the PurchasingAgent at (248) 
758-3120. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



1, . INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

1.1 Bids to be Received 

Sealed bids for the City Building Documents Scanning Project will be received at the Office of 
the City Clerk of theClty of Pontiac, Michigan until 2:00 p.m. Monday, October 3, 2022, and 
immediately thereafter will be publicly opened and read. 

Each bid must be submitted In a sealed envelope and addressed to the City Clerk of the City of 
Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a bid must be plainly marked on the outside as "City 
Building Documents Scanning Project", and the envelope should bear on the outside the 
name of the bidder, his address, and the name of the project for which the bid is submitted. If 
forwarded bymail, the sealed envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in another 
envelope addressed to the City Clerk, City of Pontiac at 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Ml. 
48342. 

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated In the 
advertisement. Any extension in time will be by official notification, Bids may be delivered in 
person or malled, but their delivery Is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid received after 
the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

1.2 Examination of Bid Documents 

Before submitting a proposal, bidders shall carefully examine the specifications and shall fully 
inform themselves as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall Indicate in the proposal 
the sum to cover the cost of all items included on the bid form, 

1.3 Withdrawal of Bids 

Any bidder may withdraw his proposal, in writing, at any time prior to the scheduled closing 
time for receipt of proposals. No bidder may withdraw a bid within ninety (90) days after the 
actual date of the opening thereof, Should there be a reason why a contract cannot be 
awarded within the specified period; the time may be extended by mutual agreement between 
the City orPontiac, herein after also referred to as the City, and the bidder. 

1.4 Bid Form 

Each bid shall be made on the form provided, and shall be submitted in a sealed envelope 
bearing the title of work and the name of the bidder, and shall be signed by an individual 
authorized to execute the proposal on behalf of the bidder, Alternate written proposals will 
not be accepted, 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 3 of3O 



! 
. t 

1.5 Basis of Award 

The intention of the City Is to award the contract for this job to a bidder whose skill and 
financial resources are equal to the task of completing the work in a satisfactory manner In the 
time period specified by the City, The successful bidder will show proof of at least two (2) years' 
experience. 

Award will be made to a responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is the lowest qualified 
bid and determined to be in the best interest of the City and in conformance with the 
conditions of this Invitation to bid and the Purchasing Ordinance of the City, 

A maximum of one award of contract will be made on a lowest qualified bid. Bidders shall 
quote on all requirements of the bid document, leave no blanks, and state "No Charge" where 
applicable. Any Blank spaces are considered to be no offer, The City of Pontiac reserves the . 
right to delete any item(s) from the award and reject any and all bids. 

1.6 Bid Bond 

No bid bond required. 

1.7 Pre~Bid Meeting 

A Pre-Bid meeting wlll be held In the City Hall lion's Den conference room, 47450 Woodward Ave,, 
Pontiac Ml, 48342, on Monday, September 12, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. The pre-bid meeting will 
Include a site visit of the storage area where the documents are stored on the ground floor . 
Consideration wlll be given to those vendors who attend the pre-bid meeting. 

2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

2.1 Laws and Municipal Ordinances, Permits 

The Bidder shall be fully, Informed of all laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any 
manner affecting those engaged or employed in the work, or equipment and materials used in 
the work, and all others and any decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority over the same. The Bidder shall at all items observe and comply with all such exi,stlng 
laws, codes, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees. In particular, all work shall be in 
compliance with the laws of the State of Michigan, City ordinances, as well as all other bodies 
having jurisdictional authority. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and paying for any and all permits that may be 
required for this project and shall be responsible for arranging all required inspections if 
needed, 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 4of3O 



Non-Discrimination 

The Bidder agrees to comply with the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1991 as amended; the Americans with Disabllltles Act of 1990 as amended; 
the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 453, Public Act of 1976 as amended; the 
Michigan Handicapper's Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 220, Public Act of 1976, as amended 
and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. Specifically, Bidders and 
subcontractors are required not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to such person's hire, te·nure, terms, conditions, or privileges of 
employment, or any matter directly or Indirectly related to employment because of such 
person's height, weight, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sex or 
dlsabl!lty, as defined by law. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of • 
the contract. 

2.2 Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the Bidder shall indemnify an_d hold 
harmless the City and its officers, directors, employees, agents, and consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of, or resulting from the performance of the 
work or from the failure to comply with any covenant or term of the contract, provided that 
any such claim, cost, loss, or damage: (i) Is attributable to bodily Injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property ( other than the work itself), including 
the loss of use resulting there from; or, (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission 
of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any 
of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of a 
person or entity Indemnified hereunder or whether liability Is imposed upon such indemnified 
party by laws and regulations regardless of the negligence of any such person or entity. 

In any and all claims against the City or any consultants, agents, officers, directors, or 
employees of the City by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such 
employee) of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose 
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation above shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Bidder or any such subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under 
work~rs' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

Insurance coverage required of the Bidder constitutes the minimum requirements and those 
requirements shall iii no way lessen or limit the liability of the Bidder under the terms of the 
contract. The Bidder shall procure and maintain at Bidder's own cost and expense any 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 5 of30 



r 

. i 

. i 

• f 

i 

I 

l 

additional claim's or amounts of Insurance that, in the judgment of the City, may be necessary 
for Bidder's proper protection in the prosecution of the work. 

2.3 Jurisdictional Authority 

This contract shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Michigan 
and the successful Bidder consents to the jurlsdlctlon and venue of the courts In Oakland 
County, Michigan and of the United States District Court for the.Eastern District, Southern 
Division. 

2.4 Severability 

The successful Bidder will agree that the Contract is the completed and exclusive statement of 
the Contract between the parties. A Judicial or administrative declaration on the Invalidity of 

• any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall not invalidate the remaining provisions 
of this agreement. 

2.5 Income Taxes 

Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and Compliance Section, 
47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248) 758-3236, to establish reporting 
and with holding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income tax ordinance. Contractor will 
require the same of all subcontractors employing labor under this contract. 

Contractor is required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax from wages paid to: 

a. Pontiac resident employees regardless of where they work for the employer; and 
b. Nonresident employees for work performed in the City. 

Contractor Is also required to file Pontiac Income tax returns and to report and pay income tax 
on the net profits earned by the contractor in the City of Pontiac . 

Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

Tax fonns URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax forms .php 

2.6 Compensation and Payment 

All invoices submitted against the contract must identify the work performed in detail. Items 
not properly invoiced will not be paid. It is the vendor's responsibility to ensure delivery of 
invoice(s) to the City. Invoices must meet the following conditions for payment: 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 6 of30 



a. Prlce on invoice must correspond to the pricing listed on purchase order and/or contract. 
b. Contractor must submit price lists in accordance wlth bid requirements. 
c. All Invoices wlll be original. 
d. Invoices will prominently display the requisition or purchase order number, If applicable. 
e. Invoices will be signed by the individual responsible for authorizing contract 

payments for the City of Pontiac. 

Original Invoice must be submitted to the City of Pontiac, Attn: Accounts Payable, 

Payment Terms - Net 30 

2.7 General Conditions 

lt is the responsibility of the Bidder to review General Conditions as specified. 

In the quotation, a distinction between dollars and cents must be made, Also, Illegible bids may 
be grounds for rejection of your bid. White out may be grounds for rejection, All c;hanges made 
to the bid form altering price, terms, quotes, and/or conditions MUST be crossed out and 
initialed. Failure to initial any changes may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

All funds must be quoted In US dollars 

2.8 Quotations/Proposals 

Bidders MUST submit an original and one copy, of the bid quotation/proposal. Additionally,· 
duplicate copies of all descriptive literature and/or samples must be provided as requested. 

2.9 Minor Deviations 

Specifications referred to herein are used to indicate desired type, and/or construction, and/or 
operation or services rendered. Other products and/or services may be offered If deviations 
from specifications are minor and if all deviations are properly outlined and stated In the bid 
document. Failure to outline all deviations may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

The decision of the City of Pontiac, acting through the Purchasing Agent, shall be final as to 
what constitutes acceptable deviations from specifications, 

2.10 Bonds and Insurance 

Receipt of bonds and/or insurance ls part of the process of determining which bidder may be 
recommended for award to the City Administrator. If cause is found to change the 
recommendation that your company be awarded the contract, or If the City Administrator 
Does not approve the recommendation, the City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by 
you In the bid process, including the cost of acquiring bonds and/or insurance. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 7 of3O 



The contractor, and any and all of their subcontractors, shall not commence work under this 
contract until they have obtained the insurance required under this paragraph. All coverage 
shall be with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 
Michigan. All coverages shall be with insurance carriers acceptable to City of Pontiac. The 
limits required below do not limlt the liability of the Contractor. All deductibles and SlRs are 
the responsibility of the Contractor. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this contract, Workers1 Compensation Insurance, including Employers1 Liability Coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain said 
insurance during the life of this contract, for: Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence and 
aggregate. Coverage shall include the following extensions: 

a. Contractual Liability; 
b. Products and Completed Operations; 
c. Independent Contractors Coverage; 
d. Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent, if not already Included. 

Motor Vehicle Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this 
contract Motor Vehicle Liab!llty Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits 
of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for Bodlly Injury, and 
Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all 
hired vehicles. 

Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability, as described 
above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be Additional Insureds: The 
City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, 
commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including employees and volunteers 
thereof. It is understood and agreed by naming the City of Pontiac as additional insured, 
coverage afforded ls considered to be primary and any other insurance the City of Pontiac may 
have In effect shall be considered secondary and/or excess. 

Cancellation Notice: Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General Liability 
Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall be endorsed to state 
the following: 11lt Is understood and agreed Thirty {30) days, Ten (10) days for non-payment of 
premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material 
Change shall be sent to: Risk Manager, City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 
48342. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 8 of30 



Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the time the 
contracts are returned by him/her for execution, a Certificate of Insurance as well as the 
required endorsements. In lieu of required endorsements, if applicable, a copy of the policy 
sections where coverage is provided for additional insured and cancellation notice would be 
acceptable. Copies or certified copies of all policies mentioned above shall be furnished, if so 
requested. 

2.11 Performance Bond 

A twenty-five hundred dollar ($2,500.00} performance bond Will be required upon execution of 
an agreement. 

2.12 Payment Bond 

No payment bond shall be required unless the City agrees to subcontract. 

2.13 Maintenance and Guarantee Bond 

No maintenance and guarantee bond shall be required. 

2.14 Subcontracting 

The City of Pontiac will not allow subcontracting for this agreement. All persons working on this 
project shall be employees of the Bidder as defined by law. 

3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1. GENERAL 

The City of Pontiac is seeking a qualified bidder who wlll scan all historic Building and Safety 
documents and convert them to digital format so they can be indexed and stored on a document 
server for easy retrieval. Documents scanned offsite will need to be accessible for easy on
demand retrieval. 

The City of Pontiac currently stores physical·btueprints and other historic building and safety 
documents in rooms in the ground floor In city hall. Blueprints are stored in tubes or rolled up 
and stored on Indexed shelves. Street Address documents are stored in folders In shelving 
units. 

When completed, this project will reduce the burden of staff trying to retrieve documents and 
eliminate the risk of permanent loss of historic documents due to fire or water damage, This 
project will also free up areas for office space. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 9 of3O 



Contractor shall comply with all_applicable O.S.H.A and M.1.0.S.H.A laws and regulations. The 
Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel for the services to be provided hereunder, such 
personnel to be employees of Contractor. Contractor shall provide the services hereunder as an 
lndependent contractor, and nothing herein contained shall be construed to be inconsistent with 
this relationship or status. 

4. NON-ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER 

The service provided for under the Contract shall not be sub-contracted, assigned or transferred 
by the Contractor without prior written consent of the City. 

5. CITY RULES 

Employees of Contractor shall comply with all Instructions, and building regulations issued by 
representative of the City of Pontiac. 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT 

The term of the Contract is vendor/cbntractor to deliver all items and invoice for items by May_ 
30, 2023. At the end of the term of the agreement, the City shall not extend the Contract. City 
has right to break agreement with 30 days' notice. 

7. PROGRESS PAYMENTS/RETAINAGE 

This contr.act Is not subject to progress payments or retainage. 

THIS ENDS THE ABOVE SECTION 

FOLLOWING PAGES ARE BID PROPOSAL FORMS AND SAMPLE CONTRACT 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 10 of3O 



FORM OF PROPOSAL 

To: City of Pontiac, Michigan 

To All Here Present: 

_se_p_t_e_m_b_e_r_2_8 __ _, 2022 

Having carefully examined the specifications of the proposed project, and being fully 
informed in regard to the conditions to be met In the prosecution and completion of the work, 
and having read and examined the Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General 
Conditions, Plans and Specifications pertaining to this work and agreeing to be bound 
accordingly, the undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, labor, and other equipment 
as necessary In full accordance with and conformity to the plans and specifications for this work 
now on ffle In the office of the City's at and for the following named prices, to wit: 

NOTE: This proposal is solicited on a unit price and lump sum basis for equipment. 

THIS BID PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMITTED BACK TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC IN ITS ENTIRETY AS PART OF 
THE CONTRACTORS BID SUBMISSION. MAKE SURE THAT ALL PAGES ARE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT AND 
THAT ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED IS COMPLETE, FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE TO REJECT YOUR 
BID PROPOSAL. IF A BID IS NOT BEING SUBMITTED FOR A PARTICULAR AREA OF WORK, PLEASE MARK 
"NO BID" IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE. 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE FOLLOWING ADDENDUM: (if issued) 

Addendum# Dated 

Addendum# Dated 

Addendum #1.JPG • Dated: 09/12/2022 03:56 PM EDT 
Addendum #2.JPG • Dated: 09/13/2022 04:54 PM EDT 
Addendum #3.JPG ~ Dated: 09/13/2022 05:01 PM EDT 
Addendum #4,JPG • Dated: 09/20/2022 05:14 PM EDT 
Addendum #5.JPG • Dated: 09/21/2022 04:57 PM EDT 

. 2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 11 of30 



City of Pontiac - Details of Documents Needing Scanning 

ITEM MANU PART QTY DESCRIPTION Cost Each Total Price 
NUMBER 

1 Bluegrlnts 110,000 Large Format Scanning 
$82,600.00 $0.75 

-2 Street Addcess 2,000,000 Mixed size scanning 
Scans $0.042 $84,000.00 

3 Document Estimated Cost to remove staples, paper clips, 
Pregaratloo Hours/Rate sticky notes and repairing of 

damaged documents to make them Included Included 
scanner ready 

4 lodexlnq Estimated Cost to Index scanned Items by 
Hours/Rate address and parcel 1D for use In a 

document management system. Included Included 

5 Transgortatlon Time and Cost of packaging, transporting and 
Materials storage of documents ln 

$7,500.00 preparation of scanning $7,500.00 

6 Document Cost Cost of on-demaAd retrieval of 
Retrieval documents for each request Included Included 

7 Total Project 
Cost $174,000.00 

2 022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 12 of30 



CITY OF PONTIAC- BID PROPOSAL 
I, the undersigned, propose to provide services proposed In this contract as per specifications 
supplied by the Cit/of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchasE! order is Issued to the 
successful bidder. 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac ln first class 
operating manner in accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's 
Inspection of services performed. 

I attest that the bid includes all Information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept bid. 

AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. 
Company Name: __________________________ _ 

148315 
Address: ______________ -7"-----------::::,,,--------

Representative Signature: /y···,, 

Kevin Serbensi/ Print Name: ____________________________ _ 

President 
Title: ________________ _ 

Office# -------------
{586) 532-0022 

Cell# ~-------------
{586) 556~0099 

FAX# _______ _ 

Federal Tax Identification Number: 
20-8119226 

------------------

The City of Pontiac is a tax-exempt Michigan municipal corporation and is exempt from sales tax, 
Exemption certificate can be provided upon request. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 13 of30 



Related Project Experience: 

Provide descriptions of current and completed projects your firm has performed that ar~ 
similar to this project·ln size, scope and complexlty. Information for these projects, limited to 
the last two {2) years: 

l) Project Title: __ A_ss_e_ss_in_g_,_s_u_ild_i_ng_an_d_P_l_an_n_in_g_s_c_a_nn_i_n_g _P_ro_ie_c_t _____ _ 

Romeo Ml Project Location: ______________________ _ 

Client's name: __ s_ru_c_e_T_ow_ns_h_lP _________________ _ 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _____________ _ 

Dana Buchanan, Planning & Zoning Coordinator, {586) 752-4585 Ext 130 

2) Project Tltle: __ s_u_ll_d_In_g_s_ca_n_n_in_g_P_r_oJ_·e_ct _____________ _ 

Fraser Ml Project Location: ______________________ _ 

Client's name: __ c_it_y_o_f F_r_a_se_r _________________ _ 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _____________ _ 

Bruce Eck, Building Official, {586) i93-3100 

Building, Planning and Development Services Scanning Project 
3) Project Title: _______________________ _ 

West Bloomfield Ml Project Location: ______________________ _ 

Client's name: __ w_e_st_B_l_o_om_fi_el_d_T_o_w_n_sh_i_P _____________ _ 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _____________ _ 

Kathy Sederlund, Office Manager, Planning & Development Services, {248) 451-4819 

If you require more room, please submit information on another sheet. 

2022 City BuilUing Document Scanning Project Page14of30 



CONTRACT FOR [TYPE OF SERVICE} 

1) Parties. The parties to this contract are the City of Pontiac, Michigan hereinafter referred to 
as the "City", and [NAME OF CONTRACTOR] hereinafter called the "Contractor". 

2) Purpose. The purpose of this contract is for the City to engage the Contractor to provide [TYPE 
OF SERVICE] to the City (see Scope of Services below). 

3) Scope of Services. The Contractor will provide all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and 
supervision to perform [TYPE OF SERVICE] in the City, The Contractor Is to perform all work in 
accordance with generally accepted standards and practices. 

4) General Terms and Conditions, This contract Is hereby made subject to the terms and 
conditions Included in the Scope of Services (see Exhibit "A" below) and Additional Terms and 
Condltlons {see Exhibit "B" below). 

5) Consideration. As consideration for the performance of the services referenced in the Scope 
of Services (see Exhibits "A" & 11B11 below), the City agrees to compensate the Contractor as 
follows: 

[INSERT PAYMENT TERMS PER CONTRACT] 

6) Period of Performance. This contract will become effective for the period beginning [TIME 
PERIOD], with [ANY RENEWAL OPTIONS] upon the approval and signature of the parties hereto. 

7) Method of Payment. Contractor will be paid 30 days after completion of work as outlined in 
the Scope of Services after submission of a valid Invoice. 

8) Applicable Law. This contract shall be governed by and construed In accordance with the laws 
of the ·City of Pontiac, State of Michigan and applicable federal laws, 

9) Compliance with Laws. The Contractor understands that the City Is an equal opportunity 
employer and, therefore, maintains a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or 
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is 
unlawful and the Contractor agrees during the term of the agreement that the Contractor will 
strictly adhere to this policy In its employment practices and provision of services. The Contractor 
shall comply with, and all activities under this agreement shall be subject to, all applicable federal, 
State of Michigan, and City of Pontiac laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be 
amended or modified. 

The Contractor is responsible for instructing and ~raining their employees in appropriate safety 
measures. Employees will be responsible for maintaining a safe work environment while 
completing their tasks. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 15 of3O 



< i' 
l 

! 

a) . The Contractor shall comply with the Michigan Right to Know Law (Amendments to Act 
154), which requires that all employers within the State comply with federal Hazard 
Communications Standards (C.F.R. 1910.1200) and certain additional guidelines as of 
February 25, 1987. These Standards specify that employers develop a written hazard 
communication program, which is to be made available for workers or their designated 
representatives. 

b) The Contractor will comply with all federal, state and local regulations, Including but not 
limited to all applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the Americans with Disabilities 
Act 

c) The Contractor is responsible for all applicable state and federal social security benefits 
and unemployment taxes and agrees to Indemnify and protect the City against such 
liability. 

10} Requirements contract. During the period of the contract, the Contractor shall provide all the 
services described in the contract. The Contractor understands and agrees that this is a 
requirements contract and that the City shall have no obligation to the Contractor if no services 
are required, 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 16 of30 



EXHIBIT"A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide [TYPE OF SERVICE]. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall furnish all labor, supervision and services 
necessary to properly execute and complete the work, 

[INSERT SPECIFICS OF RFP HERE] 

Please see page 18-22 form Project Scope. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 17 of3O 



September 28, 2022 

Alicia Martin - Purchasing Division 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Dear Alicia, 

AmerlScan Imaging Services, Inc. (AmeriScan) Is pleased to submit a proposal for your document scanning 
needs. This document outlines the scanning requirements and clearly demonstrates that AmerlScan's 
team has the necessary experience and the business know-how to undertake such a project, 

AmeriScan Imaging Services uses industry-leading document Imaging technologies to provide superior 
scanning services to our clients. By combining the latest technologies with years of experience In the 
document Imaging market, we provide our clients with accurate, high-quality digital files while 
maintaining the highest level of customer support In the Industry. 

In order to service our clients effectively, we have Invested in the latest high speed document scanning 
equipment and software. In addition, we have developed processes and procedures that maximize the 
efficiency with which assignments are completed. Further, AmerlScan prides Itself on being flexible, 
delivering images and Index data in formats that flt your needs. 

Again, we thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal and we look forward to developing a strong 
partnership and a mutually rewarding business relationship for the years to come. 

Sincerely, 

Ke» 1A11 S Ser~ 

Kevin S. Serbenskl 
Sr. Project Manager 
AmeriScan Imaging Services 



EXHIBIT"B11 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) Att9rneys' fees and expenses. Subject to other terms and conditions of this contract, In 
the event the Contractor defaults in any obligation under this contract, the Contractor 
shall pay to the City all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, investigative 
fees, court costs, and attorneys' fees) incurred by the City in enforcing this contract or 
otherwise reasonably related thereto. Contractor agrees that under no circumstances 
shall the City be obligated to pay any attorneys' fees or costs of legal action to the 
Contractor. 

2) Authority to contract. The Contractor warrants: (a) that it is a validly organized business 
with valid authority to enter into this contract; {b) that it Is qualified to do busine~s and in 
good standing in the State of Michigan; (c) that entry into and performance under this 
contract ls not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, financing, contractual, or 
other contract of any kind; and, (d) notwithstanding any other provision of this contract 
to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings or prospective legal 
proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect Its ability to 
perform its obligations under this contract. 

3) Confidential information. Disclosure of any confidential Information by the Contractor or 
its subcontractor without the express written approval of the City shall result in the 
Immediate termination of this contract. 

4) Confidentiality. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, it Is 
recognized that the City of Pontiac is a public City of the State of Michigan and is subject 
to the laws regarding confidentiality. If a public records request Is made for any 
Information provided to the City pursuant to the contract, the City shall promptly notify 
the disclosing party of such request and will respond to the request only in accordance 
with the procedures and limitations set forth In applicable law. The disclosing party s'1all 
promptly Institute appropriate legal proceedings to protect Its information. No party to 
the contract shall be liable to the other party for disclosures of information required by 
court order or required by law. 

5) Contractor personnel. The City shall, throughout the life of the contract, have the right 
of reasonable rejection and approval of staff or subcontractors assigned to the work by 
the Contractor. If the City reasonably rejects staff or subcontractors, the Contractor shall 
provide replacement staff or subcontractors satisfactory to the City ln a timely manner 
and at no additional cost to the City, The day-to-day supervision and control of the 
Contractor's employees and subcontractors ls the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 
Contractor personnel are subject to background checks by the Oakland County Sheriff 
Department and shall comply with all requirements as outlined in the Request forQuote. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 18 of 30 



6} Insurance. The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until it has 
obtained the required insurance under this paragraph. All coverage shall be with 
insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan. All 
coverage shall be with carriers acceptable to the City of Pontiac: 

a) Workers' Compensation Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain during 
the life of this contract, Workers' Insurance, including Employers Llablllty Coverage, 
In accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan with a minimum 
limit of $100,000 each accident for any employee. 

b) Commercial General Uabillty Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
aggregate for Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage, coverage shall 
Include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Llability; (B) Products and Completed 
Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad Form General Liability 
Extensions or equivalent: (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground 
(XCU) Exclusions, If applicable; (F) Per project aggregate. 

c) Motor Vehicle Liability. The Contractor shall. procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract Motor Vehicle Liability lnsurance,.including Michigan No-Fault Coverage, 
with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single 
limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all 
non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

d) Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall Include an endorsement stating the following 
shall be Additionally Insured: The City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, 
all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board 
members, including employees and volunteers. Coverage maintained by contractor 
shall be primary over any other insurance carried by the City of Pontiac 

e) Cancellation Notice: All policies described above shall include an endorsement stating 
the following: "It is understood and agreed that Thirty (30) days Advance Written 
Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction and/or Material Change shall be sent 
to City Administrator for the City of Pontiac. 

f) Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the 
time the contracts are returned for execution, certificates for all coverage listed 
above. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 19 of30 



g) Expiration of Policies: If any of the above coverage lapses during term of this contract, 
the Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City of Pontiac 
at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

h) Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law1 the towing Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold the City harmless of and from all claims, losses, 1iablllty1 demands, 
costs, loss of service, expense, and compensation on account of or in any way growing 
out of any damage, including, but not limited to, bodily Injury orproperty damage 
which may result from the towing Contractor's towing services, In addition, the 
towing Contractor shall cover all costs Incurred by the City in defense of any litigation 
covered under this letter of contract, including attorney fees and court costs. 

I) insurance companies, named Insureds and policy forms shall be subject to the 
approval of the Pontiac Department of Public Works. Such approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Insurance policies· shall not contain endorsements or policy 
conditions, which reduce coverage provided to the City of Pontiac. Contractor shall be 
responsible to the City of Pontiac or insurance companies insuring the City of Pontiac 
for all costs resulting from both financially unsound insurance companies selected by 
Contractor and their inadequate insurance coverage. Contractor shall furnish the 
Pontiac Finance Department with satisfactory certificates of insurance or a certified 
copy of the policy, If requested by the Finance Department. 

j) No payments will be made to the Contractor until the current certificates of insurance 
have been received and approved by the Finance Department. If thelnsurance as 
evidenced by the certificates furnished by the Contractor expires or is canceled during 
the term of the contract, services and related payments will be suspended, Contractor 
shall furnish the Finance Department with certification 9f insurance evidencing such 
coverage and endorsements at least ten (10} working days prior to commencement 
of services under this contract. Certificates shall be addressed to the Pon.tiac Finance 
Department, and shall provide for 30 day written notice to the Certificate holder of 
cancellation of coverage. 

7) Ineligibility and suspension. The Contractor certifies to the best of Its knowledge and 
belief, that It: (a) is not presently ineligible, suspended, proposed for lneliglbility, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or 
the City or any political subdivision of the City or the State of Michigan; 
(b) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had 
civil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; (c) has not, within a three year 
period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had civil Judgment rendered against 
it for a violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 20 of30 



false statements, or receiving stolen property; (d) is not presently indicted for or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) 
with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraphs (b) and (c} of this 
certification; and, {e) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, had one 
or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

8) Disclosure of confidential information. In the event that either party to this contract 
receives notice that a third party requests dlvulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected Information and/or has served upon it subpoena or other validly Issued 
administrative or Judicial process ordering divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information that party shall promptly Inform the other party and thereafter 
respond In conformity with such subpoena to the extent mandated by law. This section 
shall survive the termination or completion of this contract. 

9} Exceptions to confidential Information. The Contractor and the City shall not be obligated 
to treat as confidential and proprietary any information disclosed by the otherparty 
("disclosing party") which: (a} is rightfully known to the recipient prior to negotiations 
leading to this contract, other than Information obtained In confidence under prior 
engagements; (b) is generally known or easily ascertainable by non parties ofordinary skill 
In the business of the customer; ( c) Is released by the disclosing party to any other person, 
firm, or entity (including governmental agencies or bureaus) without restriction; (d} is 
Independently developed by the recipient without any rellance on confidential 
information; (e} ls or later becomes part of the public domain or may be lawfully obtained 
by the City or the Contractor from any nonparty; or, (f) is disclosed with the disclosing 
party's prior written consent. 

10) Default. If the Contractor: • 

• a) Fails to supply complete labor and supervision In sufficient time and quantity to 
meet the City's progress schedule, as It may be modified: 

b) Causes stoppage or delay of, or interference with, the project; 

c) Falls to promptly pay Its employees for work on the project; 

d) Falls to pay worker's compensation or other employee benefits, withholding or any 
other taxes; 

e) Fails to comply with the safety pro.visions of the Contract or with any safety order, 
regulation or requirement of any governing authority having jurisdiction over this 
project; 

f) Makes unauthorized changes in supervisory personnel; 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 21 of30 



g) Falls In performance or observance of any of the provisions of the contract; 

h) Files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated insolvent; 

I) Obtains an order for relief under Section 301 of the Bankruptcy Code; 

j) Files any petition or fails to contest any petition filed seeking any reorganization or 
similar relief under any laws relating to bankruptcy, Insolvency or other relief of 
debtors; 

k) Or seeks or consents to or is acquiescent In the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any of its assets or property; 

• I) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

m} Makes an admission, in writing, of its inability to pay its debts as they became due; 

Then City, after giving Contractor written or oral {subsequently confirmed in writing) notice of 
such default and forty-eight (48) hours within which to cure such default, shall have the right to 
exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 

a) Require that Contractor utilize, at Its own expense, additional labor, overtime labor 
{including Saturday and Sunday work) and additional shifts as necessary to overcome 
the consequences of any delay attributable to Contractor's default. 

b) Remedy the default by whatever means City may deem necessary or appropriate, 
including, but not limited to, correcting, furnishing, performing or otherwise 
completing the work, or any part thereof, by itself or through others {utilizing where 
appropriate any materials and equipment prevlously purchased for that purpose by 
Contractor) and deducting the cost thereof from any monies due or to become due to 
Contractor hereunder; 

I} After giving Contractor an additional forty-eight (48) hours written (or oral, 
subsequently confirmed in writing) notice, terminate this Contract, 
without thereby waiving or releasing any rights or remedies against 
Contractor or its sureties, and, by itself or through others, take possession 
of the work, and all materials, equipment facilities, tools, scaffolds and 
appliances of Contractor relating to the work, for the purposes of costs and 
other damages under the contract and for the breach thereof; and 

Ii) Recover all reasonable attorneys' fees suffered or incurred by City by 
reason of, or as a result of, Contractor's default. 

20 22 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 22 of30 



r 

11) Failure to enforce. Failure by the City at any time to enforce the provisions of the contract 
shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not 
affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the City to enforce ai:iy 
provision at any time in accordance with Its terms. 

12} Final payment. Upon satisfactory completion of the work performed under this contract, 
as a condition before final payment under this contract, or as a termination settlement 
under this contract, the Contractor shall execute and de1lyer to the City a release of all 
claims against the City arising under, or by virtue of, the contract, except claims which are 
specifically exempted by the Contractor to be set forth therein. Unless other.wise 
provided in this contract, by state law, or otherwise expressly agreed to bythe parties 
in this contract, final payment under the contract or settlement upon termination of this 
contract shall not constitute waiver of the City's claims against the Contractor under this 
contract. 

13} Force majeure. Each party shall be excused from performance for any period and to the 
extent that it is prevented from performing any obligation or service, In whole or in part, 
as a result of causes beyond the reasonable control and without the fault or negligence 
of such party and/or Its subcontractors. Such acts shall include without limitation acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, riots, and acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations 
superimposed after the fact, fire, earthquakes, floods, or other natural disasters (the 
"force majeure events"). When such a cause arises, the Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately ln writing of the cause of Its inability •to perform, how it affects its 
performance, and the anticipated duration of the Inability to perform. Delays In delivery 
or in meeting completion dates due to force majeure events shall automatically extend 
such dat~s for a perlod equal to the duration of the delay caused by such events, unless 
the City determines it to be in Its best interest to terminate the contract. 

14) Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless, protect, and exonerate the City, Its commissioners, board 
members, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and the State of Michtganfrom 
and against all claims, demands, liabilities, suits, actions, damages, losses, and costs of 
every kind and nature whatsoever including, without limitation, court costs, investigative 
fees and expenses, and attorneys' fees, arising out of or caused by the Contractor and/or 
its partners, principals, agents, employees and/or subcontractors in the performance of 
or failure to perform this contract. In the City's sole discretion, the Contractor may be 
allowed to control the defense of any such claim, suit, etc. In the event the Contractor 
defends said claim, suit, etc., the Contractor shall use legal counselacceptable to the City. 
The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs and/or expenses associated with 
such defense, and the City shall be entitled to participate In said defense. The Contractor 
shall not settle any claim, suit, etc., without the City's concurrence, which the City shall 
not unreasonably withhold. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 23 of30 



15) Independent contractor status. The Contractor shall, at all times, be regarded as and shall 
be legally considered an independent contractor and shall at no time act as an agent for 
the City. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the City, the 
Contractor, or any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, master 
and servant, partners, joint ventures, employer and employee1 or any similar such 
relationship between the City and the Contractor. Neither the method of computation of 
fees or other charges, nor any other provision contained herein, nor anyacts of the City 
or the Contractor hereunder creates, ·or shall be deemed to create, a relationship other 
than the independent relationship of the City and the Contractor. The Contractor's 
personnel shall not be deemed in any way1 directly or indirectly, expressly or by 
implication, to be employees of the City or the State of Michigan. Neither the Contractor 
nor its employees shall, under any circumstances be considered servants, agents, or 
employees of the City and the City shall be at no time legally responslble for any 
negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, its servants, agents, or employees. 
The City shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor any federal or 
state unemployment taxes, federal or state Income taxes, social security tax1 or any other 
amounts for benefits to the Contractor. Further, the City shall not provide to the 
Contractor any insurance coverage or other benefits, including worker's compensation, 
normally provided by the City for its employees. 

16} No llmitation of llabiiitv. Nothing in this contract shall be interpreted as excluding or 
limiting any tort liability of the Contractor for harm caused by the intentional or reckless 
conduct of the Contractor or for damages incurred through the negligent performance of 
duties by the Contractor or the delivery of products that are defective due to negligent 
construction. 

17) Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under this contract shall be in 
writing and personally delivered or sent by certified United States mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested, to the Pontiac City Clerk's Office to whom the notice should be 
given at the address set forth below, Notice shall be deemed given when actuallyreceived 
or when refused. The parties agree to promptly notify each other in writing of any change 
of address. 

For the Contractor: [INSERT ADDRESS] 

For the City: [INSERT ADDRESS AND DEPARTMENT] 

18) Oral statements. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the 
terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this contract. All modifications to the 
contract shall be made in writing by the City and agreed to by the Contractor. 

19) Ownership of documents and work papers. The City shall own all documents, flies, 
reports, work papers and working documentation, electronic or otherwise, created in 
connection with the project \f>.!hich is the subject of this contract, except for the 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 24of 30 



I 

Contractor's internal administrative and quality assurance files and Internal project 
correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the City 
upon termination or completion of the contract. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to retain a set of such work papers for its files. The Contractor 
shall be entitled to use such work papers only after receiving written permission from the 
City and subject to any copyright protections. 

20) Prloritv. The contract consists of this contract with exhibits. Any ambiguities, conflicts or 
questions of interpretation of this contract shall be resolved by first, reference to this 
contract with exhibits and, If still unresolved, by reference to the bid. Omission of any 
term or obligation from this contract shall not be deemed an omission from this contract 
If such term or obllgation is provided for elsewhere in this contract. 

21) Quality control. The Contractor shall Institute and maintain throughout the contract 
period a properly documented quality control program designed to ensure that the 
services are provided at all times and in all respects in accordance with the contract. The 
program shall include providing daily supervision and conducting frequent inspections of 
the Contractor's staff and ensuring that accurate recprds are maintained describing the 
disposition of all complaints. The records so created shall be open to inspection by the 
City. 

22) Record retention and access to records. Provided the Contractor is given reasonable 
advance written notice and such inspection ls made during normal business hours of the 
Contractor, the City or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, prompt 
access to any of the Contractor's books, documents, papers, and/or records which are 
maintained or produced as a result of the project for the purpose of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. All records related to this contract shall be 
retained by the Contractor for three years after final payment is made underthis 
contract and all pending m~tters are closed; however, if any audit, litigation or other 
action arising out of or related in any way to this project ls commenced before the end of 
the three year period, the records shall be retained for one year after all Issues arising out 
of the action are finally resolved or until the end of the three year period, whichever is 
later. 

23) Recovery of monex. Whenever, under the contract, any sum of money shall be 
recoverable from or payable by the Contractor to the City, the same amount may be 
deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or under any other 
contract between the .Contractor and the City. The rights of the City are in addition and 
without prejudice to any other right the City may have to claim the amount of any loss 
or damage suffered by the City on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor. 

24} Right to audit. The Contractor shall maintain such financial records and other records as 
may be prescribed by the City or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 
regulations. The Contractor shall retain these records for a period of three years after 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 25 of30 



final payment, or until they are audited by the City, whichever event occurs first. These 
records shall be made available during the term of the contract and the subsequent three
year period for examination, transcription, and audit by the Michigan Office of theState 
Auditor, its designees, or other authorized bodies. 

25) Right to Inspect facility. The City may, at reasonable times, Inspect the place of business 
of the Contractor or any subcontractor, whi_ch ls related to the performance of any 
contract awarded by the City .. 

26) Severability. If any part of this contract is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the contract that can 
be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the 
provisions hereof are severable. In such event, the parties shall amend the contract as 
necessary to reflect the original intent of the parties and to bring any invalid or 
unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. • 

27) City property. The Contractor will be responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
City-owned property furnished for the Contractor's use in connection with the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor will reimburse the City for any loss or 
damage, normal wear and tear excepted. 

28} Termination for convenience clause, 

a) The City reserves the absolute right to terminate the contract in whole or in part, for 
the convenience of the City at its sole discretion on thirty (30} days written notice to 
the Contractor. The City has the right, upon Its sole discretion only, to terminate the 
contract with cause by giving notice to the Contractor of such termination, specifying 
the effective date thereof, at least fourteen {14) days before the effective date of such 
termination, and the Contract shall terminate in all respects as If such date were the 
date originally given for the expiration of the Contract. 

b) The Contractor shall be liable to the City for damages sustained by the City by virtue 
of any breach of the Contract by the Contractor, and any costs the City might Incur 
enforcing or attempting to enforce the Contract, and the City may pursue legal 
remedies in the collection of fees to compensate for the damages sustained by the 
City. 

c) Contractor's Obligations. The Contractor shall incur no further obligations In 
connection with the terminated work and on the date set in the notice of termination 
the Contractor will stop work to the extent specified. The Contractor shall also 
terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the terminated work. 
The Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of 
subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work.The City may direct 
the Contractor to assign the Contractor's right, title, and Interest 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 26 of30 



. r 

i 

I 
• ' 

i 

I 

29) 

under terminated orders or subcontracts to the State of Michigan. The Contractor 
shall still complete the work not terminated by the notice of termination and may 
incur obligations as are necessary to do so . 

Termination for default clause. 

a) Default. If the Contractor refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 
contract with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in 
this contract or any extension thereof, or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the contract 
provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this contract, theCity may 
notify the Contractor in writing of the delay or nonperformance and if not cured in 
ten days or any longer time specified in writing by the City, the City may terminate the 
Contractor's right to proceed with the contract or such part of the contract as to which 
there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. In the evemt of termination In 
.whole or ln part, the City may procure similar supplies or services in a manner and 
upon terms deemed appropriate by the City. The Contractor shall continue 
performance of the contract to the extent it is not terminated and shall be liable for 
excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or services. 

b} Contractor's Duties. Notwithstanding termination of the contract and subject to any 
directions from the City, the Contractor shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary 
action to protect and preserve property In the possession of the Contractor in which 
the City has an Interest. 

c) Compensation. Payment for completed services delivered and accepted by the City 
shall be at the contract price. The City may withhold from amounts due the Contractor 
such sums as the City deems to be necessary to protect the City against loss because 
of outstanding liens or claims of former Ben holders and to reimburse the City for the 
excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods and services. 

' 

d} Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance. Except with respect to defaults 
of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be in default by reason of any failure in 
performance of this contract in accordance with its terms (including any failure by the 
Contractor to make progress in the prosecution of the work hereunder which 
endangers such performance} if the Contractor has notified the City within 15 clays 
after the cause of the delay and the failure arises out of causes such as: acts of God; 
acts of the public enemy; acts of the State of Michigan and any other governmental 
entity In its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics;quarantlne 
restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; or unusually severe 
weather. If the failure to perform caused by the failure of a subcontractor to perform 
or to make progress, and if such failure arises out ofcauses similar to those set forth 
above, the Contractor shall not be deemed to be in default, unless the services to be 
furnished by the subcontractor were reasonably 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 27 of3O 



obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit the Contractor to meet 
the contract requirements. Upon request of the Contractor, the City shall ascertain 
the facts and extent of such failure, and, if such officer determines that any failure to 
perform was occasioned by any one or more of the excusable causes, and that, but 
for the excusable cause, the Contractor's progress and performance would have met 
the terms of the contract, the delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly, subject 
to the rights of the City under the clause entitled "Termination for Convenience." (As 
used In this paragraph, the term "subcontractor" means subcontractor at any tier}. 

e} Erroneous Termination for Default. If, after notice of termination of the Contractor's 
right to proceed under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason 
that the contract was not In default under the provisions of this clause, or that the 
delay was excusable under the provisions of Paragraph (d) (Excuse for 
Nonperformance or Delayed Performance) of this clause, the rights and obligations of 
the parties shall, if the contract contains a clause providing for termination for 
convenience by the City, be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued 
pursuant to such clause, 

f) Additional Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies provided In this clause are 
In addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

30) Termination upon bankruptcy. This contract may be terminated In whole or in part by the 
City upon written notice to the Contractor, if the Contractor should become the subject 
of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or upon the 
execution by the Contractor of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors. lnthe event 
of such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to recover just and equitable 
compensation for satisfactory work performed under this contract, but in no case shall 
said compensation exceed the total contract price. 

31) Third party action notification. The Contractor shall give the City prompt notice in writing 
of any action or suit filed, and prompt notice of any claim made against the Contractor by 
any entity that may result In litigation related in any way to this contract.. 

32) Unsatisfactory work. If, at any time during the contract term, the service performed or 
work done by the Contractor is considered by the City to create a condition that threatens 
the health, safety, or welfare of the citizens and/or employees of the City of Pontiac, the 
Contractor shall, on being notified by the City, Immediately correct such deficient service 
or work. In the event the Contractor fails, after notice, to correct the deficient service or 
work immediately, the City shall have the right to order the correction of the deficiency 
by separate contract or with its own resources at theexpense of the Contractor. 

33) Waiver. No delay or omission by either party to this contract In exercising any right, 
power, or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by contract, at law, or In equity shall 

2022 City Bull ding Document Scanning Project Page 28 of30 



constitute an acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder 
or otherwise afforded by any means, or operate as a waiver of such right, power, or 
remedy, No waiver by either party.to this contract shall be valid unless set forth in writing 
by the party making sald'waiver, No waiver of or modification to any term or condition of 
this contract will void, waive, or change any other term or condition, No waiver by one 
party to this contract of a default by the other party wlll Imply, be construed as, or require 
waiver of future or other defaults. 

34) Taxes and Contributions. The Contractor hereby accepts and assumes exclusive liability 
for and shall Indemnify, protect and save harmless the City from and against the payment 
of: 

a) Contractor agrees to contact the City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and 
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, to establish 
reporting arid withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax 
Ordinance. Contractors will require the same of all subcontractors employed to 
perform any work in the City of Pontiac. 

Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

Tax forms URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/depaiiments/income tax/tax fonns.php 

b) All contributions, taxes or premiums (including interest and penalties thereon) which 
may be payable under the Unemployment Insurance Law of any State, the Federal 
Social Security Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Act, 
Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Laws, or any other law, 
measured upon the payroll of or required to be withheld from employees by 
whomsoever employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished under 
this contract 

c) All sales, use, personal property and other taxes (including interest and penalties 
thereon) required by any Federal, State, County, Municipal or other law to be paid 
or collected by the Contractor or any of its vendors or any other person or persons 
acting for, through or under it or any of them, by reason of the performance of this 
work or the acquisition, furnishing, or use of any materials, equipment, supplies, 
labor, services or other items for or in connection with the work. 

d) All pension, welfare, vacation, annuity and other union benefit contributions payable, 
under or in connection with respect, to all persons; by whomsoever employed or 
engaged in the work to be performed and furnished under this Contract. 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 29 of30 



35) Bonds. The Contractor Is required to execute bonds, with sureties acceptable to the City, 
as identified In the specifications, alt of which are incorporated into this agreement. 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have affixed, on duplicate originals, their signatures on 
the date Indicated below, after first being authorized so to do. 

fCONTRACTORl 

By: 
DATE (Title) 

City of Pontiac 

By: 
DATE (Title) 

2022 City Building Document Scanning Project Page 30 of30 



Exhibit B 

AmeriScan Service Specifications 

Page 18 of 19 



Exhibit B 

Service Specification 

I Project Introduction (Statement of Work) & Estimated Quantities 

The City of Pontiac has blueprints and property address files that need to be scanned, indexed, & 
uploaded into their document management software Laserfiche. The blueprints are a mix of sizes and 
some of the blueprints (See images below) have "rough" edges and will require special handling. Each 
set of blueprints will be scanned Into a multi-page pdf or tiff file and indexed by either the property 
address or the parcel ID. The property address flies are also mix of sizes and contain some blueprints that 
will need to be scanned on a separate scanner and then merged with the other paper in the file. All 
scanning w111 be done at 300dpi in black and white, The purpose of this project is to digitize all files, so 
they are easily accessible, and to prevent any or further damage to the original hard copies._ All services 
including document destruction wlll take place at AmeriScan Imaging Services located at 50690 Rizzo 
Drive, Sh~lbyTownship, Ml 48315. • 

Paper Condition: 
• Age of paper- New and old 
• Most pages (95%+) are of standard size 
• Some of the pages have staples 
• Some of the pages are double sided 
• Some of the property address files contain large format drawings/maps 
• Some pages consist of large format drawings/maps 

Location: 
All files are located at the Pontiac city hall, which is located at 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 
48342. 

Cabinet/File Photos: 

Blueprints 110,000 
Property Address Files 2,000,000 



I DESCRIPTION OF DELIVERABLES 

Project Workflow 

•. ::: ~ ·: ·.~ ,: {(-~.-:·,: ~. 

Scanning 

··:1 \.Ti\;r.\t\~,;'.~;
1 

Quality Control .: 

Project Setup 

~~;~il~e:fa{ 
• Fac:Uity- : • °'. 

. . ' 

~\ .. ~~-i<\!\:i:~:~:!~ :_ ~
·uuilitv-cont~oT -: 

' .. 

·•-:} )i)t;rr~:·:f,.~:}! 
. • lnve'ntory:at • ~ . 

Ai:neriScan Facjlity . 

f ;~. ~::~~·-. ~:·~~i ?~-i~:.f 
:·-· DJ?C~!f!ent:·· :· 

•. Preparation :. • ; 
. ' ' 

' '• 
'. ' 

·-;J{\\ij?{t_'.f:{', 
,: __ .-OCR _· ,-·. 

:,_~Yrt??Y[if. 
• • Index· . ' 

' ' 

' •,· ,. 

The first step for any project ls to configure the correct project workflow and then assemble the best 
team to meet all deliverables. Project Setup shall Include the following: 

• Discovery meeting (AmeriScan & The City of Pontiac) 
• Determine project schedule a.nd expectations 
• File request portal training and documentation 
• Assemble best team possible 

Document Preparation 
Pre-Scanning preparation shall include the Jo/lowing: 

• Remove the pages from each file folder/binder. 
• Remove staples, paper clips, and any other binding. 
• Tape torn or tattered documents to allow proper scanning, 
• Insertion of bar.coded sheets for document breaks and/or reading 'of barcodes, 
• Sticky notes will need to be removed and applied to open area. 
• Count the number of files per box. 

Scanning (Standard Size -11" x 17" or less} 
merlScan shall use the following processes to ensure the highest quality image results from the 
canning of each document: 

• Scan each file Into a B/W PDF file at 300 dpi. 
• Ensure pages are correctly orientated, 
• Remove blank pages from the PDF. 
• File folders do not need to be scanned. 
• Verify the number offiles per box. 

50690 Ri!lo Drive 
ShelbyT011nsnlp, Ml 48315 

P:566.;32,0022 
f:5B6.532.9995 
To!lrree:877.727.0022 



Large Format Scanning (Blueprints/Drawings/maps) 
AmeriScan shall use the following processes to ensure the highest quality Image results from the scanning 
of each document: 

• Scan each drawing at 300 dpi in either black & white or In grayscale. 
• Ensure pages are correctly orientated. 
• Index Drawings by the parcel lD. 

Indexing/OCR (Optical character recognition) 
AmeriScan shall use the following processes to ensure the highest data-entry accuracy: 

• Index each file by the address and the parcel ID. 
• Use Match and merge technology if appllcable. 
• Perform OCR (Optical character recognition) on the resulting PDF. 

Match and Merge Technology 
If feasible but not necessary, The City of Pontiac will provide an excel file containing a list of property 
addresses and parcel ID's. 

Quality Assurance Review 
Document scanning and Indexing shall be carefully monitored and evaluated to ensure the highest 
quality output. The following quality control items shall be monitored by AmeriScan on each • 
scanned document: 

• Reviewing the scanned image for proper orientation. 
• Legibility of text, proper document type, correct number of documents, correct page 
Sequence. 
• Re-scanning corrected documents. 
• Input data corrections. 
• Certify accuracy and completeness. 
• Tracking, prepping, scanning, and Indexing errors. 
• Ensure processes are followed/provide reporting. 

Storage & Document Destruction 
No charge for storage during the scanning process, AmerlScan Imaging Services will hold onto all hard 
copies for 6 months after delivering the data back to City of Pontiac. After the 6 months has expired the 
files will go for secure destruction. All destruction is done on-site at AmerlScan Imaging Services. 

Uploading/ Data Transfer 
Once the converted files have successfully passed all quality control reviews, we will transfer the images 
and Index data onto a portable drive and deliver it back to the City of Pontiac. AmerlScan Imaging Services 
will retain all electronic data for 12 months after delivery. 



Project Timeline 
The project Is to be completed by the term of contract date which is May 30, 2023. AmeriScan Imaging 
Services will deliver all scanned and indexed data by said date. 

File Requests - Customer Web Portal 
Once the files are in our possession that doesn't mean you can't access them. AmerlScan will provide file 
requests to you and your staff at no additional charge, Just let us knowwhatyou need, and we will upload 
the requests to a secure web portal. if you need the actual hard copy file and/or box(s) we can 
dellver/shlp them as needed. Our hours of operation are 8:00 am - 5:00 pm EST, Monday thru Friday. If 
you have a file request, you can email us at filereguest@amertscanlmaging.com or call us at (877) 727~ 
0022, You will need to provide your na'me, company name, customer account number, contact number, 
email address, and the file{s), document(s), and/or box(s) you're requesting. All fl!e requests will be 
processed within 24 hours. Emergency/Urgent requests wlll be processed immediately. Upon signing a 
service agreement, an additional phone number will be provided for after hour requests.- Individuals 
requesting files need to be on the authorization form. 

tit AI5rilertcl\uest 1 lfi Oocut'\U~ntcenlt;:r O Conli\ttUs •JL<min 



Exhibit C 

Addendums 3 and 5 

Page 19 of19 



STREET FILES 

I 
' 

I' 

t . ! 



Building Files 





City Building Documents Scanning Project 
Pre-Bid Meeting held on Monday, September 12, 2022 

Questions and Answers 
The City of Pontiac's answers are indicated in 'red' font 

1. Can we pick up all the documents in a single trip? 

Yes, preferably. All documents will need to be accessible through FOIA. 

2. Do we need to provide the digitized documents in specific folder structure? 

All flies will need to be formatted for import into Laserfiche. If the bidder is not currently a 

Laserfiche partner, they will need to connect with Laserfiche to find out the file format 

requirements, 

3. Do we need to apply any naming convention to flies? 

Yes, all documents need to be identified by parcel number, 

4, Can we request for email submission? 

All bid submissions must follow the guidelines indicated in the Notice to Bidders section of the 

City Building Documents Scanning Project solicitation document. No email submission will be 

accepted. 

5, Do we need to scan B&W or Color? If color, then what% of documents are color? 

Black & White. 

6. What is the expected output format? 1) TIFF or PDF 2) Single page or Multipage? 

Please refer to question #2's answer regarding file format. Each blue print should be on a 

single page. For the street files, multiple documents can be on the same page. 

7, What is the size of documents for each type? 

This size of the document will depend on the size of the original. 

Page 1 of 7 



I 

r 

8. Are you using any document management software? 

Laserfiche. 

9. Do we need to OCR the documents? 

10. 

11. 

I believe Laserfiche will OCR the documents when they are imported. You may confirm this 

when you consult with Laserfiche. 

Is there any requirement of destruction? 

Yes1 after Quality Control of documents being scanned are of adequate clarity. 

Is there budget fix for this project? If yes, How much? 

The City of Pontiac has sufficient funding reserved for this project. We are asking the bidders 

to include their proposed cost with their bid submission. 

12. Do you prefer documents are picked up? 

Yes. There is a ground-level loading area that will be designated for mass pick-ups and 

deliveries. There ls also an elevator that will be accessible during pick-up and delivery times. 

13. How soon should the project be completed? 

The contract completion date is May 30, 2023, unless otherwise stipulated in writing by the 

City of Pontiac. 

14. In terms of engineering drawings, are they In tubes, drawers, lying flat, folded, o·r all the above? 

In tubes and some are folded in the street files. 

15. Are local companies going to be given priority when bids are being consldered for award? 

Preference will be given to the lowest qualified bid, in accordance with Article 2-VI Finance1 

Division 2-517 of the City of Pontiac Municipal Code. 

16. Should the notes written on the outside of folded drawings be scanned as well? 

Page 2 of7 



No. 

17. Will we share the Pre-Bid Meeting sign-in sheet? 

No, the pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet will not be shared with bidders. Bidders will have an 

opportunity to attend the public bid opening, which will identify all respondents at that time. 

18. What is the recommended Laserfiche format for uploading? Do you have a sample scanned file 

& folder structure and corresponding index structure used for upload? 

Please refer to question #2's answer. All files will need to be formatted for import into 

Laserfiche. If the bidder is not currently a Laserflche partner, they will need to connect with 

Laserfiche to find out the file format requirements. 

19. Is shredding a. service you want us to provide pricing on as well? It was mentioned during the 

onsite visit that the documents would be shredded after scanning & review. If so, will the bid 

form be updated to show shredding as one of the processes? 

Yes, shredding service should be included In the price. 

Yes, the City's preference is that destruction services are included, but it is at the bidder's 

discretion to include the approach and methodology in the bidder's bid submission. The Clty 

of Pontiac - Details of Documents Needing Scanning (referred to in bidder's question as "bid 

form") will be updated to reflect Destruction and Storage Costs. 

20. If you want the vendor to shred the documents, how long do you anticipate us storing the paper 

records while you review the scanned images? Will storage be a line item added to the bid 

form? 

The timeframe for bidders to store documents will be within the timeframe it will take for 

bidder to collect the documents, scan them, and conduct a quality control check before 

Page 3 of7 



returning the SCANNED documents to the City of Pontiac. The City of Pontiac Is estimating 

that bidders will conduct a weekly volume of scans (as indicated for question# 24), saving the 

information to a flash drive {as indicated in question# 27), and returning the portion of 

documents scanned, along with the flash drive. Yes, bidder will be required to identify the 

cost for Destruction and Storage Costs. 

21. We were at the pre-bid meeting on Monday, it was mentioned that there was a spreadsheet 

that existed for the Commercial files. 

Is there a spreadsheet for the Residential files? 

There is only one spreadsheet which contains all of the plans in storage racks. The 

spreadsheet will be saved to BidNet as an addendum and placed in the Document folder of 

the solicitation. 

Will these be posted for viewing before the bid deadline? 

Yes, the Commercial files spreadsheet will be available before the bid deadline. All 

Addendums and documents that the City of Pontiac indicated will be available in this Q & A 

will be posted to Bid Net as an Addendum and saved in the Document folder of the 

solicitation. 

22. Physical Media 

a} What are the dimensions of each media set7 

The dimensions of each media set varies. 

b) For mixed media, what are the largest and smallest sizes? 

Approximately 3" x 51
' cards to 3' x 4' plans. 

c) Is there a greater percentage of media one size? 

Page·4 of 7 



Please refer to the answer provided for 22. a) 

d) Do sticky notes need to be scanned If removed from pages 

No. 

e) Are you able to provide samples of damaged media? Are we responsible for repairing 

the damaged media or Just scanning in the best quality possible? 

It is the City of Pontiac's expectation that there will be some minor repair to media, 

such as taping small tears, in order to scan the media. Some of the older plans may 

require to be put in a sleeve before scanning them. 

23. Scanning Requirements 

a) Are there established scanning format requirement (file type, file size, dpi, naming 

convention) etc.? 

Documents need to be searchable by Parcel number. PDF, JPG or TIFF are acceptable 

import formats for laserfiche (please refer to the answer provided for question# 2). 

However, the bidder is expected to contact laserfiche to determine the best format. 

Scans are expected to be at a resolution high enough that the documents can be easily 

read. 

b} Are there established indexing requirements? Can you provide a sample of the index 

data to be provided? 

If the bidder is already a Laserfiche partner, they will have the indexing requirements. 

If not, they will need to contact laserfiche to establish them. 

c) Can scans be B/W or is color necessary? Or mixed? 

Color Is not necessary. 

Page 5 of7 



I 

24. On Demand Scanning 

a) Are you able to estimate the volume of demand scans will be required? Daily? Weekly? 

Weekly. 

b) And what is required turn-around time? 

FOIA requests are completed weekly. The documents would be required only if 

requested. 

25. Pontiac Escalation 

a) Is there an SME that we can contact in regards to questions while scanning the different 

media? 

Dan Kolbe. Requests must be emailed to DKolbe@pontiac.mi.us. 

26. Offsite Shipping 

a) Is there someone at Pontiac who will prepare and ship the documents or will we need to 

send someone onsite to prep and ship? 

Preferred to have someone onsite to pack and ship. 

b) Is the expectation to ship all documents at one time or to ship incrementally and send 

back the physical documents as they are scanned? 

Bidders are expected to recommend an approach, whether it is none-time or The 

Documents must be destroyed after being scanned. 

27, Digital Delivery 

a) How does the city want the completed scans delivered? 

The preferred media is a flash drive. 

Page 6 of7 



b) Incremental (i.e., monthly) or one time at the completion of the project? 

Monthly. 

c) Via FTP, physical hard drive, Data box or other? 

Delivery via flash drive is preferred. Deliveries shall be made to the City Hall Building 

Department located on the 1st Floor of City Hall. 

9) If a physical hard drive is required, does the city require any encryption on the drive? 

Encryption is not necessary If delivered on flash drive 

28, Vendor Resources 

a) Are there any restrictions on indexing or validation work being completed by resources 

that are FTE's of our company in India? 

Due to confidentiality concerns, the City of Pontiac requires that is documents remain 

within the United Sates at all times. The Contractor who receives the bid award will 

be required to sign a non-disclosure agreement, as well as any of the Contractor's 

personnel. 

Page 7 of7 



Instruction to Bidders: 

City Building Documents Scanning Project 
Cost Proposal Template 

Use this Cost Proposal Template to indicate your cost proposal. Please do not use the City of Pontiac -
Details of Documents Needing Scanning (p. 13) to complete your cost proposal. 

,;i:Mt~tsit~.tiN 
Blueprints 110,000 I.Brge Format Scanning 

2 Street Address 2,000,000 Mixed dimensions (sizes) 
Scans Scannin 

3 Document Estimated Cost to remove staples, paper 
Preparation Hours/Rate clips, sticky notes, and 

repairing of damaged 
documents to make them 
scanner-read 

4 Indexing Estimated Cost to index scanned items by 
Hours/Rate address and parcel ID for use in 

a document management 
stem 

5 Transportation lime and Cost of packaging, transporting 
Materials and storing of documents in 

re aration of scannin 
6 Document Cost Cost of on-demand retrieval of 

Retrieval ents for each re uest 
7 Destruction shred or burn 

Use this area to indicate any additional costs you want the City of Pontiac to consider . 

Description . unit cosf($) rofafcost($) 





r 
The HEART of Oakland County 

December 1, 2022 

09022022 - City Builcling Documents Scanning Rroject (Bias 

Addendum No. 1 and 2 

The Addendums posted to Bid Net, for the solicitation named above, was created in 
error. Addendum No. 1 and No. 2 does not exist. 

Feel free to send an email to purchasing@pontiac.mi.us if there are any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Cllicibv~ 
Alicia Martin 
Purchasing Manager 

Oat~ Signed 





September 20, 2022 

City Building Documents Scanning Project 

Addendum No. 4 

Notice to Bidders: 

1. The City of Pontiac will require one (1) additional day to prepare responses to the bidder 

questions received in response to the City Building Documents Scanning Project. The 

deadline for the City of Pontiac to post answers to bidders' questions extended. from. 

Tuesday, September 20, 2022, to Wednesday, September 21, 2022. The City of Pontiac 

will post a Q&A sheet as ah addendum to Bid Net and the City of Pontiac's Purchasing 

webpage no later than 5 pm EST on September 21, 

Sign this Addendum below to acknowledge receipt and understanding of its content. Return 
this Addendum with your bid document. 

l<indest regards, 

Alicia Martin 
Purchasing Manager 

The undersigned bidder acknowledges receipt and understanding of Addendum No. 4, 

Signature Date 





AMERIMA-01 JBLOOM 
ACORD· CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDD/YYYY) 

~ 12/5/2022 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder ls an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement{si. 

PRODUCER ~Rimer 
Hub International Midwest East iit)g,N~o, Ext}: IFAX 
31440 Northwestern Hwy (AIC, No}: 
Suite 130 ~~o'l!kss: 
Farmington Hills, Ml 48334 

INSURERfSl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURERA:Citizens Insurance Comoanv of America 31534 
INSURED INSURER a: Hanover Insurance Comoanv 22292 

AmerlScan Imaging Services INSURl:R C: 
50690 Rizzo Drive INSURERO: 
Shelby Township, Ml 48315 

INSURER E: 
INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTVVlTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

11Nf: 1YPE OF INSURANCE ,~,?.P~ .w:Jt POLICY NUMllER POLICY EFF ,.':8~l%~1 LIMITS 
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

- D CLAIMS-MADE [R] OCCUR g~~;;~~ '11;~~~J,\;.?.ncel 300,000 OHBA357148 7/12/2022 7/12/2023 $ -
- MED EXP (Anv one nersonl $ 10,000 

-- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000 

2,000,000 

=i
GEN.'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 

POLICY □ m?r □ LOC PRODUCTS -COMP/OPAGG s 2,000,000 

OTHER: s 
A ~TOMOBILE LIABILITY _Ji,';~~_!\'!.~!;>)ilNGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000 

- ANY AUTO OHBA357148 7/1212022 7/12/2023 BODIL y lfiJURY (Per oersonl $ 

~
'NNED - SCHEDULED 

- UTOS ONLY f-- AUTOS BODIL y INJURY IPer accident\ $ 

X ~ITT-WsoNLY X ~8fo~~~Ir.9 lp'}.9~ffid1;,h1fAMAGE $ 

~ 

- UMBRELLA LIAS HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION$ $ 

8 WORKERS COMPENSATION XI ~ffrnrE I I ~~H-AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N WHBA357156 7/12/2022 7/12/2023 100,000 ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE □ ,_.E,L. EACH ACCIDENT ~ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 

100,000 (Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT $ 500,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

City of Pontiac 
THE EXPIRATION PATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

~ A . l@;J~&at~ 
I 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rlghts reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 





Performance Bond 

CONTRACTOR: 
(Nu11,e, h•nal st<1t11s c,11</ udclres11) 

AmerlScan Imaging Services, Inc. 
50690 Rizzo Drive 
Shelby Township, Ml 48315 

Bond No. 72515972 
SURETY: Western Surely Company; South Dakota Corporation 
(Nc1111<1, /C'gctl sla/111; cmd JJl'ill<·ipal place 
of b11si'11es11) 

OWNER: 
(Na111a, lc:1.ml st11t1111 mu/ ml<ll'rs.~) 

City of Pontiac 

151 N. Franklin Street 
Chicago, IL 60606 

This document has Important legal 
consequences. Consultation wilh 
an attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion or 
modification. 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
Dnto: December 9, 2022 

Amo11nl: $180,300.00 

Dni;m•iption: 
(1\'a111c1 011d loc(l/iou) 
City Building Documents Scanning Project 

BONO 
Dato: December 13, 2022 
(i\'o/ eal'liet· thm1 Co11stl'11r.lio11 Co11tmct Date) 

Amount: $180,300.00 

Mo<li.ficationi; to thiH Bond: ~ None 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL 

0 See Sucl.ion lG 

SURETY 
Company: (Co,'lJOl'llte &ea() Con1p1111y: 

Any singular reference to 
Con\ractor, Surety, owner or 
other party shall be considered 
plural where applicable. 

AIA Document A312-2010 
combines two separate bonds, a 
Performance Bond and a 
Payment Bond, into one form. 
This Is not a single combined 
Performance and Payment Bond. 

(Co,-poml<• Simi) 
Western Surety Company 

..--· J //: v ,,t, 
~171~~i~lllr<" -----··------··--·-·- • - ··•···-----·-··----.... ~jl~:1

1
l
1
1~l-~~~IV4f;~~ r 

nn<l 'l'itlu: nnd Tit.Ju: Allorney-ln-Facl • 

AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. 

(1l11y 11dditio11al m'g11a/11rns apprur 011 llw /a.~/ J)Cllfe uf 1/rfo 1'1?1fol'l11<11wc• JJmul,) 

(FOR INFOHM.-1'/'JON ON/,Y-Na11111, udcii'ess 011<I ti?le1>ho1w) 
AGENT 01· BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE: 

HUB International Midwest (Al'(:f, itur.•I, ,~•11.ui1111er m· 11/hm· 1>m•f.w) 
1591 Galbralth Ave SE 
Grand Rapids, Ml 49546 

Printed in cooperation with the American Jns/1/u/e of Architects (AIA) 

The language In /his document conforms to the language used In A/A Document A312. Perfomwnce Bolld- 2010 Edition. 1 



§ 1 Tho Conl1·nclor 1111cl 8m·ol.y, jointly nnd Hlwr.rnlly, bind thomHnlvnH, thci1· \l(lirH, Hxec11lm·ii. 11clminii;t.rnlol'x, i.;1u:cr.HK0l't1 
nnd ni,,sigm; lo I he Owm•1· H.n· tlw pllrlhrmn1wt~ of' !he Coni;(.rm:lion Cont.rncl, whit-h is incm·1rnrnllld lwrnin hy l'(llhr(!J1ce. 

§ 2 If !he Cont1·1wtor l)erforms tlw Constnlt'lion Contrncl, the Sunit.y and llrn Co!llrncl.or Hhnll hnve no obligation undtll' 
lhii; Rone!, miC<~Pl whon upplicablo to J>111·1icipul<i in u confrwencci llfi provided in Stwlion 3, 

§ 3 II' t.ht•ru ill 1111 Ownur Dl'fmtll. 1m<l<'l' tllll Com;t.rnction Cont.met·, tlw Sun•t.y's ohlignlion \lnd<•l' thiH 13ond shnll ul'isu 
aftor 

.1 tho Ownm· fi1·Ht 111·ovicloR notko tot.ho Conh·nr.tol' nnd tho 8ul'Oly t.hnt. lhn Owncw [s r.onRirlr.ring clr.r.lnring 
a Contl'nclm' Defnull .. Such nolicl! flhull indiculn wlwllrnr t.llCl Ownct· iH 1·r.quof<l,in!\' n c:onlimmce nmong 
!Im Ownm•, C:ontr11clo1• nn<l Surety lo tliHC\\Hf:l llrn Cont.riu:tm·'K pm•form1mc<i. If (.he Ownnr doeH not. 
1·oquo~t. n conforonco, tho Surety rnuy, wit.bin five (6) bm1ilw1.u; tlnyB aftc1· rncoipi of tll(1 Owner'!! 11ntico, 
l'CQ\UJH!. 1meh I\ eonfonmc<1, lf11rn Sm·tit.y thmily rtH!lHllllH n conl\.n·cm:o, !hn (hvnor 1d111ll nl.limd. Unlc11H 
tlrn Ownor ngrt1os ot.horwiRo, nny conf<ll'onc11 r<iqmiRtl!!l unclcir thiR Socl'.ion a.1 filrnll ho hold within Inn 
(10) liusinofis clnyR of tho S\\l'el:y's recnipl. of I hci Ownor'll llOlicn, lf 1:hn Ownm·, the Contrnclor nml tho 
S\ll'ely ng1•cn, Urn Conlrnc:tm• Rl111ll ho nllnwml n rnnia;onnlilo limo to porfo1·m t.lrn Conf<(.rur.1-ion Conlrncl, 
bu(. RU<!h an agrmrnwnt 1-drnll nol wni1•c1 thn Ownor'K right, if any. iml11-m11110111.ly lo dciclarn II Oon(.1•1wlor 
Dcfa11ll.; 

.2 the Owner docln1·nH n Cont l'llctm· Dnfnult, IN'lllinnl<ill 1.ho Com11t·uclion Con1.1·11el und no(iifos lho 8m·c1[.y; 
11ntl 

,3 thn Ownor hnH l\f(t'tmd lo \>nY thn B11l11ncc1 of tho Conll'nr.l, Pricn in nccm·clanc:n wilh tho tnrmia; of t-lrn 
C0118(,1•11elion Con(1•1rnt. lo I.ho 811rnt.y or Inn conlrnctm· 1mlr.ctml 10 porform t.hn Cotrnt1•ucl.ion Contrnnt .. 

§ 4 Fnihll'e on the pnrl of llw Ownm· lo cmnply with 1.Jw nolicH rnqui1·C1nw.nt in 8oct.ion a.1 Khnll no(, conAUl.nle II failure 
lo comply with II condilion pt'l'l'tHlunl lo t.lw 8m·tH.y'!l ohlignt.iont,;, 01· n1lm1i;11 t.he Surn(.y fl'Om i(.!l ohlignlinnH, excepl. lo 
the l1xto111: tlm 8\U'l'lY dt•mtmi-lt·ntt•i, 11etunl 1m•jmli<·1i, 

§ 5 Whun tho Ownu1· hal-t Katisfiod tlw conditioni, of Soction a, the Sm·nt.y i;bnll promptly nllll ut. lhc Smot.y'H cxponfin 
t11kr 0110 of !'lw following nc:tionR: 

§ 5.1 Arrnnge fur till' Cunl 1·nctm•, with t lw t'OllHenl oft lw Owm•1·, 10 1wrfonu und comp Ir to tlw Coll!;t.nu:t.ion Contract: 

§ 5.2 Undtirlukt' lo 1w1·form und t·ompletl' tlw Com;lrnl'lion Cont..rncl ili;dl; lhl'Ongh its ugentH m· independ<•nl. 
con I r11ctor1;: 

§ 5,3 Ublnit1 hie.Ii; 01· nugotiutetl l)ropoi;al,; from qualified c1mtrnc101·s ucccptablo lo the Owner fot• a contrucl for 
pnl'fo1•uw11cn nnd r.ompliition or (]w Coufltl'llctlon Contract, 111·1·n11gu for n co1111•1tc1: lo hn tll'npnrnd fo1· oxnr.u(·.ion hy thl\ 
Ownor nnd a r.on!Tnclor snlncterl with thn Ownor'!l concut't'nncc, to lw Hcc1u·cd with pnl'fm·mnncc und payment honclH 
mmcuted hy 11 c1ualilied i;m•uty oquivnlr.nl to t.h(! hondi; iE:i'\und on the Co11At.n1ction Con(.1•11r.t, nncl puy lo (.ho Ownc11· t.lw 
amount. of damuge1, a11 d<HR'l'ihed in Section 7 in excci-:H of I.lie Hnlnncr. oft.he Cont1·11cl. Pric<\ incut•rnd by (h(l OwnHI' IIH 

a 1·e1mlt ol'(.he Contmctm· Dlifaul(; 01· 

§ 5.4 Wnivr. iii; right tQ Jll!l'fm·m 11nd complotn, nrrnugti for con\plotion, m· ohlnin u now cont:rnctor nnd wilh rnaHonnhln 
prnmpt:ncHH undm· thc.i circuntHt11ncoH: 

.1 After inV<lfilign!.ion, dr.lerminr. !ho nmo1ml. fo1• \\'hi<:h H. mny ho liuhlo tot.he Ow1wr uncl, 11:-; Hoon nil 
prn<·lk·nbl<> 11ftr.r t.lw umounl. iH d<•t<•rmi,wtl, mnkn p11yn1<rnt. to (.lw Ow1rnr; m· 

.2 D<•ny linl.Jilit.y in wholu 01· in purt. und uolify till' Owrn•r. 1:iling Ul(I l'l'lHlO!lH fot• <l<•ninl. 

§ 6 If till' S\lrcit:y doc•i; not J)ro<'<•<•d IIH p1·ovi(fo(I in 8('clion ll with rmrnonnhk• riromplm•sfl. llw Snn•ly Hhnll b(• th•<•nwd to 
lm in dcdirnll, on thi,-; Bond HCWU clnyB nflor rocnipl of nn nddilionnl wriltou notico from lhn Owno1· to llrn 8mo[.y 
dnnumrlin!( thut t.ho S1u·nt;y perform ii fl ohli~u tim1i; undor t.hiH Bond, nnd tho Owuor i!hall lm (Hit-it.Joel to cmforco 1rny 
i·nnwrly nv11ilnliln to t.lrn O1Vl10l', If !ho Sm·nt:y Jll'Ocr.nrli; nR pl'Ovidocl in Snct.ion l>A, nn<I tho Owncn· rol\umA thn pnymcnl, 
01· Um Snmty hm.; cloniucl liability, in wholr. 01· in pnrl, wilho111 furthm· nolicn tho Ownol' i;hall ho nntitfod Ill Clllfm·co nny 
n•m<'liy avnilal.Jk• lo llw Ownm·. 

Printed In cooperation with the American Institute of Architects (A/A). 

The language In this document conforms to the language used In A/A Document A312 - Performance Bond. 2010 Edl1ion. 2 



§ 7 II' the Suret.y elecls lo net. undel' Section 6.1, 6.2 oi· 5.B. (.hen the !'efi11onHibililieH of (.he Surnt.y to the Ownm• 11hnll no(, 
h(i g1·trnl<•1· lhnn t ho:,t1 of lhe Conl.ruclor under the Conslruc!.ion Con1.1·uct, und the responsibilil.ies of Orn Owner lo the 
Slll'el.y shall not be gl'<lalei• (.hun I-hose of lhe Ownei• undor I-lie Cons1.1•uction Conlrncl .. Subject. to tho commitment. by (.he 
Owner lo pay the Bulanco of l-hc Cont.ract Price, t.he Sm:et.-y if; obligated, wit.hout. duplication, for 

.1 tho rotiponsibilHic~ of 1·ho Cont.ructo1· for c<Jl•roction of dofoctivo work untl completion of tho 
Cons1.1·ucl:ion Cont:ract; 

,2 nddit.ionul legnl, doRign profm,sional and rlolny costA r<l1mlli11g from tho Contrnct·or'fl Dofnult, nnd 
ro1mHing from !:Im ncl.ionf! m· failum to a(:t·. of the Surety undo1· Sor.tfon f>; and 

,3 liquiclnted clnmngeA, or ifno liquidnted dnmngeH nre Hpt~cified in tho ConRl,n1cl.ion Cont:rnct, 11ctunl 
dumaget:i cu111;11d by delayed pel'lormunce oi· non-performnnco of t.lw Contl'nctor. 

§ 8 If t;he Suret.y Hlectti lo acL under Section li.l, 6,3 OI' Ii.ii, tho Sm·ot.y'i,; linbilit.y is limited lo t:he umom1t of t.hii; Bond, 

§ 9 Tho Surot.y ilhnll not ho linlilo I.a tho Owner or oth111•11 for ohlign(iom1 of Om Contrnct:or that 111·0 unrolnt.od lo tho 
Cmrnt.ruclion Contract, nnd tho Bnlnnce ol' t.hc Cont.l'uet. Price Ahnll not he roducccl 01• se1. off on uccount. of nny Ruch 
umelntetl oblignlions. No 1•ighl.ofnc(ion sh11ll ncc1•trn ,m this Bnncl lo any 1ie1•i;on m· 1111(.il.y ol.Jrnr than the OwtHH' or il.s 
heh'i,, execulol',;, admini,;h•uto1•1;, r;uccl1i,,;01•i,; nnd nHtiignti. 

§ 10 'l'ho Suroty hero by wnivm; notice of nny chnngo, innh1ding ohnngofl of t.in10, ('o l:lm Com;t.1·uclion Conl:ruct. Ot' to 
1·olntcd Rnbcont.1•11c!R, pm•chnF:o m·rlm'f: nnd otlHH' nhligat.ionA. 

§ 11 Any 111·oet1tHling, lo gal 01· t1<1uilnhlti, und1n• ( his Bond mny he insl.il ut<H.l in any com·t. of compotanl, juritidicl.ion in 
tho l01ittlion in whkh tlw work 01• )ltll·t of tho work iB lomtl(•<I nnd Hhull lw hrnl.it utod wHhin two yours afl<•r u doclu1•11Uun 
of Contrneto1· Dtifoul( 01· within two y<,m•i; ufto1· l.h(l Contractor couscd wot'king 01· wil.hin Lwo yca1•i; nfler tho Surety 
rnfusotl 01• fnilti l'o pm·foi:m its obli~ntions \llldm· thh; Doud, whichever occurtt fi1°flf., If t.ho proviRioni; ofthii; Parn~raph 
111•0 void 01• prohibited by law, !'ho mininrnm poriod of Jimitllfion nvnilnlilo to Rlll"ol'infl Ml n dofon1m in t.hc juri11di<:t.ion of 
Urn finit Airnll lm npplicnhlo. 

§ 12 Notice tot.ho Sumly, the Ownci· or thll Conl.rncloi· i:;hnll ho nrnilec\ 01• cloliv(ll'od lo t.hc ndch'MS shown on (.he pogo 
on whi(!h theil' i:;ignat\11'0 1111ptH11·s. 

§ 13 Wlion this Bond has boon fmuhihccl to comply with a Rtatuto1·y or other logal rcqufromont. in tho locatfon whct'c 
tho conAt,ructiou WllB to ho porformod, any provision in 1:hiR Dond r.onflictfog wit.h finid Rt-11h1tory oi• legal rO(J\tircmont 
flhnll he deemod defot()d l1orefmm nnd provisions conforming lo Rm!h Hlntut.ory or other Ir.gal req11il'emont Hhnll he 
cle1miecl inco1·1101·nted herein. Whtin Ho furnislrncl. the intent is t.hul. this Bond shall be cunsti·11t1d OH u i;(nt.utory bone\ nnd 
not, ns II cummun lnw bond. 

§ 14 Definltlons 
§ 14.1 Balance of the Contract Price. 'J'he (olnl amounl, p11yablo by I.he Owner lot.lie Contractm· under the Constrnct.ion 
Cun(1•net. nlllw ull proper udjui;tmenti,; huve becm mudc, including allowmm~ lo I.he Co1ll1'!H!lo1• ol' any umolmti; rnceivtid 
o1• to be, roceived by the Ownt11· in i;ett:leruent. ol' inimrnneo 01· othm· clnim8 fo1· dumu~ei; to which tho Contrnclur fa 
('lltHlt1d, rCTduct•d by all vnlid nnd propc•r paymcmts Illll(lo to or on lmhulf of t.hn Contrnctm· \mdm· thti C',011:ih•nction 
Coutrnct .. 

§ 14,2 Construction Contract. '!'ho ngreemenl bet.ween tlw Owmn· nnd Cont1·11ct01· idenlilied on lhci coven· pngti, 
including nil Contract. Documents and changes mudr. lo I.hr. ngrnement. nnd the Contrncl. Dncumnnts. 

§ 14.3 Contractor Default. li'ailure of tho Cout.ructor, which hull 110( boon romodiod 01· wnivcd, to pm•fonn or othorwille to 
comply with n urntorial t.erm oft.Jrn Gonsh·uction Contrnct. 

§ 14,4 Owner Default. Ji'ni\uro of t.lrn Owner, wliich lrns not heon romodiod 01• wnivod, to pny tho Contrnctm· nH l'O(J\tirod 
under 1:lrn ConRl,l'l1c1.ion Conh·nct. 01· I.a pe1•fo1·m nnrl comp Ir.tr. or comply wit.h I.he othm• mnlol'inl tnl'ms or !he 
Co1rnt.ructio11 Contrac!. 

§ 14,5 Contract Documents. All the documents ti.mt. comp1•ise l.hu ng1•eemen1: lrntwoon the Ownur nnd Conll'lt(lloi·. 

§ 15 ff 1'.hiR Bon cl iR iRfiuocl for an ngrcr.mont: hotwcon n Cont:mctor nnd mtbr:on t:rnctor, tlm tm·m Con trnctm· in thifi Bond 
i;hnll h<l dMme!l lo hr. Sula:nnlrnc101· and the lel'm Owner Rhnll bn rlmmwd to Im Ccmlrnol.m·. 

Printed In cooperation with the American Institute of Arch/lecls (AIA). 
T/Je language In this document conforms lo Iha language used In A/A Document A312. Performance Bond- 2010 Edition. 3 



§ 16 Moclilicnlimrn lo this bond 111·<1 ni.; followfi: 

(S))m't' ;.~ 11rm1i<lf,d helnll' for arldi1io11al sig11nl111·11s of adder/ p11r/fos, olhm· llu111 lh11sH !IIIIWm·i11!{ 011 //Hi cm·m· page.) 
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 
Cm11pony: 

8il{llllfllY<1: .. ·-·------ --·-·-- _ 

Nnmo nncl 'I'i!lo: 
/\dd1'(ll<S 

(Cm·1mmll' .S'l'al) Compnny: 

Sif.{nnlurn: . 
Nnmo nm! Titlo: 
J\dcln1:;s 

Printed In cooperation with the American Institute of Architects (A/A). 

(CorJ)ol'<lle Seal) 

The language In this document conforms to /he language used !ti AJA Document A312. Performance Bond. 2010 £dlllon. 4 



Payment Bond 

CONTRACTOR: 
(l\'11111e1 l!!gc,l stutus 011<1 culdl'<'S.~) 
AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. 
50690 Rizzo Drive 
Shelby Township, Ml 48315 

OWNER: 
(l\'01111:, legal slc1111s and <td//n•1111) 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
Dnl'n: December 9, 2022 

Amount: $180,300.00 

Dt!i;tWi))I inn: 
(1\'i1111t1 u11C/ /om/io11) 
City Building Documents Scanning Project 

BOND 
Dnt(•: December 13, 2022 
(1\'0/ 1•111'ii<!r Ihm, Co11.~trnclion Coulmcl Dale) 

Amount: $180,300,00 

Modificationi; to this Boncl: IZJ None 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL 

Bond No. 72515972 
SURETY: Western Surely Company; South Dakota Corporation 
(Nunw, l<•guf s/alns wid principal p/cu:e 
of l>11si11css) 

151 N. Franklin Street 
Chicago, IL 60606 

0 Seo Section 18 

SURETY 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with 
an attorney Is encouraged with 
respect to Its completion or 
modification. 

Any singular reference to 
Contractor, Surety, Owner or 
other party shall be considered 
plural where applicable. 

AJA Document A312-2010 
combines two separate bonds, a 
Performance Bond and a 
Payment Bond, into one form. 
This Is not a single combined 
Performance and Payment Bond. 

Compuny: (Co1·porat11 Simi) Compuny: (Col'pomte Seal) 
AmeriScan Imaging Services, Inc. Western Surety Company /---? .,.,,. 

,..,-· J h "'.:,.11 ., 

Signntm·e: _____________ Signn!urn: ~]~-::_~j/ .'J? /~ ··, 
Name Nmno Rhett ~e /- / // • , . : • , , , , 
nnd 'l'itfo: und 'l'it.lu; Attorney-In-Fact , /,/ • : i /. I i, , 

(ilny udch'tioual sig1w1111·es 11ppam·o11. the Im,/ JJCl!{e of /hi.~ l'c1y1111•111 llo11c/.) ?·/ I ,!·. '., ; 
1 

(FOR INFOl?M..t 7'/0N ONT, Y - Nunw, cu/(/r!lss cmd l11/c!J)ho1w) 
AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE: 

HUB International Midwest (Al'l:hihwt, l~11gi,wer m· ollwr p11r/y:) 

1591 Galbraith Ave SE 
Grand Rapids, Ml 49546 

Printed in coopera/ion with the American Institute of Architects (AIA). 

The language In this document conforms lo the language used In A/A Documant A312. Payment Bond. 2010 Edi/ion. 5 

.. 



§ 1 Tlrn Conlrncto1· nml 8m·ety, jointly ond fiEwernlly. bind lhenuielvcfi, llrnil· lwil·H, exec:utol'H, ndminiHlrnlo1·s, Huc:cC1HHOJ'H 
nnd n1,sig111:1 to the Owner lo pny foi· lnbor, mnlN'iuli; and llQlli!)nwnt.1\u·nii;hod for ui;<1 in tho pel'l'<n·mnm·e ol' t.he 
Coni;l1·uclion Conll·1w(., which i8 inco1·1HH'lll<id herein by reference, i;ubjoct to lho l'ollowing lo1•ms. 

§ 2 Tf 1.h<1 Cont1·nct0l' pl'omp!ly mnkcR Jmymonl of nil lltlntH due to Clnimnnt.c;, nnd dcfondi!, indemnifiei:: nnd holdi; 
hm·ml<Hiil l he Owner from clninui, dm1111ndA, lierrn ur i;uits by nny 11ernon or enlity ~<Hiking pnym1mt fol' lnhor, rn11tori11l!l 
or equipnwnl l'urnislwd for mm in 1-IIP 1Hwfo1•mnnl'e of llw Cmrnlrudion Cont1·11ct, llwn Uw Su1'l\ly und the Conlrnctm• 
i;hall havn no obligation under this Bond. 

§ 3 Ii' t.horn iR no Owner D0!'1rnlt. undor tho ConstnH!tion Cont.met, t.b(l Smoly'R olJlig11l.ion to the Ownm· unrlnl' this Dcmd 
Ahnll nrisr oft.or tlw Ownr.1• hn11 promplly notifiNl lhr Cont.rnctor und thr. Sur(1(.y (nt. thr. ndch·rsfl clofir.l'ihrd in Srrtion 1 H) 
of clnimH, dom11nd1,, liem1 or imilF; ngnini;{. 1.hr. Ownr.r OJ' !ho Ownrw'R 1i1·oporly hy nny JlOl'Ron m· entity fmoking pnymr.nl 
for labor, muleriulB m· C(l\1ipmunl- furnhihed frll' mm in lhn pr.rformnncc of 1-lrn Cmrnl-l'lWlion Cont1·u!:l nnd lend<ired 
defonHn ofi:;twh (·lnima, demand!:\, liHnH 01· 1milt1 to (ho Con(r11clor 1rnd tlw Su1·e1.y. 

§ 4 Wlwn !he Owner hui; imliHlfod t.lw condil.ionH in Suction :l, llw Suni(y shull 11romplly und 11(. the Suroly'i,; tixponi;c 
<lolimd, indemnify 11ml hold hnm1\ot1a tll() Ownm· 11~11int1t.11 duly lnndm·tHI claim, dmnnnd, lion 01· ll\1it:. 

§ 5 'l'lw 8ul'(lty111 obli~nl ions to II Clnimnnt. undm· lhiH lfond t1h11ll 111·iHn uftC1r (h!! lhllowi11g: 

§ 5.1 ClnimantH, who 110 not. hnvt\ 11 direct. 1·onlr11ct. with tho Con(l•11clo1·, 
.1 hnw. l'umh-1lw1I n wrillon nolkt• ul'non-puynwnt. to tlw Contrnclor, i;taling- with Huhi;tnnt.itd accuriwy !.lw 

umount. dninwd nml tlltl nnnw ol'tlw purt.y to whom Ow m11!(1l'i11la w1•1·t1, 01• <'(lttitmwnt. wua. l'urnii;lwd or 
impplit•d m· for whom llw l11bor Wl\H don<! Ol' porform\ld, within nin(l(.y (00) dnys nftm· having htHl
pm·formod lnbor 01· ln11t furnii:hod mnhirinh1 01· 11quipmm11: inclu<led in t.lw Claim; nncl 

.2 hnvn i>nnt n Clnim lo th11 8ttl'(!IY (nl tho 11drlrr.i:;R dm,c:1·ihnrl in 8r.clion Ja). 

§ 5.2 Clnimnnts, who Ill'(' \11\\)lloyorl by m· hnvo n diroct. contrnct. with t.110 Cont.rnot.01·, hnve R1ml. n Clnim t.o t.ll\1 Sm·ot.y (nt. 
llrn nddroi<:-: clui,c1·ilrnd in S<'Cl ion HI). 

§ 6 H' a nnl ic<l of ntm-paymP-nl rnquil'c!d by S1ict ion li.1.1 is given hy the Owne1· lo I he Cont 1•11clor, 1-llll I is Rttllicien I lo 
,mth;fy II Clni1naut'H obligntion lo furnish II wriuen 110li<:e 01'11011-paynwnl. 11ndo1· Sm:lion Ii. 1.1. 

§ 7 Whul\ u Clnimnnl hns i;n(isl1od tho coudilious of Sections J:i.l m· (i.2, wWchovo1• is npplicnhlo, tho S\ll'nt.y ;;hull 
Jll'OlllJltly and lit- the Sur<ily's r.xJlcni<c tnkc the following 11ctio1rn: 

§ 7,1 Send an anHwer lo tlrn Clnimnnl. wilh II copy lo 1-he Ownol', within Hixly (GO) dHyH nflllr 1·eceipl- of lht1 Clnhn, 
,;la ling the amount,; that arn undisputed nncl t.lrn lm11h-1 fol' chullcmgin~ any 11mo1tn(i, Urn I lll'l\ dii;puled; anti 

§ 7.2 Pay or Url'Unge for payment of any undisputod nmounlt1. 

§ 7.3 1'lw Surety's fnilurr to dis<"hnrgt1 itH uhlignl.imlH under 81,e(ion 7. I 01' S~1!\ion 7.:.! shall not ht1 dtwnwd lo 
constilu(e II wnivm· of d(lfen,mH thn Surnt.y 01· Con11·ncloi· may hnvf. 01· 11cq11im n;; lo n Clnim, exc<11it !IA lo 1mdi;;p11tc1d 
umount 8 for which lhll Sunily und Claimunt. have 1'lrnclwd ug1·e(m1011t. Jf, how<Wcl'. !he Su1'Uty lhihi to dii-;chm'g(i it;; 
obli~11tio111'\ under Seel-ion 7.1 oi· Sect.ion 7.2, (he Surol.y ,;hall indomnify tht1 Cl11in11111( fo1• tho 1·011!:ionahlc attm•nny's 
foe;; t.he Clnimnnt inc:m·R thm·<inftm to l'(Hmvnr nny 1111m;; found to ho duo und owing to t.110 Clnimnnl. 

§ B The Surr.t.y';; lot11l ohlig11lion Hhull not.mmeerl I.he nmcnm(.ofthi;; Ooncl, phlfl t.ltc mno\1111:ofrr.iu;onnhlo 111.tornoy'i:: 
feC!s JlJ'oviclnd un1hH· fleet ion 7.:-i, nncl 1ho nmount. of l.hit1 Bond 11hnll lm crnclitnd fo1· m1y \l11ymont11 mnclo in good fnith 
by thr S1m•ty. 

§ 9 AmoulltH owml by the Owno1· lo lhn Conlruclor undm· Um Con;;t1•1n:lion Con(.rncl. shnll be \llmd l'or llrn performnn@ 
of tho Consl.rll(:tio11 Contrnct: uml lo !lllli;;ly dninrn, il'nuy, 1mdm· nny rnnHtrnclion porformnm:(i bond. l:ly tho 
C1mtrnctor fnrnh;hing nil(\ tlu1 Owmn· llccopling thii; Bon<l, thoy agi·lm l-hnl al\ l'unthi mn·1u1tl l>y lhti Co11l1·11t:tm· in 1l11.1 
Jlerf01•1111111co of i-l1c Confih'ttclio11 Conh·nct nro 11<:dimtl<HI i-o Rn tiHfy ohlignl ioni: of lhn Cont1·11dm· nnd Surnty undnr lhii; 
Bond, ,mlijoct· to tho Ownnr'fi pi•ioril.y to mm thn fnnd,:; for lhn c:omplnl ion ol' thn wm·k. 

Printed In cooperation with the American /ns/1/u/a of Archi/eo/s (A/A). 

The language In 1/1/s document conforms to the language used In A/A Document A312 - Payment Bond. 2010 Edition 6 



r 

§ 10 Th11 Surnly shall not hr. liable to llm Owner, ClnimnnlR ot• olhtWB for obligalioni; of the Conlraclor thnl ure 
unrelated lo I he Con;;truct ion Cout.ruct. 'l'he Owner ;;hall nol, be lluble for the puynrnnt. of uny coBlf.l or mqmnse1, of any 
Cl11imu111. undel' thill Bond, and shall have unde1· thh; Bond no obliRnlfon lo mnke payment;; lo, o•· give notice on bel111lf 
of, Clnimnuts or otherwise havo any obligations to Clnimnnt.s uudm· thiH Bone\. 

§ 11 'J'ho Smety lrnrnhy wnivefi notice of nny change, including changeR of t.ime, lo the Confit1'uction Cont.rad OI' to 
related 1mbcon1.ract», purchnse orde1•s 1rnd othe1• ol>liglllion1-1. 

§ 12 No »uit. m· net ion !!hall he l'Omniencnd by n Clnimnnt. unde1• t.hii; Bond ot.hel' tlrnn inn court of competent 
jurh,diction in the slnte in which the project. thnt. h; llrn 1:mhject. of the ConHh'nction Cont.1•1wl iH locatetl 0I' nl'lc1· the 
expirntion of one yeul' Ii-inn the dnlo (1) on whkh t.lw Clnimunl sont n Claim to ll1e Surety purs11un1. lo 
Section 6.1.2 m· 6.2, 01· (2) on which tho lt1til- lubor or 1:101·vico wus pm·fornrnd b}• nnyonc ot· the luHt- malct•iuls 01• 

<HJUipmont wo1·ci fumishcd by 11nym11! unclm· t.lrn Conf;l l'\Wl ion Conlrnct, whi!:hevcr of (1) Ol.' (2) firnt occ\\1'8. If tho 
proviRionR of this PnrnR}'nph nm void or pl'llhiliitnrl by lnw, I he minimum poriod of limH11tion nvnilnhln to tmroties 111111 
dofonAe in t-110 jurit,<licUon of the 1111il Ahnll bn npplirnhln. 

§ 13 Nolirn nnd OlnimH to thn Snri'IY, tlw Owm11· 01· tho Contl'!lcl1H' Hhnll lw mnihHl m· deliv1wed to the ndclreRH Hhown 
on tho pnge on which 1lwi1- i;ign111\w1, 1,p1w111•i.;. An\1111I 1·111mi\1t.of Mlic1i m· Claims, h11wnvm· 11ccom1lli1ilie1l, Rhall hEI 
1mffici1m1 com1ilinrn:e nR or lho duto 1·1•cciivml. 

§ 14 Whnn lhii; Bond hni; lwon furnh:hud lo comply with n i;laht(ory or olhur lugul requiremcmt in thu locution whe1·e 
tho coni;truction wnH to IHi )ILH'fnrmcd, uny 11roviHion in thifl Bond conflicting with Huicl Blntut·ory m• legal roquirmncnt 
flhnll he dr:omr:cl dolotod hm•nfom1 1111d 1woviBionA conforming to 1,mch R(·~1t.utm·y or othnl' Ir.gal t·oquirement: Rlrnll hr. 
rlor.mcd incm·pol'nted heroin. \\'h(m i.;o furnil:,Jrnd, thn inion 1: iH 1.hnl. this Bonrl tthnll be cmu:t.1•u(!d Ufi n 11tntuto1·y bond nnd 
nut Ill' n common law bond. 

§ 15 Upon 1·e11ue::;t by nny })Lmmn or entity up1iearing lo be u polent.inl lmnaficinry of t-hii; Hond, the Cont.r1H:tol' nnd 
Ow1wr shall 11romptly f11rnh;h a copy of thi,; Bond or i;\H1ll permi1. a copy to bu made. 

§ 16 Definitions 
§ 16.1 Claim. A Wl'itlcn >1tntomont by lhc Clnimnnt. including at n minimum: 

.1 tho nnme of the Clninrnnt; 

.2 tlm nnmo of tho pr.rson for whom the lnbm· wnH done, or mnlorinls or oquipnrnnt. furnif;hod; 
,3 a ('.OJI)' of tlw ngreement. 01• purchai;e order 1nu•1;tH1nl. to wl1ich lnho1•, mntel'iali; or equipment wni; 

furnh;}wd for us1! in Uw pedol'mam:o of \.lie Corn;tl'uctiou Contract: 
.4 a brief description of the labor, materiult; or equipnH.!111. l'urnished; 
.5 thr dutti on whfob t.lw Claimant Jai;t 1wrformed h1bo1· or Inst fumislwd mute1•ials or <.>qni1mwnt. for mm in 

tho po1·fol'mouco of the Constrnction Contract; 
.6 the totnl nmount mu·nnd by the C)nimnut. for lnhor, mntol'inlfi ot' equipment furnishod 116 of t:he dnto of 

the Claim; 
.7 the total amount ofpreviouii paymenti; 1·cceived by t.lw Clai11111n(.; nnrl 
,8 the totnl amount duo ond unpnid to t.hn Claimant. for lnbm·, mntnrinlR or nquipmont fo1•ni,:;hml nfi of th<! 

date of thr. Claim. 

§ 16.2 Claimant, An individual or entity )rnving II dil'ecl cont rad with !ho Conlraclor ot' wilh n i;,1bcon11·1u:lol' of the 
Contrnctol' 10 furnii;h lubo1·, material,; or equi))nrnnl foi· UHe in the pe1'formunce ofthci Coni;tr11ctio11 ConlracL 'l'he term 
Claimant. nl!.-\o includeii ony imlividual or cnt.it.y t.hnt hnH l'ightl'ully llllBnrtcd n claim uud\ll' nn applicnblo mtichnnic'i; lien 
or 11imilar Htntuui ngninHl thu ronl J)l'OpC!rly upon which thr. Pl'!>jm:t iii locnwd. 'l'hn intm1t of t.hiH Doud i;hnll be to 
includo without limitntion in th!! te1·mR "lllbor, mntorinlH 01· cquipmr.111" lhnl 1in1'1- ol' wnlor, gns. pow111·. light, hcnt, oil, 
gnso)in(l, trlophone slirvkr ol' rental equipnH>nt wwd in tlw Constnwlion Conlrnnt, nrchilE'el.urnl nnd l'ngin\'1•1·ing 
;;m-vir.oR 1•011uil'r.d fo1• 1iei-formnnr.o of thn work of 1.lw Contnu:tm· 111111 the Con11·nr.tol'1il s11bcon(.rnclorf!. nnrl nil ot.lH~1• 
itr.ms fo,· which n mechanic's lien 11111y Im llflf:lerled in lhH jurh;di1:lion where the lnbm•, material,:; 01· cquipnrnnt. wore 
f111·niehed. 

§ 16.3 Construction Contract. 'I'ho ain·nomont bnt.woon t·ho Ownm· nnd Cont.rnctm· idontifiotl on thn covm· pngu, 
including nll Contrnr.t. Dor.umenl'.fl nnrl nll r.hungoH mndo to tho ngrnnmont and tho Contrnr.t; Docmnr.n1R 

Printed In cooperation with the American Institute of Archllects (AJA). 
The language in this document conforms to the language used In AJA Document A312 - Payment Bond. 2010 Edition. 

.. 

7 



§ 16.4 Owner Default. Fnilm•1! of 1hr. Ownr.l', which ]mi; not bmm 1·r.n111Cli11il 01· wnivn/1, lo JlllY lh!l Conlrar.tm· nH l'f'l<!Uireil 
untlur llw ConH(ruct.ion Conti·nct.m· lo perform un<l complu(c or comply wit.II the ot.lwr matm·ial l<!l'ntH of the 
Coni;l.ntction Coutrm:l. 

§ 16.5 Contract Documents. All thn <loc:unrnnli; that; comp1•ii;u t.ho 11g-rmnnnnl. botwcm1 the Own(!r and Cont-rnc:l01'. 

§ 17 lft.hiH Bond ii-: isi-:1mcl fm· an agrcwnrnnt ]mt.ween II Conl,1·actor 111111 i-:uhcontracto1·, lhn lm·rn Contrnclol' in this Bontl 
Hhall be d<wmud to ho 8ubcont,·actcll' Ull(I llw tcl'l11 (hvm•1· i;hnll lm d(l<lllH!d to I)(\ Contractor, 

§ 18 Modilicntiom, to tliis bond nw IIH followH: 

(Sp,wi• i:i pro11id1•d /w/11111 /11r ruldilfr111nl sig1w/111·es of mirier/ 11r1rli1!s, ollwr J/11111, lhosci a111mm•ilm 011 llw 1·uI·1w 11nge.) 
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 

(01rporr1/1• 8e11/) Corn1rnny: 

Signntm·o: . ·
Nanrn nncl 11iI lo: 
i\dlln•l'H 

Printed in cooperation with the Amer/can Institute of Arch/feels (A/A). 

8ig1111t11rn: 
Nnnw 11ml 'l'itln: 
J\cltll'(1HH 

The language In !his document conforms lo the language used In AJA Document A312 - Payment Bond. 2010 Edi/fan. 

(Co1·po1·ate Srnf) 

8 



I , 
I 

Western Surety Company 
POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIVIDUAL ATTORNE\'•lN•FACT 

Know All Men 11,1' 'J'hcic Pmc11b, Thul Wl!STERN l\lJIUiTY COMPANY. o 1\011\h J)akotn co111ornl1t111, i~ 11 d11ly org;miz~d nntl cx\sting C<1fllornlio11 

ha\'ill!!, ii~ principnl titlicc in tho City \tl'Si111L~ Fulls, uuu Stutc (,l'S1111th Dukotn, 1111d lhut it Jocs by vi1h1u ol'lhc siw111H1rc nnJ scul hurcin ullixcd horuhy 11111kc, 

C\ll1~li(11(11 !Jilli opp11inl 

John Avcl'y, Pe1my Ovcl'holt, Bradford J Poggi, James P Heybocr, Kathleen Kohn, Mackenzie 
Anderson, Rhett Pringle, Iudividunlly 

ol' <Jwml Rnphls, Ml, Its ln1c nnd lnwl\11 ,\Uomcy(~)-in•Fncl with 1'1111 power 1111d m1thoril)' hcr~by conlhrc<l to ~ign, scnl nml cx.:~Ulc for ond on its bchnlf 

bonds, u111foll11ldng~ uni! nthur uh\lputo1) hhl11111w11ts of g1111ih1r nnturu 

~ ln Unlimited Amounts -

uml to hind ii thereby II~ fully 111111 to lite l'lllllc cxlcnl 11s if~uch 111~l111111cn1~ 11cw ~ILmc,1hr111lulr uuthnrizcd ol)iccroflh11 co11xm11ion und 1111 lhu uds of gold 

i\llomcy. J\llrMIHnl 111 lhc. uuthnril)' hcrclty 11ivcn, mc hereby 111litk1I mut cunlirmcd, 

'flus Power n!' Alhll1W)' i~ 111,11fo nm\ cxcc1llc1l pursunnl tn 1111d h)' 1111lhu1il) uf the B)'•Lnll' pnnlcd 011 lhc reverse hcr,;:of, duly ndoptcd, 11~ indicated, h)' 

lhu ~hardmhkr.; of llw c,11p,,111ti1•11. 

111 Witness Whctfof, WESTERN 8\JIU::TY COMPANY hns caused thc~c 1irc~c11ts 111 hu ~isncd hy IL~ Vieu J>rcsi1kn! nnd 1ts cUfJlowtu ~cul lo he hcrclo 

nnixcd 1111 this 17th dny 11f July, 2U:! I 

Stnl;.1 111' Sn1ith t>,1kot~ 
<.'ounly ofMinnch,1ha 

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 

011 thH 17th day ot' July. 2021, before me pcr,;unall)' came J>1111I 'l' nrullal, to 111u k11n1111, who, hcintt hy me duly s1,·cm1. did depose 11ml say: thnl hu 

resides i11 the CHy ofSiou~ Falt,, Stale of 8oulh l)aknta; thal h~ is the Vice J>naidc11t of\VllS'l'l!RN l\l)IUffV COMl'ANY dc$crlhcd ill nnd which executed 

the nhLtl'C inst11t11h:11t; that he knu\\'$ lhe scnl of ~nu! clltJHlrntl,,11; thnt lhu ~cul nflixc<l lo lhu snid i11s1r11111cnl iH1.lch c,,ri1ornlc seal. llml ii was so nm~cd \lllr~uunt 

lo 1111lhnnt)' 111vcu hy Uw ffomd of Dlfccl111s 111' ~nit! co1poml!u111111<1 that hu siguctl his 111111111 lhcr.:to p11r:1um1l lo like nuthmily, und 11ck11nwlc1tgus sum11 to he 

the ucl um! dc.:d of ,:;,id co11,orntlnn. 

Mnn:h 2. 20l6 

CER1'1FICA'l'H 

_tr;__&±: 
M, Bent, Nohny l'uhlic 

I, J •. Nelson, A~sistunl Sccrclury ofWHSTERN SURE'!'\' COMPANY do lrnrch}' cctlify that the P,\\\w (1f Attnmcy hcrcinub,iw M tinlh i~ still in forcu. 

u11J tilrthcl'c~rlify thnl thu 1,y.J,uwofthc coqiuruti1111 prinh:J 011 the reverse hcrcul'i~ shll in forc11 ln t1:slilllllll}' 11hc1cot'l hn\'IJ lM'cUUt\, ~ubsc,ihcd my numc 

1111J nm);~tl the ~~nl urthc ~uhl ~Uljlllfllltun lhi~ I ::> tliJ)' ort)ec,,t lt ...... l-;iii v-J 'p\:> 2, 2_ 

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 

Go to \'JWW,cnasuretv~co1-r1 >Owner/ Obltgee Services> Validate Bond Coverage, If you want to verify bond authenticity, 

... 




	8b. mcl-117-5c.pdf
	117.5c Section&&&&117.5c &&&&Local officers compensation commission; creation; purpose; appointment, qualifications, and terms of members; vacancies; determination of salaries; expenses; meetings; quorum; concurrence of majority required; election of chairperson; compensation of members; conducting business at public meeting; notice of meeting; availability of certain writings to public; resolution; changing procedure; petition for referendum.




